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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors [the “Directors”, each a “Director”) of FY Financial
[Shenzhen] Co., Ltd. [the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”], collectively
and individually, accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange [the "GEM Listing
Rules’] for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material aspects and
not misleading or deceptive; and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRJER

NAME OF COMPANY

FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

STOCK CODE

08452

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Peng (Chairman)
Mr. Weng Jianxing

Ms. Gong Xiaoting

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Peng Qilei

Ms. Liu Jing

Ms. Tong Fangyan (Resigned on 30 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Shengwen

Mr. Hon Leung

Mr. Tong Qiang (Appointed on 25 August 2023)

Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony (Resigned on 25 August 2023)

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhu Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Bing

Mr. Sun Luran

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Shengwen
(a member until 25 August 2023 and was appointed as
the chairman on 25 August 2023)
Mr. Hon Leung
Mr. Tong Qiang
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony
(Resigned as the chairman on 25 August 2023)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ASCYE
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Mr. Li Peng (Chairman)

Mr. Hon Leung

Mr. Tong Qiang (Appointed on 25 August 2023)

Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony (Resigned on 25 August 2023)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Shengwen (Chairman)
Mr. Hon Leung
Mr. Peng Qilei

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Li Peng

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Gong Xiaoting
Mr. Wong Wai Chiu

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Weng Jianxing
Mr. Wong Wai Chiu

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 201, Block A

No. 1 Qianwan First Road

Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Cooperation Zone
Shenzhen, Guangdong

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

Room 1603, Cheung Kei Building
No. 128 Xinzhou 11th Street
Futian District

Shenzhen, Guangdong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRJER

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre
No. 248 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.fyleasing.com

AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited

(Appionted on 20 June 2023)

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law
Sidley Austin

As to PRC law
Beijing Tian Yuan Law Firm

As to litigation advisor

Guangdong Huatu Law Firm

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Everbright Bank
Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Bank of China Limited

HONG KONG H SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

*

If there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the
entities, companies or legal entities incorporated in the PRC and
their English translations in this annual report, the Chinese names
shall prevail. The English translations of the Chinese names
of such entities, companies or legal entities are provided for
illustration purposes only.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFBEHE

Summary of the Group's results, assets, liabilities and equity for the ~ NEBRNBEREMMEENESE L& BER
last five financial years is set out below: EREENT
RESULTS E 45
For the years ended 31 December
BZ12A3MALFE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023%F 20225 20214 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT ARBTR ARBTR AR®BTRT AR®TRT
(Restated)
(RE7)
Revenue s 60,364 29,501 43,095 103,844 152,631
Profit/(loss) before FRFrS LAl
income tax swH, (E8) 4,087 (38,753) 20,236 5,909 48,716
Income tax (expensel/credit FTEHi (R ), K% (3,458) 6,058 (5,305) (2,670) (12,655)
Profit/(loss) for the year FmF(E8) 629 (32,695) 14,931 3,239 36,061
Basic earnings/(loss) gRaEHN, (EBE)
per share (RMB) (AR¥TT) 0.01 (0.08) 0.04 0.01 0.10
HIGHLIGHTS OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED fHAGFEHBEMRRAREE
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023%F 20225 20214 20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARB®TR ARBTR AR®BTRT AR®ETRT
(Restated)
(e&E51)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ~ BEKMAE
Total assets BEMAE 486,549 511,630 553,156 914,055 1,405,572
Total liabilities BEesE 35,743 61,143 77,569 454,790 931,579
Total equity ERRRE 450,806 450,487 475,587 459,265 473,993
Non-controlling interests JEVERR A 6,961 11,531 = = =
Equity attributable to RNABIESFEE A
equity holders of JE(a#E R
the Company 443,845 438,956 475,587 459,265 473,993
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors [the "Directors”)
of FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (the "Company”], | present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”] for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the "Reporting
Period”) to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)").

In 2023, although the COVID-19 pandemic has gradually subsided,
the global political and economic environment continued to be
volatile, and the overall business environment remained sluggish.
The Group's finance leasing and factoring business, which serves
small- and medium-sized enterprises, continued to be cautious
by adopting prudent financial management strategies and
strengthening risk management measures to ensure the safety of

funds.

In 2023, the Group's new business, the energy storage business
segment, also faced tremendous competitive pressure in the
industrial and commercial energy storage market due to intensified
market competition. In this regard, the energy storage business
adopted a model that combines regional sales and industry sales
to develop the market and actively look for business opportunities.
Moreover, the Group's another new business, the 5G base station
business segment, has experienced sluggish growth in the number
of new stations and business volume due to a slowdown in the
construction of new 5G base stations. The Group mainly focused on
optimizing the operation of its existing assets and enhancing the

operation quality and efficiency of its 5G base stations.

Looking forward, the Group remains cautious and optimistic about
its long-term business prospects. The Group will continue to give top
priority to prudence to ensure the sustainable, stable and effective

development of its business and operations in 2024.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our
employees for their dedication and express my gratitude to the

Shareholders and our customers.

Li Peng
Chairman
27 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

In 2023, the global economic recovery had gained traction,
but challenges remained. Amid the escalated Russia-Ukraine
conflict and Middle East conflict, prices for energy and other
commodities continued to rise, pushing the already high global
inflation up. Geopolitically, tensions undermined financial
stability, while the risk of armed conflict disrupted global
supply chains and increased operating costs. In addition, trade
wars and protectionism raised invested costs and restricted

market access.

The Group's financial leasing and factoring business mainly
focuses on providing services for small-and medium-sized
enterprises to provide them with funding support. In 2023, in
the face of a complex and volatile external environment, SMEs
in China continued to face challenges from the rising costs
of raw materials and labor. Their demand for funds reduced
and risk exposure increased. Under an increasingly tough
business environment, increasing operational risks, and rising
corporate governance requirements and regulatory landscape,
resulting in a continuous decline in business volume and
demand for funds from our potential customers, which in turn
led to a significant decline in business volume and revenue
of the Group’'s financial leasing business. Fortunately, the
business volume and revenue of the Group's factoring business
are continuing to recover. In addition, thanks to the Group’'s
forward-looking decisions during the pandemic period, the
Group has continued to strengthen its risk management and
overdue asset collection efforts during the pandemic period.
With a sound financial position and sufficient cash reserves, the
Group's business operations were effectively supported after

the pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERENERE

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. E4E g & E CEI) D BER AT

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the total revenue realized by the
Group was approximately RMB60.36 million, a year-on-year
increase of 104.62%; the net profit recorded was approximately

RMBO0.63 million, achieving a turnaround.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of financial
leasing, factoring and advisory services, customer referral
services, the supply of medical equipment, 5G base stations
and energy storage business in the PRC.

During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted prudent
financial management strategy for its financial leasing and
factoring business and sought clients with sound financial
background, good repayment history and specified purpose
of funds through leveraging on its strength in resources. The
unsatisfactory business environment increased the default risk
of SMEs, thus the financial leasing business of the Group had
experienced a constant decline. However, benefiting from the
change of strategy, the performance of factoring business kept
improving as mirrored by a recovering trend in its business
scale and revenue.

During the Reporting Period, in respect of the energy
storage business, with the release of battery supply and the
intensification of competition in the energy storage market,
the Group also faced tremendous competitive pressure in the
industrial and commercial energy storage market. During
the Reporting Period, the Group's energy storage business
adopts a combined model of regional sales and industry
sales. Regional sales focuses on regions of rapid economic
growth such as Zhejiang, Jiangsu, and Guangdong. Industry
sales focuses on industries such as new energy, smart
manufacturing, and communication, actively seeking business
opportunities. The first and second phase of production
base for energy storage completed, with an annual capacity
of 100 MWh. Besides, certain research and development
for energy storage products had been completed, covering
various systems such as commercial energy storage systems
of two series of air-cooled ACES and liquid-cooled ACEF,
containerized liquid-cooled energy storage system, intelligent
energy storage battery packs for AEP series, distributed
energy management system for ACEP series. With the listing
of such products, the competitiveness of the Group was thus
enhanced.

A Ay e

RMEHAN - AEBERNRSRBOAEAR
B 4036B BT FLLIBK104.62% © 8K15F
BWAARK06EETT BERAEBEEE -

AEEEF2RNTEEFREREHE - R
B FARBEEFPEN RS - HEEER
8 - SCE LTS R HBEETS °

REHN PREHERREER  ~&E
FERRBENVBEERRE  WBBAE
BHEZER  ZEAARHUMBER
IERESE R EE RERAENTE - AR5
BMEERRRE - FOEREQRRIA -
MEMEXGERABETR - A - 55
RASEBENE  REEGRHERE - Z
FBE RN 2 RERLFRES -

HEHA - RREEER - BEENHEER
RFECETEREME - MAEE TEER
BETIBTEEE XREE S - MEHR - K
EEFEEESTAREEE MTEHEERE
ERERN - BEBEERENT  IHRKER
SOERERS RS, ITEEERENE
R BReRE  BESTERE BRI
EBHE - e EEE — R - HERST
B BEEEDIKEE o o - ke
¥ EmB SERACES R EEACEFR A P18
RIMEARERS SRAXNRLREER
4 - AEPRFIERERERE T4 - ACEPRT S
HREEEERRZRETERNME - BEZXS
ERERME - ZA TAEETEHRFED -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB RS

During the Reporting Period, in respect of the 5G base station
business, amid the complex and volatile market environment,
and with the gradual promotion and application of 5G
technology, the Group's 5G base station business experienced
a slowdown in the construction of new stations. As a result,
the growth in the number of new stations and business
volume of the Group’s 5G base station business was sluggish.
During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly focused on
optimizing the operation of its existing assets and enhancing
the quality and efficiency of its operations. The Group enhanced
asset utilization and customer satisfaction through refined
operations and innovative service models. It is based on (i) the
reduction of costs required for the operation and maintenance
of base stations by optimizing resource allocation; [ii] the
simplification of management for base station equipment
maintenance, network security, and subscriber services;
and (iii) the prevention of potential value loss of base
stations as their value is expected to gradually decrease
with the ever-improving technology and more competition
in the market. The Group is actively searching for potential
purchasers and negotiating for the disposal of the 5G base

station business and related assets to potential purchasers.

In addition, in relation to corporate governance, the Group
had continued to improve and strengthen its management.
Meanwhile, due to the expansion of new businesses, i.e. energy
storage and 5G base station business segments, the Group
had placed higher requirements on its corporate governance.
In its daily operations during the Reporting Period, the Group
paid particular attention to the popularization and promotion
of the concept of compliance. The Group also proactively
communicated with all parties, and made adjustments and
learned from various aspects, whether in its daily business or
regular reports. These measures have promoted an in-depth
understanding and the practice of the concept of compliance
from top to bottom in the Company, and made the business

development of the Company more standardized.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

lll. PROSPECTS

Due to the complexity of the international political and
economic situation, the recovery of the world economy
is likely to remain sluggish. Looking forward, the Group
remains cautious and optimistic about its long-term business
prospects. The Group will continue to be cautious and
adopt a prudent financial management strategy to ensure a
sustainable, stable and effective development of its business
and operations in 2024. Through the Group’s advantageous
resources, it will also identify customers with sound financial
backgrounds, good repayment histories and clear uses of
funds, so as to ensure the long-term and stable development
of the Group and create the best value return for the
Shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB60.36 million, representing a increase of
approximately 104.62% from approximately RMB29.50 million for the
same period of last year. The increase in revenue was mainly due to

the increase in income from the energy storage business.

GROSS PROFIT

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s gross profit amounted
to approximately RMB18.38 million, representing a increase of
approximately 45.99% compared to approximately RMB12.59 million
for the same period of last year. The increase in gross profit was
mainly attributable to the increase in income from factoring business

and the higher gross profit margin of factoring business.

COST OF SALES

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s cost of sales amounted
to approximately RMB41.98 million, representing a increase of
approximately 148.28% compared to approximately RMB16.91
million for the same period of last year. The increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in sales costs of energy storage business

during the Reporting Period.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & ECEI) XKD ERA

=. ARRE

HRBERBOKEBN Biatr e - REH
AREIDARERZ N - RERK  AEEHE
BREMSRBBERELBRE - ARES#
BUARERA - REVEEMNM 5 E RS
VAMEIR2024FREFSE - RERB B BERE
BREE - WERABAKENEZER @ 2
BERHMBER  RUHEFELLESH
BRAENEP  MRBAEERARENE
R RBRAERENEERDR

Bt 5 O R

=
Bk

RIRERAR - AEBORENAAREC06EHS
T REFREHHARE29508 & T ML
104.62% ° Yz 38 hn = B i iR AE RS IR AIE DA
@( o

EH

R|EHR - REBMBPFENORAKRKE18388
BT BEFRBNNARE12598ETIE MK
45.99% ° EAIEIE B RRILEB KRB N K
REXBENRE=AB

SHER A

RIBEHA - AEBEERANBAREL1.988
BT BEFRHNHAREI169EETEND
148.28% ° :ZIEMEE BN R E AR ELHES
FRZRIEANFTER o

4



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

During the Reporting Period, the Group's other income and gains
amounted to approximately RMB10.94 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 9.87% from approximately RMB12.14
million for the same period of last year. The decrease was mainly due

to a decrease of tax refund.

OPERATING EXPENSES

During the Reporting Period, the Group’'s operating expenses
amounted to approximately RMB9.36 million, representing an
increase of approximately 61.10% from approximately RMB5.81
million for the same period of last year. Such increase was mainly
due to the increase in sales force and the corresponding increase in

expenses during the reporting period.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s administrative expenses
amounted to approximately RMB24.88 million, representing an
increase of approximately 17.17% from approximately RMB21.23
million for the same period of last year. The increase was mainly due
to an increase in corresponding administrative expenses as a result
of an increase in the number of staff in the energy storage business
and an increase in changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

During the Reporting Period, the Group's provision for reversal of
impairment loss on financial lease receivables, accounts receivable
and amounts due from related companies was approximately
RMB10.21 million, representing a decrease of approximately
126.69% from impairment loss on finance lease receivable,
accounts receivable and amounts due from related companies of
approximately RMB38.25 million for the same period of last year.
The decrease in impairment loss on account receivables was mainly
due to the decrease in total account receivables as a result of the
settlement by customers upon the expiry of certain past projects and

the reversal of the provision made for account receivables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the reporting period, the Group's income tax expense
amounted to approximately RMB3.46 million, representing an
increase of approximately 157.08% as compared to the income tax
credit of approximately RMB6.06 million for the same period of
last year. Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase in
overprovision in prior years and credit for deferred tax within one

year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's income and expenditure during the Reporting Period
were principally denominated in RMB and most of the assets and
liabilities during the Reporting Period were also denominated in
RMB. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any
material impact or difficulties in liquidity on its operations resulting
from the fluctuation in exchange rate and no hedging transaction or
forward contract arrangement was made by the Group.

FINANCIAL LEASING OPERATIONS, FACTORING, AND
RELATED CREDIT RISK

The Group’s major credit risk mainly arises from financing lease

receivables and factoring receivables.
Financial Leasing Operations

The Group mainly provide two types of financing leasing services
to its customers, namely direct financing leasing and sale and
leaseback, including (i) new product direct leasing, which involves
the leasing of new equipment purchased by the Group; (ii) new
product leaseback, which involves the leasing of new equipment
purchased by its customers from equipment suppliers prior to
leasing transactions; and (iii) used product leaseback transactions,
which involves the leasing of used equipment owned by the Group's
customers and sold to the Group prior to leasing transactions. The
Group may require additional collateral or guarantees from lessees
and third parties for all finance lease transactions to better protect
them against credit risks. Such additional collateral or guarantees
include: (i) joint and several guarantees by the lessee’s legal
representatives, major stakeholders, related party companies, and
third party companies; (i) mortgages of production equipment, real
estate, or account receivables; and (iii) mortgages of the lessee’s
shares in the company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

Factoring

In respect of the Group’s factoring business, it provides financing
and receivables management services to its customers in exchange
for interest and management fee income. The Group's customers
are required to transfer it the legal title to the receivables to the
Group. Upon such transfer, the Group has the right to collect the
outstanding amount of the receivables from the buyers [i.e. the

debtors of the receivables).

The Group's financing leasing and factoring business mainly focuses
on small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs] through providing
financial support to enterprises. Its customers come from the fast
moving consumer goods, electronic products, alternative energy,
medical, transport, construction, decoration, property development

and machinery parts processing industries.
Internal Control Procedures

In the course of carrying out the above businesses, the main
processes of the Group's credit risk management system are set out

below:

Risk management measures for
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different stages of a project Responsible department(s) Functions

HE BRBRNEREERE BEERF BRE

Initiation and Internal Review e Business Department e Conduct preliminary assessment
YIERAREE o EIGEP o ETIZEHA

Due Diligence e Business Department e Conduct due diligence into background and

e Risk Management Department

o
g
it
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o AREERE

creditworthiness of customer, guarantor,
equipment supplier and/or underlying
debtor

e Submit proposal(s) to committee(s] at
higher level
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

Risk management measures for

Functions

BRE

different stages of a project Responsible department(s)

HE BRERE R EEEE BEERM

Project Assessment and e Risk & Investment Committee
Preparation e Project Approval Committee

HEHERER s ERIEIRERES

s HEFEMNZES
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Risk & Investment Committee principally

reviews and approves:

- finance lease projects exceeding RMB10
million and/or involving new industry

- factoring projects exceeding RMB5
million and/or involving new industry

Project Approval Committee principally

reviews and approves:

- finance lease projects not exceeding
RMB10 million and
not involving new industry

- factoring projects not exceeding RMB5
million and not involving new industry
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

Risk management measures for

different stages of a project Responsible department(s) Functions
HE &ERNEREEER BEBM BRE
Signing and Closing e Business Department e Draft, review and execute contracts

e Asset Management Department e Prepare and submit project documents [if
e Finance Department bank finance required)
e Complete registration of assets and
collateral

e Purchase insurance

FHIRTERK o EIGEP o BE  EERBIEH
o BEEHER o WENMERIABR XM
o BB (EFERTRE)

o TREENMEWMER
o HEBRR

Portfolio Management and e Business Department e Monitor customer’s payments, financial
Monitoring e Risk Management Department condition and operations

e Asset Management Department e Conduct monthly assessments

e Finance Department of assets
HeEENEE o XS o ERTFTFPHMNKIBN - MBHRRK
o REREER =8
o BETHER o ETAEEERE
o HTEHER
Risk Management and e Business Department e Enforce collateral
Enforcement Measures e Risk Management Department e Extend repayment schedule

e Asset Management Department e Transfer non-performing assets
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o BEEHER s BEEITREE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

The Group develops and implements certain risk management
procedures in order to mitigate its losses. After on-site visits to
see a customer with overdue payments, the Group usually tries to
negotiate with the customer to revise repayment terms, including an
extension or adjustment of the customer’s repayment schedule, or
a return and disposal of the Group's leased equipment. If the Group
is not able to agree with its customer on the revised repayment
terms, it would typically undertake other risk management
procedures. The Group’s business department, asset management
department and risk management department are primarily
responsible for implementing these procedures. Such procedures
include conducting on-site inspections, sending letters of demand
for payment after the scheduled repayment date, initiating legal
proceedings against its customers and their guarantors to recover
payments, and taking enforcement actions in respect of the

collateral and/or guarantee, including:

. disposal of the leased equipment (for finance leases) and/or

collateral through sales or auction;

. claims against the guarantor(s) and/or the underlying debtor

(for factoring);
. acceleration of repayment; and

o application for court orders to seize the assets (including real
property, personal property, and securities) of the customer

and/or guarantor(s), and to block their bank accounts.

In addition to the above risk management procedures, the Group may
also consider transferring its non-performing assets to third parties
such as asset management companies and private equity firms in the
PRC.

Amount of Receivables Related To Financing Business and
Factoring

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’'s receivables from financing
leasing as well as sale and leaseback transactions (“Financial
Leasing”) amounted to approximately RMB49.19 million in total,
factoring receivables with recourse (“Factoring”) amounted to
approximately RMB195.55 million in total, and the total principal
amount was approximately RMB244.75 million. Other details are
set out in Note 19, Note 20(a), Note 20(b), and Note 41 in the section
headed Credit risk of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

TOP FIVE BORROWERS AABERA
The following table sets out the major terms, amounts, and TRIIEAEBEFAZERASENEZBER &
proportions of each of the Group's top five borrowers: BERAEEIBR
Principle Percentage
Interest rates, terms, maturity dates, amount as at 31 of principal
Receivable type and guarantees obtained December 2023 amount
20235
12A31H G EHE
PR E R ME - R HHARIREHER FEH B
RMB' 000
AR®TR
Customer 1 Factoring 10% of the annual interest rate, for a 31,000 12.67%
period of one year as of 15 June 2024, and
guaranteed by Wei Xiaopeng.
BRI PRI FERE10% - BZE2024F 6158 BH—
F o BB ISREER
Customer 2 Factoring 10% of the annual interest rate, for a 30,000 12.26%
period of one year as of 18 May 2024, and
guaranteed by Lu Jian and Zhang Jialu.
EF2 PRI FERE10% - BZE2024F57 188 BH—
F o AERIKRERRHER -
Customer 3 Factoring 12% of the annual interest rate, for a 28,000 11.44%

period of three year as of 18 June 2025,
and guaranteed by Wang Fuhan (E &%
#2), Zhang Bowei (3R 1&1&), Ying Wen
(FE3C), Xu Lihong (fREBHL), Shanghai
KYMS Cloud Technology Co., Ltd., and
Shanghai Bolifen Information Technology
Consulting Center.

EF3 RIB FRZE12% - BZE2025F6F18H RE=
F o BIHR  REE - B REL
PERZGEBEMERNABRAT R LE
BHRIZEBRRRE AP OREIER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

Principle Percentage
Interest rates, terms, maturity dates, amount as at 31 of principal
Receivable type and guarantees obtained December 2023 amount
20235
12A31H IEAREH
il € 7% il FZE - R - BH A RESHIER T Bok
RMB' 000
AR%T T
Customer 4 Factoring 10% of the annual interest rate, for a 28,000 11.44%
period of one year as of 21 December
2024, and guaranteed by Chen Youxin {3
BE).
P4 R¥2 FHIR10%  BE2024F 128218 58—
F - ARKFTIREER -
Customer 5 Factoring 10% of the annual interest rate, for a 22,900 9.36%
period of two years as of 31 August 2025,
and guaranteed by Gong Liang.
5 REE FFIE10%  #ZE202598 4318 AHM

F - AESREHEER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

Provision for Credit Losses on Financing Lease Receivables FEHERKFRRAEBERKNRZEEEER
and Factoring Receivables 1%

The following table sets out the Group’s provision amount for  FRAFIHAEEFIETEEERES ERRIEE

financial leasing losses and factoring losses. BRESEBR -

As at 31 December 2023

R2023512831H
(Reversal of
impairment loss)
impairment
loss recognised
Net carry during the
Gross Loss allowance amount  Reporting Period
REERR
B
(HEBRRE)
e BREE fREFE REER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR¥TR ARBTT
Financing lease Financing lease receivables 18,857 10,627 8,230 (2,678)
MERE RERERYA
Receivables from sales- 30,336 25,404 4,932 264
leaseback
ERBRRHRKIE
Factoring Factoring receivables 195,549 9,398 186,151 (6,478)
wE RIEEWHIR
Total 244,742 45,429 199,313 (8,892)
Ait

Other details are set out in Note 19, Note 20(a), Note 20(b), and Note 41in ~ BREEMFF B EH NGRS M B HREMFE19 « Kl st
the section headed Credit risk of the Consolidated Financial Statements.  20(a) * By5E20(b) M4 1EE R —ED -

Basis for Evaluation of Loss Provisions EiERETERE

Details are set out in the section headed Credit risk of Note 41 to the ~ BRAFFIBEHNERE P BRKRMZTLEERR —F -

Consolidated Financial Statements
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

Changes in Total Loss Provisions BERBREZEHNER

Details are set out in Note 19, Note 20(a) and Note 20(b) of the HEEFIFHRGEAMBERRMIT9 - MzE20(a) &
Consolidated Financial Statements. Bf¥20(b) °

TREASURY MANAGEMENT EEFER

During the Reporting Period, there was no material change in the RIREHAN - REEEE REFRERL EEKE
Group’s funding and treasury policies. The Group had a sufficient &) - AEBEZHE THMIRE MIRTTRER —REKR
level of cash and banking facilities for the conduct of its operation in 2B HER -

the normal course of business.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES RBEERERER

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MALEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB' 000 RMB' 000

AR®TR AR®TR

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRE2RIREEEY 62,263 182,949
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating #X2 EE)(FTH ), FT{SIR & 55

activities (94,736) 108,282
Net cash used in investing activities KREZBMARESFE (13,605) (74,707)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEB(FTA),Fi5

financing activities WEIFRR (12,345) 1,025

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded total current assets
of approximately RMB329.73 million (2022: RMB337.49 million); the
Group's current ratio was approximately 10.37 (2022: 6.44); and the
Group's gearing ratio [calculated as total liabilities divided by total

assets) was approximately 7.35% (2022: approximately 11.95%].

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s bank
borrowings repayable within one year amounted to RMB5.00 million
and the fixed interest rate of such bank borrowings was 3.2% per
annum (2022: Nil).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any asset charges
(2022: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 86 employees (2022: 48
employees], and employee expenses amounted to RMB14.09
million (2022: RMB10.42 million). Salaries, bonuses and benefits of
employees and Directors are determined with reference to market
terms and performance, qualifications and experience of individual

employees and Directors.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any significant

acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

20235 12A31H - A"EEHBSRBEERLTELD
AR¥32973E BT (2022F + AR¥337.49H
BL) ANEBEZREEEAH1037(20224F -
6.44)  AEBZEEAGBLR(AREERINEE
EEFTE ) #97.35%(20224F = #711.95%) °

MR2023F12A31H » AEB—FANEENIRITE
EREmSBEAARES00EET  ZBTEEETE
FHEE3.2%(20226F : #E) o

HEE

R2023F 12 A31H - AEBMEEAIRLEEE
(20224 : #E) -

BERFHMEE

M20236F12A318 - XEEH86EEE (2022
F:48%EE) MEERAIAARKEILOOBE
TL(2022% : ARM1042B8ET) - ETHBES
& FEAL RSB T2 E WIS KA ERER] S T
EEMERE ARRKKBRMET -

ERRBHHESE

RS HA - ANEE I B AT B AU A K &
BAR - BERARRAEREEZER-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group’s investment strategy or significant investments include:
1) investments that would enable the Group to indirectly engage in
the industries with rapid development momentum and broad market
prospects, which will bring investment returns and revenue to the
Group; and 2] investments that would enable the Group to explore

potential business cooperation opportunities.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, details of the following
significant investments held by the Group, which represent 5% or

more of the Group's total assets, are set out below:

EXRE

AEENRERBERBARERE + 1)BEASHE
EEAEZ2BARREERD A NEATISIIRA
TTENRE - EMAAEEFHIKE DR L
R2)BEEARERRBENETEIERENRE -

HE2023F12A31BLLEE - AEEFEUA TG
NEBEEES %A EHEBRIEEHBOT ¢

Investment in an associate REEE N RNIRE
As at 31 December 2023 For the year ended 31 December 2023
R2023512831R BEWRE12ANALER
Approximate
percentage of
Approximate the carrying
percentage of amount of Share of (loss)
Number of shares held the Group's Carrying profit of Dividend
Name of investment Investment cost shares held in investees total assets amount anassociate income
FEERERN Er%E
e hgE hHE
REEH RERA Kheg BREMM BOEDL REE 2aE(ER)RR REKA
(RMB ‘000 (shares) (%) (%) (RMB ‘000 (RMB ‘000) (RMB *000)
(ARKTT) (R) (%) %) | (AREFR) (ARETR) (ARETR)
Investment in an associate
- Shanghai KYMS Cloud Technology Co., Ltd. 50,000 12,626,262 20.81% 10.28% 50,806 (1,010] =
H-BREATLRE
- B AREHAR AR

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE ERE

Financial assets at FVTPL

BRAFEFAEGNERMEE

As at 31 December 2023 For the year ended 31 December 2023
023128318 BENNBENANALEE
Approximate
percentage of
Approximate the carrying
percentage of amount of
Number of shares held the Group's gain (loss) of Dividend
Name of investment Investment cost shares held in investees total assets Fair value fair value income
FRERES HRER
Ll BEE AYENE
REEH RERE KRHE BaADL AR AYE (E8) REKA
(RMB *000) (shares) (%) (%) (RMB *000) (RMB *000) (RMB ‘000
(AR®TT) (&) (%) %) | (ARETR) (ARETR) (ARETR)
Zhuhai Huihe Guangjing Chuangye Investment Fund, L.P 30,000 N/Ax* 28.27% 6.17% 12,382 1,262 =
GEECRAAERALL(BRAY) )i
Beijing Shuncheng Health Investment Fund, L.P. 30,000 NJA¥* 9.9% 8.17% 24,505 (5,460) -
TRIBERRRE RS (ARA) NER™

* From which RMB15.00 million has been paid, while RMB15.00  *

million remains unpaid.

**  Represents RMB30,000,000 out of the total capital commitment of ~ **

RMB106,120,000.

**#*  Represents RMB30,000,000 out of the total capital commitment of ~ ***

RMB303,000,000.

HEAARMI15.008EITES T - lARE15.00

BETIARZ -

REZEEFAIEAEFEA R ¥ 106,120,000 F

#IA B HE30,000,0007T °

REKZ BB AR AIEREEEA R H303,000,0007C+

#IA R HE30,000,0007T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

Information regarding Significant Investments
Shanghai KYMS Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.*

Shanghai KYMS Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.* ("KYMS"] is principally
engaged in the leasing of serviced offices and provision of supporting
value-added services. Given the current business development and
management needs, KYMS intended to further adjust the current
strategic planning, improve the operation situation and improve
the company's decision-making efficiency, so as to promote the
sustainable development of KYMS. Upon careful consideration, it
submitted an application for delisting of its shares from the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations System, and the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations Co. Ltd. had decided to terminate the

listing of its shares, with effect from 26 December 2023.

Zhuhai Huihe Guangjing Chuangye Investment Fund, L.P.*

Zhuhai Huihe Guangjing Chuangye Investment Fund, L.P.*
mainly invests in unlisted enterprises in artificial intelligence,
new generation information technology, biomedicine, intelligent
manufacturing and other fields, sectors or industries. In China, these
industries are regarded as sunrise industries with rapid development

momentum and broad market prospects.

Beijing Shuncheng Health Investment Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)*

Beijing Shuncheng Health Investment Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)* achieves investment returns through investing in
the fields of medical equipment, medical services and other health
related fields focusing on unlisted companies. The above fields
will have plenty of potential for growth as in China because these
industries are regarded as sunrise industries with rapid development

momentum and broad market prospects.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & ECEI) XKD ERA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

FUTURE PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Group did not

have any specific plans for significant investments or capital assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Group had no
capital commitments which was contracted for but not yet incurred
(2022: RMB632,670).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has
reviewed the annual results of the Group for the Reporting Period
and agreed to the accounting principle and practices adopted by the

Group.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

EXAREFEREERRKETE

B EaitigEESN - FA2023F12 831 H » NREE W E
AMEAKERERNEEMTEEETE -

BEARESE

Br Falt i EESN - FA2023F 12431 H » ANEE W E
BEI BB AREENENRKIE(202F : ARK
632,6707T) °

BREES

ARREZZBE((BREEE ) CEHAKER
BEHANFERE  YRBAKEFMRRNESE
RANRER

RE

BEEeTEHRMNEIE2023F12 318 IEEEH
REARR B (20224F - &) o
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEAEREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Peng (Z=[) (“Mr. Li”), aged 60, is the chairman of the Board,
general manager, executive Director, chairman of the nomination
committee and compliance officer of the Company. He was appointed
as a Director on 28 September 2012. He also holds directorships or
senior management positions in several members under the Group.
Mr. Li obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Law from Peking University
in the PRC in July 1984. Mr. Li has extensive legal knowledge and
years of experience in corporate management. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a partner of Tian Yuan Law Firm (RIT/2RISEEFT).
From September 2012 to May 2014, Mr. Li served as a director in
China Lihe Company Limited (I&RMHBMR AT, a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000532). Since July
2018, Mr. Li served as an independent non-executive director in
Shanghai Yaohua Pilkington Glass Group Co., Ltd. (/&R HEE
E B PRAF]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600819).

Mr. Weng Jianxing (7 5) (“Mr. Weng”), aged 46, is an executive
Director and risk management director of the Company. He also
holds directorships or senior management positions in several
members under the Group. He was appointed as a Director on ¢ June
2016. Mr. Weng obtained his bachelor’s degree in transportation,
master’'s degree in corporate management and doctor’'s degree in
business administration from Changsha Transportation Institute (&
W 22i@E ), Changsha University of Science & Technology (/32
T K] and Central South University (FE8AZ2) in the PRC in June
2002, June 2005 and November 2011, respectively. Mr. Weng has
more than eight years of experience in financial products and risk
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Weng was a product
manager in Credit Orienwise Group Ltd. (ff B BHS B RE B R D
BMRAF]) and a risk control manager of CIMC Financial Leasing
Company Limited (R & FEREER AR
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Ms. Gong Xiaoting (E 1) (“Ms. Gong”), aged 41, is an executive
Director, chief financial officer, secretary of the Board and a joint
company secretary of the Company. She also holds directorships or
senior management positions in various members of the Group. She
was appointed as a Director on 12 May 2021. In addition, she is the
daughter of Mr. Gong Liang who owns 45% equity interest in Beijing
Municipality Dayuan Tiandi Property Development Co., Ltd. (3t
MRS AR ME M ER B AR ("Dayuan Tiandi’), a substantial
Shareholder of the Company. Ms. Gong obtained her bachelor’s
degree from Ohio State University in June 2005 and her master’s
degree from University of Illinois Urbana-Champaign in May 2007.
Ms. Gong qualified as a certified public accountant under The Illinois
Public Accounting Act in the State of Illinois in September 2008. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Gong served as a senior auditor at KPMG
LLP and an investment manager at Ningbo Shanshan Co., Ltd. (28)%
IR BR AR (‘Shanshan”), a former substantial Shareholder,
the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600884).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Peng Qilei (EZH3Z) (“Mr. Peng”), aged 60, is a non-executive
Director and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 12 May 2021. Mr. Peng
is currently a senior management of Dayuan Tiandi and its several
related companies. Mr. Peng obtained a bachelor of engineering
degree in automatic mechanics from Taiyuan Institute of Machinery
(KEHMEPT) in 1983, and a master of engineering postgraduate
degree from the School of Vehicles Engineering of Beijing Institute
of Technology (Jt 32 T R & TFEEFT) in 1994. He has extensive
experience in the fields of engineering and management, and served
as the general manager at Beijing Longxin Communication Cables
Co., Ltd. (JERBEFEBIEEHEMRAF). Since December 2020, Mr.
Peng has been serving as an executive partner of Zhuhai Mingrun
Guangju Technology Industry Investment Enterprise (%883 EERE
BXEXRKRERR).
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Ms. Liu Jing (£18k) (“Ms. Liu”), aged 54, is a non-executive Director
of the Company. She was appointed as a Director on 12 May 2021.
Ms. Liu currently serves as a senior executive at Dayuan Tiandi and
various related companies of Dayuan Tiandi. Ms. Liu obtained her
bachelor’'s degree from Beijing University of Chemical Technology
(HEFR{ETRE) in 1991. Ms. Liu has extensive experience in the
field of accounting and was as a financial staff at Beijing Haiyu
Industrial and Trading Co., Ltd. (At /8 E L E A R]), Beijing Zhongyu
Decoration and Renovation Products Co., Ltd. (3t A FEEARZE mEH
fmABR A A]) and Ruicheng Hotel (Fk AJBJE).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shengwen (2| 3X) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 47, is an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee and the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 April 2017.
Mr. Liu is a partner of Da Hua Certified Public Accountants Shenzhen
Branch and serves as an independent director of Shenzhen Tech
and Ecology & Environment Co., Ltd. DRINTIEIEERLIRIRAR D
fR/2R]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 300197). Mr. Liu qualified as a certified public valuer and an
accountant by China Appraisal Society (Bl & EFE 1) and The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants of the PRC in May
2000 and February 2000, respectively. Mr. Liu obtained a master’s
degree in software engineering from Yunnan University (EfA
&) in the PRC in June 2012. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in
accounting. He worked at several accounting firms. Mr. Liu was the
deputy director of Baker Tilly China Certified Public Accountants
Shenzhen Branch and the deputy director of Beijing Tianyuanquan
Accounting Firm JERKE 2 &&5HAIZEH5F) Shenzhen Branch.
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Mr. Hon Leung (38%) (“Mr. Hon"), aged 41, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the audit committee,
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 21 April 2017. Mr. Hon is an independent non-executive
director of China Investment and Finance Group Limited (2 El#% &k
EEEBR AT, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1226). Mr. Hon qualified as a certified public
accountant by the HKICPA in November 2012. Mr. Hon obtained his
bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance from the University of
Hong Kong in November 2007. Mr. Hon has extensive experience
in accounting. He served as an audit manager in KPMG and as a
financial manager in King & Wood Mallesons. In February 2015, Mr.
Hon founded William Hon & Co., an accounting firm, where he has

been responsible for general management.

Mr.Tong Qiang (45&) (“Mr. Tong”), aged 64, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the audit committee
and the nomination committee of the Company. He has extensive
experience in the fields of the Company Law of the People’'s Republic
of China (the "PRC"], the Property Law of the PRC and the Contract
Law of the PRC. Since August 1984, he successively served as
teaching assistant, lecturer, master tutor and associate professor at
Peking University (FABI1E 5 K 22) Law School in the PRC, primarily
responsible for the teaching and research on civil and commercial
law of the PRC and he retired in July 2020. He currently served as
an arbitrator at Shenzhen Arbitration Commission (RIIHEZ &
2], Dalian Arbitration Commission (KEHEZ B ) and Qingdao
Arbitration Commission (H&H##Z 8 ®). Mr. Tong obtained a

bachelor degree in law from Peking University in July 1984.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhu Xiaodong (& #E3R) (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 51, was appointed as
a Supervisor and elected as the representative of the Shareholders
on 11 August 2015, and was subsequently appointed as the chairman
of the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory
Committee”] on 12 May 2021. Since July 2003, he has been the chief
financial officer of Dayuan Tiandi, a property developer, where he
has been responsible for the financial management of that company.
Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Tianjin Normal
University (KZEMERER) in the PRC in July 2001.
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Mr. Liu Bing (2/££) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 51, was appointed as an
employee representative Supervisor of the Company on 7 July
2015. Mr. Liu obtained a graduation certificate in audit from Hunan
University of Commerce (BiFERZFT) in the PRC in June 1995. In
addition, he obtained a price appraiser qualification certificate from
the Personnel Department of Hunan Province [(#f& ASEEE) in
the PRC in April 2001. In December 2011, Mr. Liu also became a
non-practising member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu was
the deputy office director in Linli Development Reform and Price
Bureau (F@2 B RN EMER), the head of the audit department
of Shenzhen Shidu Industrial Company Limited (FEIITH & E
¥ B 2AF]), a risk manager in Shenzhen Zhongkezhi Financing
Guarantee Company Limited and the manager of the department of
risk management in Shenzhen Wanfeng Weiye Financing Guarantee
Company Limited (RYITTE LR EREERBR AR

Mr. Sun Luran (&) (“Mr. Sun”), aged 31, was appointed as a
Supervisor on 12 May 2021. During the period from 12 April 2016 to
12 May 2021, he was a Director of the Company taking an advisory
role in the Board in view of his knowledge in finance, understanding
in the capital and financial market and financial risk management,
which will assist the Board in evaluating and improving the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group. He joined
Shenzhen Shanhuitong as a risk control manager in May 2016 and
has been involved in risk management related work shortly after his
graduation from the University of Huddersfield in the United Kingdom
in June 2014 and March 2016, where he received his bachelor’s
degree in business management and master’s degree in finance,

respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Peng (Z=[8), for details of Mr. Li Peng's biography, see

“Executive Directors” above.

Mr. Weng Jianxing (S##), for details of Mr. Weng Jianxing's

biography, see “Executive Directors” above.

Ms. Gong Xiaoting (EEE#E), for details of Ms. Gong Xiaoting's

biography, see “Executive Directors” above.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors have
any other financial, business, family and other material/relevant

relationship with each other.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PERERRS

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of

the Company for the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognises the vital importance of good corporate
governance to its success and sustainability. The Company is
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance
practices as an essential component of high quality and has
introduced corporate governance practices appropriate to the
operation and growth of its business. The Company has applied
the principles set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code’] as contained in Part 2 of Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules
(renamed as Appendix C1 with effect from 31 December 2023).

CULTURE AND VALUES

A healthy corporate culture is critical to the realization of the
Group’s vision and strategy. The Board is responsible for fostering
a corporate culture with the following core principles and ensuring
that the Company’s vision, values and business strategies are

aligned with the corporate culture.
1. Integrity and Code of Conduct

The Group stays committed to maintaining high standards of
business ethics and corporate governance in all our activities
and operations. Directors, management and employees are
required to act in a lawful, ethical and responsible manner
and the required standards and codes are clearly set out
in the training materials for all new employees and have
been incorporated into various policies, such as the Group’s
Employee Handbook that includes the Group's Code of
Conduct therein and the Group’s Anti-Corruption Policy and
Whistleblowing Policy. The Company conducts training from
time to time for the purpose of reinforcing the necessary

standards of ethics and integrity.
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2. Integrity, Responsibility, Innovation and Dedication

The Group believes that a culture characterized with
commitment to employee development, workplace safety
and health, diversity and sustainability can create a sense
of commitment and dedication to the Group, which lays
a solid foundation for a strong and productive workforce
that can attract, develop and retain the best talent, and
strengthens the innovative thinking and dedication of its
employees, thereby enhancing the Company’s efficiency. In
addition, the Company's strategies in business development
and management aim at achieving long-term, stable and
sustainable growth, as well as focus on environmental, social

and governance to some extent.

During the Reporting Period, in the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with all code provisions set out in Part 2 of
the CG Code, save and except for the deviation from code provision
C.2.1.

Under code provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and performed by different individuals.
Presently, the Company does not have a position with the title “chief
executive officer”. The role of general manager of the Company is
to carry out the duties of a chief executive officer. Mr. Li Peng is the
chairman of the Board and the general manager of the Company.
Since Mr. Li Peng has demonstrated suitable management and
leadership capabilities along with his thorough understanding of
the Group’s business since his appointment as a Director and the
general manager of the Company in 2012 and 2015, respectively,
the Board believes that vesting both the roles of chairman of the
Board and general manager of the Company in Mr. Li can facilitate
the execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes the
effectiveness of its operations. In addition, as all major decisions are
made in consultation with the members of the Board and relevant
Board committees, and there are three independent non-executive
Directors offering independent perspectives, the Board is of the view
that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient
balance of powers within the Board. The Board shall nevertheless
review its structure from time to time to ensure that appropriate

action is being taken as and when appropriate.

2. IEE - 5ff - AIFRE=R

AEBMRE  BORETIERRE  TIEBHRE
2HERE - SRR FERRAAEXL
FEAMEE—ERERREANEEBFEGNHE
RBAEAN » BiTiEERA 8B IREEE
EfR - melks| - BHEUHRBREFOHA
AL Rnog B TH A B kRS
RRARIRAME o BN - RRBRREBERE

RERHEHRBARRES  BERTH
BER - ARIORA B REAHEEST
EEEE -

mﬁ%mm % 8RR ARR-HATEE
AT RIZE23B5 P A FRIGE - 1P RIS
f%%fﬂﬁ@?ho

RIETAIRXEC2 15 EFRRERRTED

B FE T AR D R NRALHEE - AR R E AL
ERETRTTHAAE WL - ARAHEKEN A
EBRBTITRARNET  FHTERESEXE
AL - ZEIIFIEELEBRD BIN2012F K

mwi%é&ﬁi%&ﬁ @%EMK**
FELEEABEZEEREER S WAHAER
%%%EL@Tm'§$Ewﬁ B R R

REEEGTFERARABKEIRENEE XS
ﬂ%ﬁi22$ﬂ??liﬂ%$i$§%§xk ERAAE o BESI - AT
BERNRRDRHAEES NIRESTZEEKE
‘BiFL - WB =B IFNTEFRIVB LA -
EZERR CARARRERFREZSAEINT
¥ - @ELL - EFSNBTRRTERE
RN & B R EREUEE TS °

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. E4E g & E CEI) D BER AT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

COMPOSITION AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2023, the Board consisted of eight Directors,
comprising three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors

and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board during the Reporting Period and up to

the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Peng (Chairman)
Mr. Weng Jianxing

Ms. Gong Xiaoting

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Peng Qile

Ms. Liu Jing

Ms. Tong Fangyan (Resigned on 30 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Shengwen

Mr. Hon Leung

Mr. Tong Qiang (Appointed on 25 August 2023)

Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony (Resigned on 25 August 2023)

On 19 August 2023, Mr. Tong Qiang obtained the legal advice in
relation to the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules that are
applicable to him as a Director and confirmed that he understood his

obligations as a Director.

The powers and duties of the Board include but are not limited to
convening general meetings, reporting the Board's work at general
meetings, implementing the resolutions passed at general meetings,
determining the Group's business and investment plans, formulating
its annual financial budgets and final reports, formulating proposals
for profit distributions and for the increase or reduction of the
Company’'s registered capital as well as exercising other powers,
functions and duties as conferred by the articles of association of the

Company (the “Article of Association”).
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Gong Xiaoting and Mr. Wong
Wai Chiu were appointed as the joint company secretaries of the
Company. Ms. Gong Xiaoting is the executive Director, chief financial
officer of the Company and secretary of the Board. Mr. Wong Wai
Chiu is an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited and assists Ms. Gong Xiaoting in company
secretarial affairs. Mr. Wong is a fellow of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute, a fellow of The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom, a member of CPA Australia, a member of the
Hong Kong Trustee Association and a Certified Trust Practitioner.
Mr. Wong Wai Chiu’s primary company contact person is Ms. Gong
Xiaoting.

During the Reporting Period, both Ms. Gong Xiaoting and Mr. Wong
Wai Chiu attended not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company established three Board committees (the “Board
Committees”),
committee (the "Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the "Remuneration Committee”] on 25 April 2017.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

namely the Audit Committee, the nomination

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Liu Shengwen, Mr. Hon Leung and Mr. Tong
Qiang. The former chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Fung
Che Wai Anthony, has tendered his resignation as an independent
non-executive Director due to his other work commitments, with
effect from 25 August 2023. Mr. Liu Shengwen, who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications as required by Rule 5.05(2) of
the GEM Listing Rules, has been redesignated as the chairman of the
Audit Committee with effect from 25 August 2023. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee include (but are not limited to] assisting the
Board by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system of the Group, overseeing the audit process, developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies, performing duties in relation to
corporate governance function under code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code and performing other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held six meetings
to (i) review the quarterly financial results announcement and
report for the three months ended 31 March 2023; [ii) review the
interim financial results announcement and report of the Company
for the six months ended 30 June 2023; (iii) review the quarterly
financial results announcement and report for the nine months
ended 30 September 2023; (vi] review the annual financial results
announcement and report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022 as well as significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, and the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function; and (v] to review the discloseable and
connected transactions in relation to the factoring agreement
between the Company and Beijing City Longding Huayuan Property
Development Co. Ltd. Jt R RERFEHERBEBREET AR
("Longding Huayuan”).

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, being
Mr. Li Peng and two independent non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Hon Leung and Mr.Tong Qiang. The Nomination Committee
is chaired by Mr. Li Peng, the chairman of the Board. The primary
function of the Nomination Committee include (but are not limited
to): (i) to assess and recommend to the Board suitable persons
for appointment as Directors, Board Committee members, chief
executive and senior management positions; (ii] in the case of
persons for appointment as independent non-executive Director,
to assess whether the person meets the criteria of independent
non-executive Director as may be defined in the GEM Listing Rules
and also to perform the annual assessment; (iii] to recommend
to the Board the succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman, chief executive and senior management; and (iv) to
ensure that all Directors receive appropriate continuous training

programmes.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held
two meetings to (i) review the structure, size and composition of
the Board; [ii) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors to determine their eligibility; (i) review the
diversity policy of the Board; (iv) review the nomination policy; and
(v) nominate Mr.Tong Qiang to be appointed as an independent non-
executive director to the Board having considered, among others, the
size of the Board, the Board diversity, his experience and his legal

background.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy for the appointment
of Board members. Mr. Tong Qiang was appointed in accordance
with such nomination policy. The appointment of Mr. Tong Qiang was
made on a merit basis, which had taken into account the following

selection criteria in assessing his suitability as a Director:
U integrity;

o the diversity of the Board in various aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural, educational and professional
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill,

knowledge and length of service;

. time available, interests in other parties and concerns about

the Company’s business;

o accomplishment, experience and reputation in relation to the

business of the Company and other relevant industries;

. independence;
o potential contributions to the Board; and
o any other relevant factors determined by the committee or the

Board from time to time.
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The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the

Board on the appointment of Directors in accordance with the

following procedures and processes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e]

(f)

(g)

(h)

to prepare a list of selection criteria based on the above criteria
to identify appropriate candidates, taking into account the

existing composition and size of the Board;

with reference to any sources it considers appropriate when
identifying or selecting an appropriate candidate, such as
recommendation of current Directors, recommendation
of headhunting companies and recommendation of the
Shareholders;

to review with individual candidates and perform background

checks;

after considering the suitability of a particular candidate
for the position of Director, the Nomination Committee will
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment by
convening a meeting and/or through a written resolution, as it

may consider appropriate;

to arrange an interview the selected candidates and members

of the Board, if necessary;

to provide information about the selected candidates to the
Remuneration Committee for considering the remuneration

package of such selected candidate;

to recommend the Board to appoint the selected candidates
as Director and the Remuneration Committee will submit the
proposed remuneration package of the selected candidates to
the Board; and

the Board will subsequently discuss and make decisions on the

appointment.

REZEEHRETIIRARREAESEERZ
TEE:

(a)

(b)

(c]

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of one non-executive
Director, being Mr. Peng Qilei and two independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Liu Shengwen and Mr. Hon Leung. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Shengwen. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but are
not limited to): (i) to review annually and recommend to the Board
the remuneration policy and structure for the Directors, chief
executive and senior management; [ii] to oversee the performance
evaluation of the executive Directors, chief executive and senior
management and recommend to the Board their remuneration
packages, promotions, specific adjustments in remuneration and/
or reward payments, if any; (i) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors and to ensure
that the level of remuneration for non-executive Directors are linked
to their level of responsibilities undertaken and contributions to
the effective functioning of the Board; (iv] to review the terms and
conditions of service of the executive Directors, chief executive and
senior management including their total remuneration package for
market competitiveness; and recommend changes to the Board
whenever necessary; and (v) to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee considers factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and

desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
two meetings to review the remuneration package of the Directors
(including non-executive Directors) and senior management and the
remuneration policy of the Company; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of Mr. Tong Qiang, the independent

non-executive Director.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy for executive
Directors is to enable the Company to reflect their individual
performance by a reasonable remuneration package. The
remuneration package includes basic salary, performance and other
benefits. Remuneration of the independent non-executive Directors
mainly includes the director’s fee which is a matter for the Board
to decide by reference to the duties and responsibilities of the
independent non-executive Directors and their experience.

The Group provides employees and Directors with fair and equitable
remuneration and benefits based on individual performance,
experience and market benchmarks. The Group have formulated
a set of employee performance appraisal mechanisms and makes
appropriate salary adjustments every year according to employee
performance to reduce the loss of talent.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has no share incentive
schemes.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, Board
Committees meetings and general meetings of the Company held
during the Reporting Period is set out in the table below:

F R

AEEHNTEEFTHBRRNEZBRERALQF]
BRRESEHFMES RREFEARR - FES
BRERFHS  EUNEMERN - BIYIFRTES
MFHEIEEREFEE  MZEFESIHES
SRSEBIIFPITETHNR RBE AR EEFH

AEERBREAKRR - £RATSEE - RETH
EXREAFRAENRMNES - NEECDHIE—
EBTHRAMERET  SFRRETRAELHEE
HENFEE - SORBEAA K -

RmERA - NEELEREE S -

EENREFZEEREHFERLE

RBFEHA  SEFLEARFEFEESE  EF
ZEEERABERASNTHEENTE -

Number of meeting attended/ number of meeting held during the tenure of office

BHESRAE RNEBABETERAR

Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Director EEfE 58 EVEZEE REZEE E270 PN BRRAE
Mr. Li Peng ZlexsE 13/13 - 2/2 - 202
Mr. Weng Jianxing DEEEE 13/13 - - - 2/2
Ms. Gong Xiaoting EERLTt 13/13 - _ _ 202
Mr. Peng Qilei vHErE 13/13 - - 2/2 202
Ms. Liu Jing Bt 13/13 - - - 2/2
Ms. Tong Fangyan [Resigned on 275 #201(7A2023F
30 March 2023) 3A30EEHT) 11 - - - 1
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony BEREE(R2023F
(Resigned on 25 August 2023) 8A25 B EHE) 9/9 5/5 1 - 11
Mr. Hon Leung BmEE 13/13 b6 202 2/2 2/2
Mr. Liu Shengwen Bk 13/13 6/ - 2/2 212
Mr.Tong Qiang [Appainted on #aa 5t 4 (R 20235
25 August 2023) 8A2BREZAT) 4fh 1/1 1/1 - 1/1
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CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL ESHEIZIIREXERRE

DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, each Director participated in  RIFEHR  SESHXHETHEFERRE - U3
continuous professional development to develop and refresh his/her B R B SH AR EEE L - SHIBEMNT ¢

knowledge and skills, details of which are summarised as follows:

Reading

materials
regarding updates
of new rules and
regulations

RMEEBRHRAR
Name of Director EEpE ERZ BRI ER
Mr. Li Peng FExEE v
Mr. Weng Jianxing BEESEHE v
Ms. Gong Xiaoting BERERL
Mr. Peng Qilei THRZESSE v
Ms. Liu Jing Bl v
Ms. Tong Fangyan (Resigned on 30 March 2023) 435 #f 224 (74202343 A30 A BHE) v
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony B REIE S (7R 20234F8 A 25 A& E)

(Resigned on 25 August 2023) v
Mr. Hon Leung TR v
Mr. Liu Shengwen BIA >kt v
Mr.Tong Qiang (Appointed on 25 August 2023) KRB (FR2023F8 A25 R EZR(T) v

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS =R e (7452 T E 8

BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities ARARDHEMNEGHEESZTLRANARIES([ESE])ETT

transactions by the Directors and supervisors (the Supervisors’] #4525 177AFR([{TH5FA]) - HIERTE
of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting  FAGEM 38855 4855 67TIKFTH 1 B & M ~F1E
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to ¥ « RAFBEALZEEZNEZ(EHETEH &
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have been made to  EEE LKEEDEANEBERSHEH D ETITES
all the Directors and the Supervisors, and all the Directors and the  sfAI] o

Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of

Conduct throughout the Reporting Period.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Group at all times met the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirms all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance

with the independence guidelines.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledged its responsibility of preparing the financial

statements for the Reporting Period of the Company.

The Board is responsible for the clear and fair assessment for
the quarterly, interim and annual reports and other disclosures
according to the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The senior management has provided the Board with
all necessary explanations and information for the Board to make
an implementation assessment of the Company’s financial data and

position and for the Board’'s consideration and approval.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors by the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the

Reporting Period is set out as follows:

Type of services Amount of fees (RMB’000)

Audit services 740
Non-audit services* 181
Total 921

* Non-audit services include interim reviews performed during the

period ended 30 June 2023.

BAFHITES
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of
the Company.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal control
measures, the Company understands its duties under the GEM
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance [the "SFO"),
and adheres to the important principle of timely publication of
inside information. The Company abides by the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the "SFC”), and has developed a
complete system of internal procedures and information disclosure
policy for processing and publication of information in order to
ensure the timely, accurate and appropriate disclosure of relevant
information to the public and regulatory authorities. The Company
is required to disclose inside information as soon as reasonably
practicable in accordance with the SFO and the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the SFC.
The Company also included in its information disclosure policies a
strict prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information. The Board will determine further escalation and
appropriate handling the dissemination of inside information.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to have a well
diversified Board by considering a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprises eight Directors,
covering different genders and has a broad age distribution and
a diverse mix of age, background, knowledge and skills. As at 31
December 2023, the Board had 2 female members out of the total 8
Board members, accounting for one-fourth of the Board. The Board
targets to maintain at least two female representation and will
consider appointing more female Directors in the future should there
are suitable candidates. The Nomination Committee considers that,
appropriate balance has been struck among the Board members in
terms of gender, skills, experience and perspectives. The Company
will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff
at mid to senior level of the Group so that it will have a pipeline of
female senior management and potential successors to the Board in
the future.
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Age Gender Education Background
3 i33] BEER
Accounting/
Finance/
Economic
g3t/
30-45 46-65 Male Female Legal &/ Management  Others
Name of Directors ~ EZ#% 0Z45H  LF65HE 2 Tt X B 3 Hif
Li Peng %k / /
Weng Jianxing SEE / /
Gong Xiaoting e / / /
Peng Qilei vz v/ / /
Liu Jing g /
Liu Shengwen Elp'e / /
Hon Leung ) /
Mr.Tong Qiang (S
(Appointed on (R2023F
25 August 2023) 8A2AEZEA) / / /

The gender ratio in the workforce and any plans or measurable
objectives of the Company has been disclosed in “Environmental,

Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’'s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Directors take decisions objectively in the joint interests of the
Company and the Shareholders. The Board has delegated to the
general manager of the Company, and through him, to the senior
management of the Company the authority and responsibility for
the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition,
the Board has established Board committees and has delegated to
these Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees
are set out in the section headed “Board Committees” in this annual

report.
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The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of

the Company are delegated to the management.

All the Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and professional skill to

the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

In compliance with code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the Board
has resolved to adopt a Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism,
which includes various measures to ensure independent views and

input are available to the Board.

The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent
non-executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the
Board, such that there is always a strong element of independence
on the Board which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
Each independent non-executive Director is required to provide an
annual confirmation of his/her independence to the Company and the
nomination committee of the Company is responsible to assess the
independence of each independent non-executive Director at least

annually.
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All the Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, are given equal opportunity and channels to communicate
and express their views to the Board and have separate and
independent access to the management of the Group in order to
make informed decisions. All Directors have full and timely access
to all the information of the Company and may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the independent
non-executive Directors without the involvement of other Directors at

least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director
will be required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and
abstain from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the
relevant resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose associates, have no material interest in the matter should

attend the relevant Board meeting.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism and considered
that, during the Reporting Period, it is effective in ensuring that

independent views and input are available to the Board.

All the Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in
the interest of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.
The CG Code requires the Directors to disclose the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments as well as their identity and the time
involved to the issuer. The Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner and the Board
regularly reviews the contribution required from each Director to

perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage
for the Directors in relation to legal proceedings against the

Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions.
During the Reporting Period, the Board has discharged the following

corporate governance duties:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and the senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable

to employees and the Directors; and

- to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report in the annual

report of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Reporting Period, the Group is committed to maintaining
comprehensive risk management and internal control systems that
enhance the Company’s overall strategy and promote the Company’s
risk control capabilities while addressing various risks, including
credit risks, liquidity risks, interest risks, operational risks and
legal compliance risks. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has implemented a comprehensive and effective risk management
system with stringent procedures and measures in place, including

multi-level assessments and approval processes.

The Company has set up an internal audit department to analyze
and evaluate the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems. The results of internal audits and reviews will be reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Within the scope of review on
internal control, no significant control defects have been found. The
review results have been reported to the Audit Committee and the
Board.
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The Board oversees and manages the overall risks associated
with our operations and reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems at least annually. During
the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
Board considered the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate in all material aspects in both design and
operations. The Board oversees the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis. The systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and provide only reasonable but not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with a clear division of power and
responsibility. The Company would conduct self-assessment each
year to confirm that all departments and the Company have properly

complied with the risk management and internal control policy.

During the Reporting Period, all departments conducted regular
internal control evaluation to identify risks with potential impact
on the Group’'s business and other aspects including major
operational and financial procedures, regulatory compliance and
information security. The risk assessment results and the proposed
internal control measures have been submitted to the senior
management and the general manager of the Company for review
and approval. The senior management and the general manager of
the Company are also responsible for supervising the effectiveness
of implementation and future execution of the risk control

measurement.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

During the Reporting Period, The Board has adopted a
whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing Policy”]. The purpose
of the Whistleblowing Policy is to (i) foster a culture of compliance,
ethical behaviour and good corporate governance across the Group;
and (i) promote the importance of ethical behaviour and encourages
the reporting of misconduct, unlawful and unethical behavior. The
nature, status and the results of the complaints received under
the Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the chairman of the
Audit Committee or the company secretaries. No incident of fraud
or misconduct that have material effect on the Group’s financial
statements or overall operations for the year ended 31 December
2023 has been discovered. The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed

annually by the Audit Committee to ensure its effectiveness.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’'s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables the Shareholders and investors to make the best investment

decisions.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at "www.fyleasing.com”, where extensive
information and updates on the Group’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices

and other information are available for public access.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests

to the Company as follows:

Address: Room 1603, Cheung Kei Building, No. 128 Xinzhou 11th

Street, Futian District Shenzhen, Guangdong The PRC
Email: jgzx(@fyleasing.com

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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The Board welcomes views of the Shareholders and encourages
them to attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might
have with the Board or the management directly. Board members
and appropriate senior staff of the Group are available at the

meetings to answer any questions raised by the Shareholders.

The Board has reviewed the Shareholders’ communication policy and

its effectiveness was confirmed.
Shareholders’ Rights to Propose Resolutions

When the Company convenes a general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee, or the Shareholders individually or jointly
holding more than 3% of the total number of shares of the Company
shall have the right to propose resolutions. Shareholders individually
or jointly holdings 3% or more of the shares of the Company may
submit ad hoc proposals in writing to the convener of the general
meeting 10 days before the convening of the general meeting. The
convener shall issue a supplemental notice of the general meeting
within two days upon receipt of the proposals and announce the
contents of the ad hoc proposals. If the ad hoc proposal does not
comply with Article 59 of the Articles of Association according to
the view of the convener after his/her reviewing and the convener
decides not to include this ad hoc proposal into the agenda, the
convener shall issue a notice for not including this ad hoc proposal
into the agenda within two days and specify the reasons; and at the
same time, the convener shall make explanation at this general
meeting, and make announcement on the content of ad hoc proposal
and the explanation of the convener and as well as the resolutions of

general meeting after general meeting.

Except for circumstances provided in the above paragraph, the
convener, after issuing the notice and announcement of the general
meeting, shall neither revise the proposals stated in the notice of

general meetings nor add new proposals.
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If a notice of general meeting does not specify the proposed
resolutions or does not comply with Article 59 of the Articles of
Association, no voting for resolutions shall be carried out at the

general meeting.
Shareholders’ Right to Requisite a Meeting

Shareholders requesting an extraordinary general meeting or the

Shareholders class meeting shall abide by the following procedures:

(a) Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10%
of shares of the Company are entitled to request the Board
in writing to convene an extraordinary general meeting. The
Board shall, in accordance with the requirements of laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply
with a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to
convene an extraordinary general meeting within 10 days upon

receipt of the request.

(b) If the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting, it shall issue a notice of convening the extraordinary
general meeting within five days after the date of the resolution
of the Board. Any changes made to the original proposal in
the notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders. If the
Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting,
or does not reply within 10 days upon receipt of the proposal,
Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10%
of the shares of the Company are entitled to request the
Supervisory Committee in writing to convene an extraordinary

general meeting.

(c) If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, it shall issue a notice of
convening the extraordinary general meeting within five
days upon receipt of the proposal. Any changes made to the
original proposals in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant
Shareholders. If the Supervisory Committee does not issue
the notice of general meeting within the prescribed period, it
shall be deemed as the Supervisory Committee not convening
and not holding the extraordinary general meeting. Then the
Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10% of
the shares of the Company for more than 90 consecutive days

are entitled to convene and hold the meeting themselves.
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POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

The Company has adopted a dividend policy to provide the Board
with a guidance to the Board on whether to declare and distribute
dividends. In order to keep sufficient reserves for the future
development of the Company, the Board will appraise its dividend
policy based on the operations and earnings, cash flow, financial
position, capital and other reserve requirements and surplus
contractual restrictions and its overall financial conditions and any
other conditions or factors that the Board considers relevant, so as
to determine or recommend dividends for any financial year and also
the number, amount and form of dividends paid. Any final dividend for

a financial year will be subject to the Shareholders” approval.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, in order to reflect and align with the
latest requirements under the GEM Listing Rules in relation to
the core shareholder protection standards as set out in Appendix
A1 to the GEM Listing Rules and incorporate other consequential
and housekeeping amendments, the Company has made certain

amendments to the Article of Association.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 9
May 2023 and circular dated 11 May 2023.
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The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors for the

Reporting Period to the Shareholders.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of financial leasing,
factoring and advisory services, customer referral services, the
supply of medical equipment, 5G base stations and energy storage
business in the PRC.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Reporting Period, the aggregated sales of the Group to
the top five customers accounted for 69.75% (2022: 58.34%) of the
total income of the Group, and the sales of the Group to the largest
customer accounted for 29.67% (2022:36.18%).

For the Reporting Period, the aggregated purchases of the Group
from the top five suppliers accounted for 93.18% (2022: 69.83%) of
the total purchases of the Group, and the purchases of the Group

from the largest supplier accounted for 39.13% (2022: 62.76%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, their respective
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital
had any interest in any of the top five customers or suppliers of the

Group.

MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of major subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note

35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The annual results highlights of the Group for the Reporting Period
and the latest five financial years are set out on page 5 of this annual

report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 268

of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period
and a discussion on the Group's future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 of this annual
report. A discussion on the key financial performance indicators of
the Group for the Reporting Period is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 25 of this
annual report. The review and discussion therein form part of this

Report of the Directors.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity in this annual report and details of reserves distributable to
the Shareholders are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at
31 December 2023 was RMB85.19 million.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in properties, plant and equipment of
the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The H Shares were successfully listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 23 May 2017 (the “Listing Date”]). The Company issued an
aggregate of 89,840,000 H Shares by way of public offering. From the
Listing Date to the date of this annual report, there was no change in

the share capital of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend a payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

As at the date of this annual report, there is no arrangement that a

Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s listed

securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under Rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & ECEI) XKD ERA

YK - BERRE

AEBENREBANDE - BE KR
FNARE M HRRM T4

BB 7 18

IR

HARRM 201755 A23B (T LW BE# ) BB AT
GEMAEII L™ » ARRIAAFBEEHREITEL
89,840,000f&HA% - B LT BHAZARFRAH - &
NRVEEMRAREE) -

3=

EEeTNEAREEHE2023F12A318 ILEFEW
REANR 2 (20224 : &) o

RAFHRAY - BERRNENFBREEARE
Bk o
BIER R

BV TR EMRAFBEARRR EMEFMEHR T
PRI R R

NRBRERE
REARAMBLMENBRRBEEMM - NE

EHALREEANFERB M AQF—E#HE
GEM EMRAIZE 1 2GR RN AR E ©

4



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

=

e

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

Discloseable and connected transaction with Dayuan
Tiandi

On 28 April 2023, the Company entered into a factoring
agreement with Dayuan Tiandi, pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to provide accounts receivable factoring
service for Dayuan Tiandi with a factoring principal amount of
RMB7,950,000, in return for (i) factoring interest income; and
(i) transfer of the legal title of accounts receivables created
in the ordinary and usual course of business of Dayuan Tiandi
with its lessee(s] (i.e. debtor(s) of Dayuan Tiandi) from Dayuan
Tiandi to the Company.

Dayuan Tiandi is a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under the Factoring
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 April 2023.

Discloseable and connected transaction with Longding
Huayuan

On 3 July 2023, the Company entered into a factoring
agreement with Longding Huayuan, pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to provide accounts receivable
factoring service for Longding Huayuan with a factoring
principal amount of up to RMB27,000,000, in return for (i)
factoring interest income; and (ii) transfer of the legal title
of accounts receivables created in the ordinary and usual
course of business of Longding Huayuan with its customer(s)
(i.e. debtor(s) of Longding Huayuan) from Longding Huayuan
to the Company for a term of two years commencing from 31
August 2023.

As Longding Huayuan is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Dayuan Tiandi, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
thus is a connected person of the Company.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 July 2023 and the
circular dated 14 August 2023.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE BEREWN

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed herein, there were — RREHIA - BRAERATIHTE LI - HEFE()E
no contracts of significance (i) in relation to the Group’s business  ZN/2 Bk E AT (] i B A R EL1E PR IR 58 (FE 3 R.GEM
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling =743 BIl) 5k EL(E(] T /B 2 5] 2 ol B 7K 5= () % 76548
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any of its B ; 3¢ (i) gt ARARER (SR EERI B A 7)) mAEE
subsidiaries; or [ii) for provision of services to the Group by a  ERHERIEEISIAEMEALL -

controlling shareholder or any or its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS B=E

The composition of the Board during the Reporting Period and upto ~ RMEHAREZANFERHE - EESAKNT

the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr. Li Peng (Chairman) FIEEE(ER)

Mr. Weng Jianxing SEELEA

Ms. Gong Xiaoting BREEL L

Non-executive Directors HHITEF

Mr. Peng Qilei THZEEE

Ms. Liu Jing ekt

Ms. Tong Fangyan (Resigned on 30 March 2023) 2B P+ (FR202353 H30H BHE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHFHTEF

Mr. Liu Shengwen BFEE

Mr. Hon Leung By e

Mr. Tong Qiang (Appointed on 25 August 2023) KRS (FA2023F8 H25 B EERF)
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony (Resigned on 25 August 2023) HE S (7R 20234F8 A25 A BHT)

As Ms. Tong Fangyan intends to devote more time to her other I LTREHLERREZHEFRNEALTES -
personal affairs, she has resigned as a non-executive Director with B EB{FIEHITES - H2023E3A30H E3K -
effect from 30 March 2023.

Due to Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony’s other work commitments, he has SR EERK 2 EM TIEER - ©EHEB I IEH
resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 1723 © B2023%F8 2504 »
25 August 2023.
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According to the Articles of Association, all the Directors shall
be elected by the general meeting for a term of three years and
are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms. Each of the
Directors (including the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors) was either appointed or re-elected at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 12 May 2021 or appointed
at general meeting to the expiration of the term of the third session

of the Board Committee (as the case may be).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors, the Supervisors and
the senior management of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS’
INFORMATION

There is no change in the Directors” and Supervisors’ information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1]) of the GEM
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and the Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years (for those
appointed or re-elected at the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 12 May 2021) or for a term commencing from the date of the
general meeting at which his/her appointment was approved to the
expiration of the term of the third session of the Board/Supervisory

committee (as the case may be).

The term of office of the current Directors and Supervisors will
expire on 12 May 2024. The resolutions on the election of Directors
and Supervisors will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company for the Shareholders’ consideration and
approval. Details of the candidates’ biographies will be set out in the
circular to be issued by the Company in due course.

The Company has not entered into/executed any service contract/
letter of appointment with any Director or Supervisor which is not
terminable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND SERVICE
CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

None of the Directors, the Supervisors or their respective associated
entities had a material interests, directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance (except
service contracts) concerning the business of the Group subsisted as
at 31 December 2023 or entered into with the Company or any of its

controlling companies or subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, there was no subsisting arrangement
to which the Group is a party and whose objects are to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and
the management of the Group is currently in force and was in force
throughout the Reporting Period. Throughout the Reporting Period,
the Company has maintained appropriate directors and management
liability insurance cover providing indemnity against liabilities,
including liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and the management of the Group arising from or incidental to the

execution of duties of his/her offices.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or

existed, during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the Reporting Period, details of the remuneration of the
Directors, the Supervisors and the five highest paid individuals of
the Company are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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Emoluments paid or payable to members of the senior management

of the Company were within the following band:

BASAEN T AR AR EIRER B H0B S 1) FA
TR :

2023 2022
20235 202245
Number Number

of individual(s)

AB

of individual(s)

AB

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000% 7T

No Director, Supervisor or senior management had waived or had

agreed to waive any emoluments during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS” AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors and Supervisors
had any interest in any business which was in competition or was
likely to compete, directly or indirectly with the business of the Group
which would be required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing

Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or in existence during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities

of the Company.
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BANK BORROWINGS AND THE MATURITY PROFILE OF
BORROWINGS

During the reporting period, the carrying amount of the bank
borrowing repayable within one year was RMB5.00 million with a
maturity date of 29 October 2024, and the bank borrowing bears a

fixed interest rate of 3.2% per annum.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its ordinary course of
business, including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk, operational
risk and legal and compliance risk. The Group carries out risk
management with the support for sustainable development of the
business and enhancement of the Group’s value as the strategic
objectives, and has established and continually improved a

comprehensive risk management system.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group persists in maintaining good corporate governance and
operating in compliance with the laws and integrity through abidance
by relevant laws and regulations, industry regulations and business
ethics. For the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has not been a party to any material legal,
arbitral or administrative proceedings, and the Company was not
aware of any pending or threatened legal, arbitral or administrative
proceedings against the Company or any of the Directors which could
have a material adverse effect on the Group's operations or financial

condition.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Reporting Period, to the best of the information,
knowledge and belief of the Directors after making all reasonable
enquiries, the Company was not involved in any legal litigation or

arbitration of material importance in which it served as a defendant.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: nil).
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As a financial service provider, the Group is not involved in business
that will generate air, water and land pollutions which are regulated
by the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC. No hazardous
waste was produced by the Group in its course of business for
the Reporting Period. The Group complies with the relevant laws
and regulations in environmental protection and impact on the

environment has always been a major focus of the Group.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. The Group
pursues this business approach by managing the business prudently

and executing management decisions with due care and attention.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 37 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The related party transactions which
constitute connected transaction have been disclosed in section
headed "CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS" above. The Company has
complied with all the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DONATION

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group during
the Reporting Period (2022: nil).

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Details of the Group's relationship with its employees, customers
and suppliers are set out in the "Environmental, Social and

Governance Report” in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC,
the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to
propose new issues to its existing Shareholders in proportion to their

shareholdings.
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PENSION SCHEME

According to applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Company
has made contributions to the social security fund for its employees
based on a certain percentage of salaries standard. The Company
makes and accrues contributions on a monthly basis to the pension
plans, which are mainly sponsored by the related government
authorities that are responsible for the pension liability to retired
employees. Under such plans, the Company has no other significant
legal or constructive obligations for retirement benefits beyond the

said contributions, which are expensed as incurred.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

From 31 December 2023 to the date of this annual report, no

significant events have occurred.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2023 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited.

Due to the Company not being able to reach a consensus with BDO
on the audit fee for the financial year ended 31 December 2023,
the Board has resolved to cease to renew the engagement of BDO
Limited ("BDO"] as the Company's auditor. With the recommendation
from the Audit Committee, the Board has proposed the appointment
of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited ("SHINEWING") as the new auditor
of the Company following the retirement of BDO.

SHINEWING was appointed as the auditor of the Company on 20 June
2023.

SHINEWING will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST ERIRE

Interests and short positions held by substantial Shareholders FERRE K HM A T RZAR D TR 17 & 868K
and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of the {pHMWEZRAE
Company

As at 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors, F2023F 128318 ' IBEZEFTF4 © LA N A Lk
the following persons or corporations (other than the Directors, JAB(ZEZE « BEEH AR B ZRSITHA BERIN R
Supervisors or chief executives of the Company) had the following A TIIID RABRBEIID T #EH T 5B AR A TR
interests or short position in the shares and underlying shares of 1Rz %5 R EAE & HIE 336 16B T AFE N ZELMA
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the — Z#EZREIAE :

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Number of
shares Number of
interested in shares
the relevant interested in
class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company the Company "
RARE  Percentage MARE  Percentage
HEERRGT  (approximate) RABESH  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Class of shares  Nature of interest RERZN Epaps RERRN Bt
RRE®/ /4 gl BHitE i EL (#4) RoEE (##4)
Dayuan Tiandi ¥ Domestic shares  Beneficial owner 80,000,000 (L) 66.67% 80,000,000 (L) 22.26%
N VN:id NER EnBBA
Mr. Zhao Dehua ("Mr. Zhao") Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 80,000,000 (L) 66.67% 80,000,000 (L 22.26%
corporation
HEREE(HEE])Y AR REEENER
Mr. Gong Liang ("Mr. Gong'] Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 80,000,000 (L) 66.67% 80,000,000 (L) 22.26%
corporation
Bnrt((EEE]) NER REEEN R
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Number of
shares
interested in

the relevant

Number of
shares

interested in

class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company the Company "
RAAR Percentage REAR Percentage
REERRGT  (approximate) RALEST  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Classof shares  Nature of interest BERREN ARl BERRN BAl
BRRE®,/HE el EHtE gt EL (#4) ROEE (#4)
Shenzhen Zhonglian Financial Unlisted foreign ~ Beneficial owner 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
Holding Investment shares
Development Co., Ltd. FELEMINERR ERBEA
("Shenzhen Zhonglian”) ©
ARB SR EERER LA Domestic shares  Beneficial owner 5,000,000 (L) £17% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%
(TR B ])o RER ERERA
Hainan Mujing Chengyuan Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
Technology Partnership shares corporation
(Limited Partnership) ¥ EmoMER REFENER
("Mujing Chengyuan'] ©
BEASHONBEEBLE Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 5,000,000 (L) 417% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%
(BRER)([REHH])S corporation
NER REFENER
Mr. Gong Changjiu Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
shares corporation
ERAKEY ¥ EohER REFENER
Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 5,000,000 (L) £17% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%

REK

corporation

SEEEMES
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Number of
shares
interested in

the relevant

Number of
shares

interested in

class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company the Company "
RAAT Percentage REAR Percentage
REERRGT  (approximate) RABESR  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Classof shares  Nature of interest BERREN Bat BERRN BAL
BRRE®/HE gl EEtE it EL (#48) ROEE (#4)
Mr. Xu Dongsheng ("Mr. Xu"] @ Unlisted foreign  Interest of a controlled 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
shares corporation
SRALE(FrEEDY I EmANERR R EERER
Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 5,000,000 (L) b17% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%
corporation
NER RIEEERER
Beijing Youke Yu Technology Unlisted foreign ~ Beneficial owner 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
Development Co., Ltd. shares
("Youke Yu') ¥
FREMEMBRRERAF ¥ EshERR EaEA
((ERE])
Beijing Xinmao Licheng Trading Unlisted foreign Interest of a controlled 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
Co., Ltd. ("Xinmao Licheng") shares corporation
IRBRIKEERRAR FEMINER REEENER
([ERIH )Y
Mr. Guo Lidong ("Mr. Guo’] “ Unlisted foreign  Interest of a controlled 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
shares corporation
BULEE([BEE])W I EmIMER LN ER
Mr. Yan Wenge ("Mr. Yan"] Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
shares corporation
ZNERE(REE])W ¥ EMINER REEENER
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Number of
shares

interested in

Number of

shares

the relevant interested in
class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company the Company "
RAAR Percentage REAR Percentage
REERRGT  (approximate) RALEST  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Classof shares  Nature of interest BERREN BAk BERRN BAL
BRRE®,/HE el EHtE gt EL (#4) ROEE (#4)
Beijing Hengsheng Rongcheng Unlisted foreign ~ Beneficial owner 32,340,600 (L) 21.63% 32,340,600 (L) 9.00%
Trading Co., Ltd. ® shares
TRERRATERRARE FEmINER ERBBA
Ms. Wu Yue © Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 32,340,600 (L) 21.63% 32,340,600 (L) 9.00%
shares corporation
Azt FEMINER REEENER
KKC Capital Limited H shares Investment manager 9,408,000 (L) 10.47% 9,408,000 (L) 2.62%
HR RELR
KKC Capital SPC - H shares Beneficial owner 9,408,000 (L) 10.47% 9,408,000 (L) 2.62%
KKC Capital High Growth Fund Hix ERBEBA
Segregated Portfolio
A Plus Capital Management Limited ~ H shares Investment manager 9,318,000 (L) 10.37% 9,318,000 (L) 2.59%
R KRB
Tiger Capital Fund SPC - H shares Beneficial owner 9,318,000 (L) 10.37% 9,318,000 (L) 2.59%
Tiger Global SP HR ERBEBA
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Notes:

(1

(2]

(3

(4]

(5)

The letter "L " denotes the person’s long position in the shares. As
at 31 December 2023, the Company issued a total of 359,340,000
shares, including 120,000,000 domestic shares, 89,840,000 H
shares and 149,500,000 unlisted foreign shares.

Dayuan Tiandi is owned as to 55% by Mr. Zhao and 45% by Mr.
Gong. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Zhao and Mr. Gong are deemed to
be interested in the shares held by Dayuan Tiandi.

Shenzhen ZhongLian is owned as to 90% by Mujing Chengyuan and
10% by Mr. Gong Changjiu. Mujing Chengyuan is in turn owned as
to 51% by Mr. Gong Changjiu and 49% by Mr. Xu. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Gong Changjiu and Mr. Xu are deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Shenzhen ZhongLian.

Youke Yu is owned as to 20% by Mr. Guo and 80% by Xinmao
Licheng. Xinmao Licheng is in turn owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo and
50% by Mr. Yan. By virtue of the SFO, Xinmao Licheng, Mr. Guo and
Mr. Yan are deemed to be interested in the shares held by Youke
Yu.

Beijing Hengsheng Rongcheng Trading Co., Ltd. is wholly owned
by Ms. Wu Yue. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Wu Yue is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Beijing Hengsheng Rongcheng
Trading Co., Ltd..

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were

not aware of any other person or corporation which had any interest

or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Wit -

(1)

(2)

(3]

(4]

(5]
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Interests and short positions held by Directors, Supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executive of the Company had an interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules (which shall be
deemed to apply to the Supervisors to the same extent as it applies to

the Directors).

By Order of the Board
FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Li Peng

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC, 27 March 2024
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
EEeqE

In 2023, the Supervisory Committee executed its supervising function
earnestly, safeguarded the rights and interests of the Shareholders
and the Company and carried out its work in a diligent and proactive
manner pursuant to the provisions of the Company Law of the PRC,
the Articles of Association, the rules of procedures of the Supervisory
Committee and the GEM Listing Rules

The Supervisory Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Zhu Xiaodong. Mr. Liu Bing and Mr. Sun Luran. The chairman of the

Supervisory Committee is Mr. Zhu Xiaodong.

I.  MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee held
four meetings in total. Such meetings were held in compliance
with the requirements of relevant regulations and the Articles
of Association and with proper service of notice and presence
of quorum. Major matters considered and reviewed by the

Supervisory Committee include:

o Review of the annual report of 2022, the first quarterly
report, the interim report and the third quarterly report
for 2023.

J Review of the financial budget plan for 2022, the
resolution on profit and dividend distribution plan for
2022 and the financial budget proposal for 2023.

o Considering and approving the work report of the

Supervisory Committee for 2022.

During the Reporting Period, members of the Supervisory
Committee attended and observed all general meetings and
Board meetings in accordance with laws and monitored
the matters considered at the Board meetings and general
meetings and the compliance with laws and regulations of
procedures. During the Reporting Period, there was no incident
where the Supervisors made representations to the Directors

or sued the Directors on behalf of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

EHRQ WS

Il. INDEPENDENT OPINIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE ON RELEVANT MATTERS

1.

Financial report

The 2023 financial report of the Company prepared under
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards has been
audited by SHINEWING and SHINEWING has issued an
unqualified audit report. The financial report fairly and
truly reflects the Company’s financial position as at 31
December 2023 and the financial performance and cash
flow in 2023.

Connected Transactions

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the connected
transactions between the Company and its connected
persons during the Reporting Period and considered
that the related party transactions were in compliance
with relevant requirements of the Stock Exchange and
applicable laws and the considerations for the connected
transactions were reasonable, open and fair and no
matters that were detrimental to the interests of the

Company or its Shareholders as a whole were identified.
Internal control

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued
to strengthen and improve the construction of its
internal control system. The comprehensiveness and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control were
continuously improved. The Supervisory Committee
was not aware of any material defect in the Company's

internal control system or its implementation.

Implementation of the resolutions of general
meetings

The Supervisory Committee had no objection to all
such reports and resolutions submitted by the Board
to general meetings for consideration and approval
in 2023. The Supervisory Committee supervised the
implementation of the resolutions of the general
meetings of the Shareholders and considered that the
Board had prudently implemented the resolutions of

general meetings.

. EEeYHAEEENEIER

1.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
EHQWE

5. Operations in Compliance with Laws and 5. MREEHRKE
Regulations

During the Reporting Period, the operations of the RIBERA » RRABELERRAIE -
Company were normal and reasonable and were in WESFERER  ER - RAIRATE
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules and BoEEelERIREENARNT SR
the Articles of Association. The Supervisory Committee BIEA BNERREFEENAEER
was not aware of non-compliance with laws, regulations ANRERIBEARN A MR EE N
or the Articles of Association nor of behaviors that were K115 °

detrimental to the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole committed by the Directors and

the senior management of the Company in discharging

their duties.
FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ERMEHRE R RBBRAAE
Supervisory Committee EEe
27 March 2024 202453 A27H
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PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

In accordance with the disclosures requirements under the “comply
or explain” provisions as to the Appendix C2 “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (the "ESG Guide”] of the GEM
Listing Rules, this environmental, social and governance report
(the "ESG Report”) covers the overall performance of the Group in
environmental, social and governance (the "ESG") aspects during the
period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting
Period”). The ESG Guide index is set out in the Appendix of this
ESG Report, which is presented in accordance with the “comply or
explain” provisions of the GEM Listing Rules during the Reporting
Period.

The Group highly values the importance of making appropriate
disclosure of corporate information to all the stakeholders and
believes that high level of transparency is the key to building
confidence with the stakeholders. Therefore, in this ESG Report, it
highlighted the sustainable achievements in the following areas to
give the stakeholders a better understanding of what the Group has

done to protect the environment and promote social harmony:

mREERHE

TIRE - g RERME([BRE  HERERRK
& DKBGEM EMRBIMERC2CGRIE - HERER
HEESI(BIR - HERERES DO TEFH
R A EBEETER - WE T ALER2023
F1RA1HE2023%12 8318 LM (T3REHE 1)
EIRE - g REG(RIR HERERDATEN
BRERR RN - g RERIESIARRSIEHNA
RIE - B REBWRSHMEE - RIREHN - AR
AIE 8 SFGEM TR B [ 8P RUERRE 160 -

AEEGEERZERBE QRS BEME M
THEBEEN - YRAREAERENGEEIEY
EERRESE - FIt - AEEEARE - @ REAR
WEFEIL T AT SRBAIHEREKIL - &
LiEReE Mt BB B AP T SRR B BIREIRE
FREL MR EE -

ESG Aspects BRI HEBREREE  Issues ER
Environmental R - Emissions - B
= Use of resources - BRER
- Theenvironmentand natural resources -  HRFEREXARER
- Climate change - RIRE
Employment and labour practices  fEfE NS TH R - Employment - ER
- Health and safety = (RS
- Development and training - BREE
= Labour standards - & TR
Operating practices HIEE - Supply chain management - fhEEER
- Product responsibility - EmAf
- Anti-corruption - -Vt
Community HERERE - Community investment - HERE

This ESG Report was approved by the Board on 27 March 2024.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

The Board is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which the Group operates and
continually enhances investment value to stakeholders through
proper and effective internal control systems and ESG risk
management measures throughout its operations. The Board
considers ESG-related risks and opportunities as part of the Group’s
overall strategic formulation, and the significant ESG impact caused
by daily operations and businesses. The Board maintains oversight
of and approves the identification and assessment of ESG issues and
confirms that to the best of its knowledge, this ESG Report addresses
material topics related to the operations of the Group and fairly

presents its ESG performance and impacts.

The Board has appointed the Group’s management to supervise the
ESG-related issues and work of the Group. The Group’s management
Is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the compliance with
local laws and regulations with regards to ESG-related issues. The
management is also responsible for establishment of sustainability
strategies, policies and measures to implement sustainability
initiatives, provide sustainability reporting and prepare the ESG

Report.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for
material ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality assessment
is conducted annually. The Group ensures various platforms and
channels of communication are used to reach, listen and respond to
its key stakeholders. Through communication with the stakeholders,
the Group is able to understand their expectations and concerns.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed
decisions, and to better assess and manage the impacts of the

business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality for each of the ESG aspects
through the following steps: (i) identification of ESG issues by the
Group; (i) key ESG areas prioritisation with stakeholder engagement;
and (iii) validation and determining material ESG issues based on the

results of communication with the stakeholders.
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Engaging these steps can enhance the understanding of the degree
of importance of the Group's stakeholders to each material ESG
issue, and can enable the Group to plan the sustainable development
direction more comprehensively in the future.

Board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals
and targets

The progress of implementation and the performance of the
goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time to time.
Modification may be needed if the progress falls short of expectation
or change of business operations. Effective communication about
the goals and targets with key stakeholders such as employees,
customers and suppliers are essential. Setting strategic goals

enable the Group to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results

of achieving the visions.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
The ESG Report is based on the following four reporting principles

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment
were conducted to identify material ESG issues, and to ensure that
these issues are addressed in the report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this ESG Report have been collected
prudently. Please refer to the environmental and social performance
data for standards and methodologies used for calculation of key
performance indicators.

Balance: Both positive and negative sides of the performance have
been presented in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data
collection and calculation methods have remained consistent
throughout the years to facilitate comparability over time.

REPORTING BOUNDARIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of finance leasing,
factoring, advisory services and customer referral services and the
supply of medical equipment in the PRC. The Group is also involved
in other areas, such as 5G base station business and energy storage
business. The Group’s major operations are located in Shenzhen;
Beijing and Nanjin. Therefore, the disclosures in this ESG Report
focus on the policies and performance of offices located in Shenzhen;
Beijing and Nanjin during the Reporting Period in relation to the four
environmental aspects and eight social aspects.
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INFORMATION AND FEEDBACK

For details about the financial performance and corporate
governance of the Group during the Reporting Period, please visit the

website of the Company at www.fyleasing.com and this ESG Report.

The Group highly values your opinions. Should you have any
suggestion or feedback regarding the ESG Report and the
performance of the Group on sustainability, please contact the Group

by e-mail at jgzx@fyleasing.com.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the sustainability of the
Group. The Group fully appreciates the needs to build both online and
offline communication channels and to provide stakeholders with
timely reports on strategic planning and performance of the Group
in order to establish a continuing communication mechanism with
the stakeholders. In addition, the Group consults the stakeholders
on their recommendations and propositions to ensure its business

practices which can meet the expectations of the stakeholders.

The stakeholders include the governments and regulatory bodies,
investors, media, suppliers, customers, employees and the
community. The Group discusses with the stakeholders through
various channels for their expectations and relevant feedback of the

Group as below:

BERRRE

BHASERREPRN M BRERDEE R
15 FBAIEARR ML www. fyleasing.com R ZANIR

B g REemE -

AEEGEERETHER - MEATHIRE &
KERBERAEBENAIFERRTEANKRAE
2R E
REE -

78 | # = gzx@fyleasing.com B 4%

Nz=EE S 28R

NEARET 2 BEARKE WA FHEERPEEZL
1ER - AEBRAFTEZRUK L RRTERRE -
DA % 358 B 1) 1) 2 41 B 7 12 R S 52 1B M SRS 381 B
RERE - LRSI ERBES - 1t
S NEBE R AR T A RS MR - AR
HEBHNERTANTANSMERE 22

MBS SRR REEWE - 8% - F88
HER BF - BERMLE - AEESEFSHERES
AASERENRESHASENHEMNBRR
82 P ¢

Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and feedback
MEEES HERER BB O e
The Stock - Compliance with the GEM Listing Rules = Meetings, training, seminars and
Exchange - ETGEMLETMARAI programmes
B 32 FfT - B B HEEeMEsE
- Publishing of announcements in a timely - Website updates and announcements
and accurate manner = HENAE YN
- REEETEAE
Governments = Compliance with laws and regulations = Interactions and visits, government
E¢;5] = BRRER inspections and compliance operation

- Prevention of tax evasion
- BN

= BERRE - BNREMEG R EE
- Tax returns and other information

- EBBRMEMER
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and feedback
NEEES HERER BEHEE e
Investors = Corporate governance = Optimising risk management and internal
REE - EES control
- B ERBREIRMAEES
= Business strategies = Organisation and participation of
- EREE conferences, visits and interviews and
general meetings
- HAERZ2EWSE - SRIBRAE
- Performance and investment returns - Provision of financial reports or business
= RIBAILE [O3R updates for investors, press and analysts
- RREE  HERASTEMEHMGRESE
BENER
Media - Corporate governance - Posting of newsletters on the company
U - 1EER website
- ERRALL EEMmEE
- Environmental protection - Adopting green office practices
- RERE - RARERDER
- Human rights - Providing equal employment opportunities
- A - RHETEEKS
Suppliers - Payment schedule - Fulfilment of payment obligation
HERE - [IREER - BONEED
- Supply stability - Site investigation
- HERE - BgEHEs
= Integrity cooperation = Establishing a responsible supply chain
- HIEAE - BEyaEfiEs
Customers = Product/service quality = Monitoring customers’ satisfaction through
B = Em/ REmE enquiry and survey
- BEBRANABEAREFREE
= Fair and reasonable pricing = Price analysis and pricing strategy
- RF/EEE - EROWMEBRE
= Value of service - Providing after-sale services
- RBEE - RHERERS
Employees = Rights and benefits and employee salaries - Competitive salary and employee benefits
(= - Rz AR - EABFIOHMMEEEN

= Training and development
- EYIEEE

= Working hours and working environment

- ILFSEMIERE
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and feedback
MHAERES HERER B E
- Protection for the labour force and work - Issuance of staff manual and internal
safety memorandum on health and safety
- BIRENIEZZR - BMEIFMNEBRREEZZ2NHAIES
Community - Environmental protection - Energy conservation practices
ol - RERE - HiReEE
- Employment opportunities = Providing equal opportunities for all
- ME#Me employees
- RIBEERH#TEHE
- Community development and social - Organisation of community activities welfare
- HRBERNHLESEF and employees volunteering activities,
sponsorship and donations
- FERMREY  EETHEERY  EPE
B
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEMI

The Group conducted a comprehensive materiality assessment on a
number of ESG issues in order to identify which areas have the most
significant operating, environmental and social impacts towards the

Group’s business and are of the utmost concerned by stakeholders.

With reference to the scopes as required under the ESG Reporting
Guide and taking into consideration of the corporate business
characteristics, the Group has identified and confirmed 22 issues,
which cover environmental, training and development, occupational
health and safety, employee welfare, supply chain management,
corporate governance, customer privacy, anti-corruption and

community investments.

AEBEDHEERE e MERREETEHE
ZUERHE - ABPIHAREEB 2EE - BRIERA

EREMsREENMNEEEIRBEEIZTH -
R2ERE - HEREAREIESIMRECEHE
RBEBEREBRR - AKEC BRI LR 22(E

R HERR - HIREBR BERREZS -
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Materiality matrix of ESG issues
RE -HERERESHEZEEMER

2]
ch,g PRI(?RITY 22 .

I

IGHEST

gl
mF
o

©

HRRAEREL 2 B2 HERE

IMPORTANCE / RELEVANCE TO STAKEHOLDERS ﬂ}

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 0 10

IMPORTANCE / RELEVANCE TO BUSINESS i
HEKCEEN HERE
Environmental Social Operating practices
BI% e EEEH
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 9. Local community engagement 17. Economic value generated
1R EREBHN 9. ANHbt R SRR 7. RBBENESE
2. Energy consumption 10. Community investment 18. Corporate governance
2. BEIRHFE 10. HRIKE 18. BXER
3. Water consumption 11. Occupational health and safety 19. Anti-corruption
3. Ak M BERERL S 19. R&)5
4. Air emission 12. Labour standards in supply chain 20. Supply chain management
b BERBEIR 12. fLREgERE TAR| 20 fpEsEE R
5. Waste generation 13. Training and development 21. Customer satisfaction
5. BEEMEL 13. 553 EE 3SR 2. BFMER
6. Compliance with laws and regulations 14. Employee welfare 22. Customer privacy
relating to environmental protection 14 EB&F 22. EF LB
6. B HMRRERER 15. Inclusion and equal opportunities
7. Impact of climate change 15. BRMFEHE
7. BRI LR E 16. Talent attraction and retention
8. Use of chemicals 16. WA B AT

8. {2 m{EM
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The operation of the Group has limited impact on the environment.
The Group’s business area is not the main causes of environmental
pollution. Moreover, the business of the Group does not involve
industrial activities and thus the total amount of emission, resources

used and waste produced is low.

However, the Group understands that it is the responsibility of all
corporations to ensure that emission of pollutants and consumption
of resources are minimized and carbon footprints are produced. For
such purpose, the Group has identified the following goals to reduce

consumption of resources:
Goals

- Reducing air emissions and greenhouse gases ("GHG")

emissions;
= Reducing consumption of resources; and

= Reducing production of waste.

EMISSIONS

During the Reporting Period, air emissions include nitrogen oxides
("NOx"), sulphur oxides ("SOx") and particulate matter ("PM"] which

were generated through the use of the Group's vehicle.

There were mainly three types of GHG emissions of the Group during
the Reporting Period, including but not limited to direct emission
from a vehicle, indirect emission from electricity consumed in offices
and indirect emissions from aircrafts when the employees went for

business trips.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had two vehicles which
travelled 33,596 km (2022: 21,405 km), mainly for short distance
business trip. The Group encourages all employees taking public
transport to customers’ companies and using the vehicle only in case
of emergency. Meanwhile, the vehicle was monitored and inspected
by the system on a regular basis to keep them in the best conditions
in order to increase fuel consumption efficiency and ensure road

safety.

R
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The employees took aircrafts for business trips for 154 times (2022:
164 times) and the total carbon dioxide equivalent generated from air
travel amounted to 19,503.49 kg (2022: 18,615.58 kg). The purposes
of business trip are business development, risk auditing and asset
management, etc. The Group has adopted a policy of emission
reduction including, (i) the employees only took aircrafts for business
trips when necessary; and [ii) the Group arranges phone or video
conference instead of face-to-face meetings to reduce emissions
from transportation.

For electricity consuming in offices, the Group encourages its
employees to set the air conditioners at the most comfortable
temperature and switch air conditioners and lights off when they
are not necessary so as to reduce emission of greenhouse gases.
The Group has also put notices at eye-catching areas in the offices
to remind its employees about energy saving in the ordinary course
of business. The Group has launched the target of reducing Air
emissions and GHG emission density by 5% in five years based on
2021.

Air emissions from the use of motor vehicles Note ")

REFRYREABFTE - —HB154K(2022F -
164%)  MERBEAN —SLREELTA
19,503.49F 53 (20224F :18,615.58F 5 ) - A% EH
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Environmental Indicators Unit 2023 2022
RERER Efy 2023F 20225
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions Kg 25.89 19.63
REALDINOX) BER T
Sulphur oxides (SO,) emissions Kg 0.08 0.05
ZE(EWR(SOX BERR Y T
Particulate matter (PM] emissions Kg 2.64 1.98
FERLH PM)BERR T

GHG emissions from operation

EREEELTNAEREIN

Environmental Indicators Unit 2023 2022
BRIRER By 20234 20224
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Kg COe 20,753 15,899
BEHER(EE) Fr-—atikgE
Indirect emissions (Scope 2] Note2 Kg CO%e 74,632 33,622
R HE v (B [E12) i) Fr-altirgEE
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) Kg COze 20,377 21,077
H Bk (& E3) Fr_atigE
Total GHG emissions Kg COse 115,762 70,598
mERBHINAE Fr-_StHES
GHG emissions intensity Kg COe per employee 1,346 1,471

RERBHMEE

Ee, S4EE
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GHG emissions can be classified into three scopes:

Scope 1:

Scope 2:

Scope 3:

Note 1:

Note 2:

Direct GHG emissions from operations that are owned
or controlled by the Group including fuel consumption of

motor vehicle(s) controlled by the Group.

Indirect GHG emissions resulting from electricity

purchased from power suppliers.

Other indirect GHG emissions resulting from paper waste
disposed at landfills, water consumed and employees’

business trips by aircraft of the Group.

The emission factors used to calculate the NOx, SO, and
PM are sourced from: (i] the Hong Kong Environmental
Protection Department’s ("EPD") EMFAC-HK Vehicle
Emission Calculation model; and (ii) the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’'s Vehicle Emission
Modeling Software - MOBILE.1. The assumption of 80%
relative humidity, a temperature of 25 degrees Celsius,
an average speed of 30kmh, and include running exhaust

emissions only.

The national emission factors for Shenzhen, Beijing and
Tianjin are sourced from The Ministry of Ecology and
Environmental of PRC (2019).
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Production of waste

Solid waste of the Group is mainly produced in the daily operation
of the offices, including daily paper consumption, office paper waste
and food waste made by employees. The paper consumption in this
year was 351 kg in total (2022: 505 kg). All domestic waste is collected
and disposed by the property management office of the office
building on a regular basis. No hazardous wastes are generated in

the operations of the offices.

The Group is committed to reducing waste production. The Group
encourages the employees to recycle stationery and reduce
waste with an aim to prevent waste production at the initial stage.
Moreover, the Group has adopted a digital operation method to
centralize all documents and regularly educates its employees
regarding environmental protection. For example, the employees
are required to print double-sided and reuse paper printed single-
sided in order to save and reduce the use of paper and other natural
resources. Permission is also required for printing in the offices
for statistical and adjustment purposes on the use of paper, so that

resource utilization can be enhanced.

The Group has established appropriate measures for disposal
of computers and related products such as printers and toner
cartridges. Unused digital products are transferred or reused while
obsolete accessories and used toner cartridges are collected by third

party companies for recycling.

In case it is necessary to dispose of an item, the Group encourages its
employees to collect and classify the waste before disposing so as to

reduce the negative impact on the environment.
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Waste produced from operation

RETEERERY

Environmental Indicators Unit 2023 2022
REER Efy 2023F 20225
Hazardous waste produced Mo Kg N/A N/A
P EE = 008 ERE S A (i) T TER e A
Hazardous waste produced intensity Kg per employee N/A N/A
FIE4ANBEREENEE Tr/8%EE TERA NiE A
Non-hazardous waste produced Nete? Kg N/A N/A
PR E A ) R 2 R SR ) (i) T TER A
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity Kg per employee N/A N/A
FIE4A N EEEENEE FTr/8%EE TER NiE A

Note 1:  No hazardous waste is produced by the Group. Therefore, ~ BfizE1:  ANEBEWEELGEZREEY - Atk A

such disclosure is not applicable to the Group. AR EL NERRAREE o
Note 2:  Non-hazardous waste produced by the Group is minimal.  FffzE2 :  AREBEELNEZEZYIRD - Fit -

Therefore, no relevant figure is quantified.

The targets of the Group are to maintain zero generation of
hazardous waste and minimal generation of non-hazardous waste in

the next five years.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with
the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC the Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution and other
applicable rules and regulations related to environmental protection
and did not identify any violations that were related to environmental
protection and other applicable laws and regulations that has
significant impact relating to air and greenhouse gases emissions,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste of the Group.

In addition, no significant fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations had been reported

during the Reporting Period.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has always been promoting sustainability by assuming
the social responsibility of environmental protection in the course
of business and, on the premise of minimizing the impact on the
environment, creating unlimited possibilities with limited resources.
In this regard, the Group attaches great importance to employees’
environmental awareness, and thus has put forth a number of
initiatives with the goal of “green office”, educating employees about
how to fully utilize the resources and save energy. The Group aims
at maximizing the efficiency of our resources in commercial aspect
while eliminating waste and contributing to the society in social

aspect.

The Group also embraces its responsibility in environmental
protection throughout the course of office administration and daily
operation. Apart from adhering to the principle of recycling and
reducing use, the Group is committed to creating green offices to
minimize the impact on the environment. In light of the nature of the
business of the Group, the consumption of energy, electricity, water
and other natural resources in the offices are limited. Electricity
consumed by the Group for the Reporting Period is mainly due to

daily consumption in the offices.
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Below are measures taken by the Group in saving energy:

o Adopting double-sided printing and promoting use of recycled

paper;

o Switching off unused lights and electric appliances to reduce

energy consumption;

° Keeping the room temperature at a comfortable level and

switching off the air conditioners when not necessary;

o Switching off the air conditioners and lights after office hour

and when they are not in use;

° Requiring employees to turn their computers and other devices
to the sleep mode or switch them off when leaving the office

(including when visiting clients and having lunch); and

° Conducting regular maintenance for office equipment (such
as air conditioners, computers, lights, refrigerators and paper

shredders] to ensure normal operation.
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Signs for reminding employees to save energy

1REE B TR REIREVIR S
ERNAKEXRBIEE - KBERERD TBELBE8

As per the business nature of the Group, water consumption is very
limited, mainly daily water consumption by the employees in offices
during business hours. The domestic sewage of the Group does
not include hazardous wastewater and is directly discharged to the
municipal sewer pipeline. In order to reduce wastewater, employees

of the Group are encouraged to save water.

The Group has launched the target of reducing energy consumption

and water consumption density by 5% in five years based on 2021.
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Use of resources from operation RERAEIR
Environmental Indicators Unit 2023 2022
RERER Efy 2023F 20225
Energy Consumption
#ERe
Units of purchased electricity consumed Nete ) kWh 87,313 43,928
BEEHREEMG M) TR
Units of purchased petrol consumed Nete? kWh 56,869 37,168
BE)UHAEE LMW TR
Total energy consumption kWh 144,182 81,096
RERHFEEE TRk
Total energy consumption intensity kWh per employee 1,676 1,690
RERHREATE FTRE BE8T
Water Consumption MNete )
J::p G
Water consumption M3 533 137
FA7K SITK
Water consumption intensity M2 per employee 6 g
RKEE MR/ BRET
Packaging Material Consumption Mot 3
BEMBEREM
Packaging material used for finished products Kg N/A N/A
SURK PR BEH R TR TERA TEA
Packaging material used intensity Kg per piece N/A N/A
FTREEMEEE T/ 8t TiE A TiEA
Note 1: The figures in 2023 covered the electricity consumption  Bffz¥1 : 2023 FHEEREI R FHIEER
from offices in Beijing, Shenzhen and Nanjin. The figures M N TEET o 20224 () 85 R £t
in 2022 covered the electricity consumption from offices 2 E R R AZEE o
in Beijing, Shenzhen and Nanjin.
Note 2: The conversion factor used to convert data in other units  Fffz¥2 : U8 H b B 7 B B e iR A T RSP AR EY
to kWh is sourced from the Energy Statistics Manual R ER A B AR B M RL R &
issued by the International Energy Agency. EFA o
Note 3:  As the Group is principally engaged in provision of finance  Ff#3F3 : HRAANEBR T EFPRNYEREER

lease services, factoring and advisory services, customer
referral services and the supply of medical equipment in
the PRC, no packaging material was consumed during

the Reporting Period.
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group aims to conserve natural resources and is concerned with
the environmental impact of its activities. The Group encourages
all employees to participate in different kinds of recycling activities
and minimize the use of natural resources. During the Reporting
Period, there is no significant impact on the environment and natural

resources from the operations of the Group.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Awareness over climate change continues to grow and is one of the
most discussed topics among companies. The Group is no exception,
having increasing concerns over the potential impact from climate
change on the Group’s business and operation. The Group regularly
reviews global and local government policies, regulatory updates and
market trends to identify potential climate-related risks which may

have impact on the Group’s business operation.

In accordance to the reporting framework developed by the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there are two major
categories of climate-related risks, physical and transition risks. The
Group will immediately develop a response plan such as changing
the business strategy and modifying the development plan in order to

reduce the negative impacts of such climate-related risks.

The Group will continuously incorporate sustainable practices in its
business operations and prepare and maintain sufficient resources
for managing identified climate-related risks and studying the

potential remediation measures.

During the Reporting Period, there is no climate-related risk,
including physical and transitional risks, which have significant

impact to the Group.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group regards its employees as the cornerstone of its
development, and an integral part to its sustainable development.
Therefore, the Group attaches high importance to the training and
welfare of its employees, and is committed to providing a working
environment of job satisfaction for its employees. The Group puts
much efforts to ensure the statutory rights of its employees be
protected and its strict compliance with a series of labour law of
the PRC, including the PRC Labour Contract Law, the PRC Labour
Law, and the Social Insurance Law of the PRC. The Group provides
competitive remuneration and good promotion opportunities to
facilitate career development of its employees. The Group has a goal

to attract, train, motivate and retain suitable talents.
Employment

The human resources policies of the Group are developed in
accordance with the applicable labour laws and regulations of the
PRC, including the Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC and the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, to protect
its employees’ interests. The asset management department of
the Group has also engaged qualified lawyers in the PRC to closely
monitor updates of the laws and relevant regulatory requirements to

ensure its compliance with relevant regulations.

The Group has formulated its staff manual and management system
of human resources according to relevant labour regulations,
covering human resources policies and working conditions, such
as recruitment and promotion procedures, trainings, performance
appraisals, remuneration and benefits, working hours, vacations and

other leaves (marriage leave, compassionate leave, maternity leave).
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Employee structure

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 86 employees (2022:
48 employees) and all of them are full-time employees located in

the PRC. The distribution of employees by different categories is as

EEEE

M2023F 128318 » REBEHEE86E (20214 : 48
H)EE - HFEVARTRENEZEEES - TR
BIEIDHEE DMINT :

follows:
By gender By age
gk dalE ) RFEERED
7%
33%
28%
67 %
65%
M Male Female B Under 30 years old 30-50 years old Over 50 years old
S g3 305% AT 30E505% 507% A £
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During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate of the Group ~ R¥REHAM - AEE R B Rkt RIRFEFI 2| DM

by categories is as follows: T

Employee turnover rate Note? 2023 2022
18 837 2% b 2 (i) 2023F 20224

By gender

BRSNS

Male 12% 19%
B

Female 32% 21%
gk

By age group

REWRARE D

Under 30 years old 18% 29%
30BRIA T

30-50 years old 20% 20%
30E505%

Over 50 years old 20% -
50B%A £

By geographical region

Ry @& 5

Mainland China 19% 20%
B A e

Hong Kong - =
o

Note 1: The employee turnover rate is calculated based on the {31 : [EERELLL R IRENRE RS AR B

number of employees who left employment in each category BLE B M) A BB LAZZ BRI B B L1 A SR
during the Reporting Period divided by the average number B -

of employees in that category.
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To Attract and Retain Talents

The Group upholds the operational philosophy of optimally using
all available talents and resources and sticks to the employment
principle based on the abilities and morality of an employee. Main
criteria for employment includes morality, knowledge, abilities and
track record of employees so as to make best use of and retain

talents.

The Group provides employees with fair and equitable remuneration
and benefits based on employees’ personal track record,
experience and market benchmark. The Group has formulated a
set of performance appraisal mechanism, in which appropriate
remuneration adjustment is made annually based on job
performance of an employee to reduce turnover rate. To effectively
evaluate and optimise the career life for its employees, the Group
also assists employees to analyse their personal career development
direction according to their own conditions and guide them to
complete the employees’ career development planning form to

establish goals and strategies of their career life.
Benefits and Vacation

To enhance the sense of belonging of employees, foster good
working morale and strengthen cohesion within the Group, the Group
provides various benefits to employees, including contribution to five
types of insurance and one pension fund, and subsidies on lunch,

birthday, transportation and communication and others.

In addition to formulation of reasonable working and rest time
according to local employment laws and system, provision of
statutory holidays and paid annual leave, the Group also provides
additional holidays such as marriage leave, maternity leave and

bereavement leave.

Furthermore, the Group organises a series of employee activities
annually, helping employees to integrate into the corporate culture of
the Group. Meanwhile, relevant training programs are also designed
at the request of various departments so as to enhance employees’

job skills and promote their job satisfaction.
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Inclusion

The Group is determined to creating a fair and equitable working
environment where all employees will be treated equally and no
discrimination or harassment in workplace will be tolerated. No
differential remuneration package is provided based on employees’
gender, age, marriage status, race, religious belief or other
factors irrelevant to the job. If an employee thinks he/she is being
treated unfairly, he/she can report and reflect to human resources
department. Various departments will also implement internal
control. The Group will issue a written warning to any employee in
violation of the regulations of the Group if any unfair case is found or
verified. Such employee will be subject to termination of employment

if the violation is serious.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with
labour laws of the PRC and relevant regulations, and had not been
involved in any event of breach of laws and regulations relating to
employment relationship, compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare which

had a significant impact on the Group.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or

sanctions had been reported during the Reporting Period.
Health and Safety

Due to the nature of the business of the Group, the employees mainly
work in the office and their possibilities of sustaining work injuries
are limited. No serious work injury incident occurred in the Group
during the Reporting Period. As for laws and regulations of the PRC
in relation to the occupational health standards and safe production,
the Group did not record any major non-compliance during the
reporting year. The Group maintains work-related injury insurance
for all employees in accordance with the Social Insurance Law of the

PRC as well as other laws and regulations of the PRC.
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In addition, to foster and maintain a good, comfortable and healthy  F#h » BEEMRIFTR LT ~ AFEMERENIIER
working environment, the Group has implemented a series of 3% ' KEBEHE T — RFIBUK :

policies:

. to maintain obstruction-free emergency access in workplace; . RETIIESHMEZ2E OB
e to provide a workplace with adequate illumination and e REAET R FOREER O TIESA

moderate temperature;

e torestrict smoking in workplace; and . FIEFETESBRE © &
e to conduct safety inspection and training of fire prevention e EHEIT LR 2B MHETTH ARSI
regularly.

Fire safety equipment in the workplace

RIVEGARE Z 2R B
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The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Work Safety Law of the PRC, Regulations on Work-Related Injury
Insurance of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that
has a significant impact on the Group relating to provide a safety
working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards during the Reporting Period.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or

sanctions had been reported during the Reporting Period.

There were no work-related fatalities reported for the years ended 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023. During the Reporting Period, no loss

days due to work injury were noted.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group always puts great emphasis on talent training and
believes that employees’ skills and experience are essential to
promoting the long-term development of the Group. Continuing
education is one of the effective ways to maintain employees’
competitiveness in the industry. Therefore, the Group annually
formulates annual training plan with an aim to enhance employees’
performance through effective training, counselling and in-service
development. The trainings cover various topics, including but is
not limited to, factoring business knowledge, asset management,
business process, qualification training for secretaries of the board

of listed issuers and internal control training for new employees.

The Group organises vocational guidance activities at irregular
intervals and make full disclosure of information relating to
career development in the Group through various channels. The
Group identifies suitable positions and career paths for employees
through an analysis of employees and the Group’s positions in
order to increase employees’ competitiveness. The administration
and human resources department formulates various action and
measures required to achieve employees’ career goals based
on their own conditions, such as participation in various human
resources development and training activities of the Group,
development of their networking, participation in courses outside

working hours and acquisition of relevant knowledge and skills
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During the Reporting Period, the percentage of employees trained  RFREHIMAE @ ZHlEE K& E BT FHZ IR
and the average training hours completed per employee are shown R BH DT ¢

as follows:
2023 2022

2023F 20224
Percentage of employees trained "o " 66% 75%
FIEETE D=
Percentage of employees trained by gender Nt?
RUERE S ZIRENE DLW
Male 70% 56%
St
Female 30% 44%
i
Percentage of employees trained by employee category N2
REEEHESZIRENBE DLW
Senior management 7% 1%
=RERE
Middle management 7% 25%
HRERE
General staff 86% 64%
ERET
Average training hours per employee N°t3) 6.5 hours 2.2 hours
BEREEFHZIRH 6.5/ \ B 2.2/ NB
Average training hours completed per employee by gender Mot 4
R B8 25 BB 8 5T A AT 19 32 31 R B )
Male 7.3 hours 2.5 hours
B 7.3/NEF 2.5/N\EF
Female 5.0 hours 1.8 hours
ogi 5.0/ B 1.8/ \B%
Average training hours completed per employee by employee category MNot4
RIEER R B D BB 8 5T KT 159 32 5l BE g0
Senior management 6.3 hours 5.5 hours
=REERE 6.3/NBF 5.5/]\BF
Middle management 4.0 hours 2.5 hours
hRERE 4.0/ BE 2.5/)NBF
General staff 7.1 hours 1.7 hours
ERET 7.1/NEF 1.7/ )\
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Note 1: Percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing
the number of employees who took part in training by the

number of employees.

Note 2: The percentage of employees trained by category is
calculated based on the number of employees trained in
each category during the Reporting Period divided by the

number of employees who took part in training.

Note 3: Average training hours per employee is calculated by
dividing the total number of training hours by the number

of employees.

Note 4: Average training hours by categories is calculated
by dividing the total number of training hours for
such category by the number of employees in the

corresponding category.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group prohibits the use of forced labour and child labour,
and lists important notes of recruitment process in policies and
procedure of human and administration department. The Group
has stringent requirements for shortlisting employees. In recruiting
candidates for positions below management level, the Group
requests job applicants to provide identity card, academic certificate
of their highest level, professional certificates and employment
separation certificate regarding their former jobs for verifying their

identity.

If the management of the Group finds illegal employment of child
labour or forced labour within the Group, their employment contract
will be terminated immediately by the Group. After inquiry into
the cause and finding out persons held responsible, the Group
will impose appropriate punishment on those in violation of the
regulations. No employment of forced labour and child labour

occurred in the Group during the Reporting Period.
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The Group endeavours to protect human rights, creating a workplace
of respect, sincerity and fairness for its employees and customers,
and comply with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to
employment and labour that have a significant impact on the Group
including the Labour Law of the PRC and the Labour Contract Law of
the PRC. The Group did not record any major non-compliance during
the Reporting Period. No non-compliance with law that resulted in

significant fines or sanctions had been reported in 2023.

OPERATIONAL PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The objectives of the Group are to purchase goods from creditworthy
suppliers and ensure such suppliers provide good products that

meet the standards of the Group.

The Group believes that establishment of sustainable supply chain
and facilitation of interaction and communication with suppliers
and bankers will improve the confidence of customers and other
stakeholders on the Group. Therefore, the Group only maintains
long-term cooperative relationship with medical suppliers and
bankers of good creditworthiness, sound reputation, quality
product and service, good track record and eligibility. The Group's
purchasing scope mainly covers medical equipment, office supplies
and accessories etc. Currently, the Group’s main suppliers are
mostly from the PRC. Focusing on establishing close cooperation
relationship with its suppliers, the Group has been working together
with its suppliers to reduce their impact on the environment from
their production processes while ensuring their provision of quality

products and services.

Although most of its medical suppliers are designated by customers,
the Group has formulated written policies and guidance to monitor
suppliers’ performance regularly in order to track their service
quality more effectively. The Group will cease cooperation with

suppliers who fail to meet its service quality standards.
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During the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers by

geographical region is as follows:

RBEHA - R DOHEFHENT -

2023 e’ 2022 e’

2023 i1 20225 i1
Region
&
Mainland China 34 12
AEpNS
Hong Kong 6 6
&

Note 1: Suppliers refer to suppliers providing products and/or services

to the Group with total contract value of over RMBO. 1 million.
Product Responsibility

The objectives of the Group are to protect customers’ information

and keep customers free of worries.

The Directors and management team have extensive experience
in the financing services industry. The Group provides customised
financial leasing services tailored for customers who are in need
of relevant equipment in their business operations. In addition, the
Group provides its customers with financing and accounts receivable
management as well as consulting services. The Group has an
experienced and stable management team that allows it to deliver

reliable and efficient services to its customers.

In addition, the Group places strong emphasis on the confidentiality
of customers’ information. Although there are no existing laws
and regulations governing privacy in the PRC, in order to gain
confidence from customers and lower the risk of revealing
confidential information by the employees, the Group has established
an internal documentation management system, including
administrative measures for information privacy and implementing
rules for information privacy management, which specifies the
right procedures for the employees to handle the information of
the Company and the customers, so as to enhance the regulatory

mechanism and prevent the leakage of customers” information.
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o employees must have a sense of confidentiality and definitely

do not ask, say or look at anything that they should not;

° talking about or transmitting the Company’s confidential
matters in public places, via public telephones or public

network platforms is strictly prohibited;

° without the consent of the meeting organizers, employees may
not take photos, record or reproduce the confidential matters,

and strict punishment will be imposed once discovered;

° may not throw away drafts, first drafts or outdated documents
at discretion. If there is no retention value, such documents
should be destroyed in a timely manner. Such documents
should be treated as final drafts and be handled according to

confidentiality principles and requirements; and

o documents containing sensitive information of the customers
or the Company should be kept by specified personnel of each
department. Unless necessary, such information should not be

transmitted to other departments.

Moreover, the Group requires employees to sign confidentiality
agreements, which strictly require employees to follow the
rules regarding confidentiality management and the relevant
system established by the Group to perform their confidentiality
responsibilities, so as to protect the interest of the Group.
Confidentiality agreements specify the content and scope that the
staff should keep confidential, their confidentiality responsibilities
and liabilities for breach of contract. If employees disclose or
reproduce any trade secrets of the Group without the Group’s
consent and authorization, the Company will dismiss the employees

and reserve the right to institute legal proceedings.

The Group recognises the importance of intellectual property
protection, therefore it is dedicated to protecting and enforcing the
Group’s own intellectual property rights as well as the intellectual
property rights of third party. The Group will ensure terms in relation
to intellectual property rights are included in the cooperation

agreements between the Group and its business partners.
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Maintaining high quality standard for products and services are the
most important for sustainable development of the Group. The Group
ensures that the medical equipment provided for its customers are
in compliance with the Article 6 of the Regulation on the Supervision
and Administration of Medical Devices of the PRC, the medical device
products shall satisfy the national mandatory standards for medical
devices, and, if no such standard is available, meet the mandatory
industrial standards for medical devices, and registered or filed
product technical specification. The instruction manual and labelling
of the medical equipment are in compliance with the Provision on
the Management of Instructions and Labels of Medical Devices of
the PRC. After-sales and maintenance services are provided for the

Group's customers in order to boost their lifetime value.

During the Reporting Period, there were no recalls of products due to
safety and health reasons and no complaints related to product and

service were received.
Anti-Corruption

The objectives of the Group are to promote anti-corruption, anti-

money laundering and no bribery, extortion and fraud.

All the businesses operated by the Group are in compliance with the
national and local laws and regulations regarding the prevention
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201) of the Hong Kong
Legislation. The Group requires its employees to strictly follow
the requirements of the aforesaid ordinances, in order to prevent

behaviours such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Besides, the Group has established internal administrative rules
regarding anti-corruption, and implemented a comprehensive
mechanism to strictly monitor each employee, ensuring no employee
has any behaviour that violates the discipline, rules and laws, such as
behaviour for gaining personal interests, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. The Group is determined in combating corruption
and contribute in building a corruption-free society. If there are
any suspicious cases, employees can report to the management
in absolute secrecy, and such cases will be passed to the relevant

department for investigation.
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With a view to protecting the Group’s interest, the Group requires
employees to strictly follow the code of conduct listed in the
employee manual. The Group also provides relevant training to
employees regularly with an aim to enhance their awareness on

anti-corruption, money laundering and other illegal acts.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC and other applicable laws
and regulations that has a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering during the Reporting
Period. There was no legal action against the Group or the employees

of the Group for corruption.

COMMUNITY
Community Investment

The Group deeply understands the importance of giving back to the
society, as such, the Group uses the best endeavors in providing
help. The Group encourages employees to participate in community
activities, and to contribute to the sustainability of a harmonious

society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

A. Environmental

(RE - tERERHEEC) R

Disclosures

ARE RESEH
A1: Emissions
A1 B
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws ~ Environmental
—MRBER and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating  I3%
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRBRRIRERBIN - MKRLHPES AEREZEEY
HELSH : @EK  Rb)ETHETAREATZENHERERK
ROINER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data Emissions
FsE IR IR ALY B R AR R R B
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total Emissions
A2 BERBEHNE BE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced Not applicable "’
A3 MELRZERVEE TR
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced Not applicable "%
AL FEXBERZEVEE @RI

A1.5 Description of emission targets set and steps taken to achieve Emissions

them

BE

A15 REATRTSZ AV BERE B R R AR BEL B R EREM SR

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are  Waste production

handled, and a description of reduction targets set and steps EEZRMESE

taken to achieve them

AL6 HEEAERBERZMOE - REMATRIZAHE B

BRAEIELREMERNTR

Notel: During the course of business, the Company did not produce

any chemical or medical-related hazardous waste.

Note2: During the course of business, the Company did not produce
a large amount of non-hazardous waste. Therefore, it did not
include the data of non-hazardous waste in the calculation.

it -

Hiat2 :

AR BIRF TS EE BT T IWARE L (FTEE
KETIER B ZERY) °

ERAIRRG EE BT U EELABEE
BEEY - Bt » FARAIABIEEZEEYZ
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A. Environmental
ARE

Disclosures
BEEEH

A2: Use of Resources
A2 ERER
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI
BASERUER

Note3: The Group’ s business operation does not involve production
process, no packaging material is consumed by the Group.

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water

and other raw materials.

BRERER (B8R  KREMEMH) SOBE -

A2.1
A2.1
A2.2
A2.2
A2.3

A2.3

A2.4

A2.4

A2.5
A2.5

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
RERESNEE R SEERERERES

Water consumption in total and intensity

BRKEREE

Description of energy use efficiency targets set and steps
taken to achieve them

T BE TR RN FRT SL A B AR R A B iE Lk B IR AR EREY
g

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency targets set and steps
taken to achieve them
HAKEERKRRE B EMBE - BRI E R
R EREL B RIRRN TSR

Total packaging material used for finished products

SUk TR BEM B RE
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A. Environmental
ARE

Disclosures

REEH

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 RERRAER
General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI
BSERUER

Aé4: Climate Change
A4 RIREME

General Disclosure

—RINE

KPI
RSEUER

Policies on minimising the issuer’ s significant impact on the

environment and natural resources.

BIEBTARRFERRAERERERTENIR

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them

A1 R EHHRERRAERNEAZERCRNERR
BT ENTH

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-

related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact,

the issuer.

B REHELR AR HBTAELY ENEARKEBEEEN

R

A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them

ALl HRER R AR U BITAELATENEARBKEREE -
FERREEFHTZENTT -

Environmental

BiE

Use of resources

BEREMA

Environmental

B

Climate change

AR
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B. Social
B.#t g

Disclosures
WEEE

B1: Employment
B1: EfE
General Disclosure
— MR BEE

KPI
FRRARUIER

B2: Health and Safety

B2: EREZE
General Disclosure

—fRIN R

KPI

il

ERIERR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b] compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRFHEEE BEREN  IHERE - RY - T5#

g Zlt  REBAREMFERENE @ (a)BER © Kb

BTHERTABERZENMEMERNROINER -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
and geographical region

B1.1 IR - EBEHER - FhcER iR E D RIEAR

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region

B1.2 iR - FEAAR MR D HRERKLLE

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BFRRHZETIFREMREEEREBELLEN : (K

B RbETHETABEARENRBERLROINER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

B2.1 ET{ERARMILT M ABURLLER -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

B22 ATBIEARTIFRL -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B2.3 i TR BRI 2186 - ANAERERITRE
BRITA °
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B. Social
B.#E

Disclosures
WEEE

B3: Development and Training

B3 : R RIEI
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI
A

il

ERIERR

B4: Labour Standards
B4 : B TXH|
General Disclosure
—RRIRER

KPI
RRRABUIER

Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRARTHE B BT TIERE M ANB RN BUR - #aliE3|

EEIR

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management].

B3.1 MR REBER(NSREERE - FREERE)EDH
XlEEBEDLL

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

B3.2 MBI RESERIE D - BREETKIIINFHE
2o

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BREMLEETHRHIETH : (aJIBK : Rb)ETHETAR

BEARENHEBERMROIER

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

B4.1 fitiRsT RIS E Al EE AR R ET MBHIST -

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

when discovered.

B4.2 ful1ESRERBENEERRA RIS AT RN 25K

Development and training

TR RIE

Development and training

R S 35

Development and training

R N 35

Labor standards
8 T8

Labor standards
85 TAR

Labor standards
85 TAR
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B. Social
B.#t g

Disclosures
WEEE

B5: Supply Chain Management

B5 : {HpESEEE
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI
FRRABUIER

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain.
IR HEERANRE LTS EREBUR -

B5.1
B5.1
B5.2

B5.2

B5.3

B5.3

B5.4

B5.4

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

R E D HEERHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

ft G R At EmaED - MERITHRE DR HE
BHA - AREREHNRTRERTE -
Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

B R RS S ERE VIR Rt @ B R e B
5 ARARRARNTIT REEERITE

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

st PR AE (I RO IR R (£ % P IR (R EE mm M IR TS VB 1]
ANABRRIIT REERITEA
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B. Social
B.#E

Disclosures

REEE

Bé: Product Responsibility

B6: EMEE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI
FASRAA

mJH

WIETR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.

ERMRHEERTRBORERLZE BE  BRELES
HIAREHROTEN : (@B - RbJETHRITABEARE

MARRDER LR BINE R
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.

B6.1 EERTEXREmMAH T A% 2RI FIE M m/AR M
BADLE °

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

B6.2 HERARNE M MARFE AR BB A R EETTE -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and

protecting intellectual property rights.

B6.3 fhiuf B2 4 & N RIS AN AR ARV IE D] -

Bé6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

Bé.4 HHILE ST B2 NEREYIZFF

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B6.5 filH B E ERHRIE RFLBEER - URMEERITRER
JIE o

Product Responsibility
EmAE

Product Responsibility
EmAE

Product Responsibility

EmAfE

Product Responsibility
EmAfE

Product Responsibility
EmAl

Product Responsibility
EmEE
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B. Social
B.#t g

Disclosures
WEEE

B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : KES
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI
iz

i

ERIEIR

il

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRI LLRERE - B - BRF RO RER ¢ ()R ¢ R(b)EST

HEITABERTENRBERLROINER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

B7.1 RERPALHTARERERL Y EBENETHA
MBI A MFAARER -

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B7.2 faiutifreiiait M EBWER - A RABRIT RER A

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to

directors and staff.

B7.3 HAAESENE TRRHMRESEI -

B8: Community Investment

B8 : L EBIRE
General Disclosure
—RR 5

KPI
RRRABIER

Note4: During the Reporting Period, there was no legal action against — K4 : RIFELIA - TSR G NE F 5 K& [

the Group and the employees of the Group for corruption. B THIE SHIFRASME -

Policies on community engagement to understand the

needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to

ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.

BRALHE2ERTHREEMELRFENERALEBED

SEBHRNEOBER

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport).

B8.1 HIEREE(MHE - REFE  BIHFK BFE -
Xk - $85) -

B8.2 Resource contributed to the focus areas.

B8.2 HEITHRHIEIRIRA -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN] CO., LTD.
(incorporated in the PRC with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of FY
Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (the "Company”] and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter connectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 120 to 268, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting

policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"] and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs"] issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

HERBEAECRIDENHERABBRR
(R BN ARAR])

=R

HMEERINENE 1208 E 268N ERMEM
ERINBOERAB(EAR]) REKNBAT
(5% [BEE]) 2R B®RE - ZFREWHR
RBER202BF12A3NBOEETBRAE - &
EZRALFENGAERMEMEEKER 58
RRBHR MFARBMERIARLRE MTERRMM
it BRERGEEER

BMRAE  GEMBBRREREEESHAAE
((BEBEHMAg DEMRNBEN B REEAEE
M B R BEBMR2023F12A31BHGE
SRR IA R EZ A I FE MRS B RIE &R
EHReRE WEBRBBQMEPINREREZE
RERE o

RRNER

BPCREZEGFMASRMOTEEZLEL
([BEBERELDETES - WAEZFENTH
BECEARE R BAN B2 A P RERAER
BEE—HPEE— SR - REFBSFEMAE
MK BERGEEER TR A - BB

R BEEE YEETTATFAHEMBEREL - K
15 - RIPIFMESHEZRELR D SEE S

BB AR AR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

FAREXEE

R EZFRDRERMNEFHE - RALEAS
NEFEAMBHREANBEZRAERNFE - ZFFH
DERMPEZEEVBBRREXEEAERRRE
B ZMTEUZSEFTRREERNER

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of finance lease receivables and accounts

receivables

Refer to notes 3, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key audit matter
HRESER

B E R E UK IA K B W AR ORLE

E2HEA M FRRMEES - 19%20

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMRERRNAEEFARERSEE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's finance lease
receivables and account receivables are approximately
RMB8,230,000 and RMB214,299,000 respectively. The
assessment of impairment of finance lease receivables
and accounts receivables under the expected credit loss
("ECL") model requires the application of judgement and
use of subjective assumptions by management.
HZE2023F12A31H ° ESREZBREEERKTAKE
W BR 5K 53 Bl 49 45 A R #8,230,000 7T F2 A R #214,299,000
T HHEERR(RMEEEEDEXETHRENEE
FEW SRR M MR FURERHE R AREAER - RS
EEEERAAE R EREBRRR

We obtained an understanding of the key internal controls
on how the management assesses the impairment of
finance lease receivables and trade receivables under ECL
model.

HME TREEEENAREEREEBIERAFERENR
SRR K B 5 e WK IR R BB H R 5 A BRI -

We performed reviews the credit profiles, guarantors
and the collaterals (if any) as well as external evidence
and factors of finance lease receivables and accounts
receivables on a sample basis, to assess whether
management’s assessment of ECL was appropriate.
BAHERRBR ERARERR(A) - SRR - BE
M E FRUGRIE M U AR R A S TR A - ARHEEIRE
HIEREEBBENTHETEE
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The Key audit matter
BERERSBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RARBLENEEERELEER

We have identified the impairment of the finance lease
receivables and account receivables as a key audit matter
because of the significant management judgement,
assumptions and estimations adopted in the calculation of
ECL allowance and may be subject to management bias.

AP B E B R UGR IR K R AR SR BB R E R RS
%EE  ARETERAEEBRERERRATEARNE
EEHE - REREMATAR

L\I:,A

REEXIEREERENTE -

We also evaluated the parameters and assumptions used
in the measurement of ECL such as criteria for judging
significant increases in credit risk, definition of credit-
impaired financial asset, parameters for measuring ECL
and forward-looking information.

BT EFRREEBHERRAN2ENRR -
EERABRARENNRE  FERESREENTE
EHEEBEN2BNAIRIEES -

We also assessed the appropriateness of the Group's

puball-i

it

disclosure of the impairment of finance lease receivables
and accounts receivables, credit risk grading and the

related credit risk.

TG BERERER A E R UGRIE &R AR SOR
B FERBRIEAREREERRIESE -
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Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Refer to notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key audit matter
HRENLER

BAVEFABENEREENGE

F2RERE

ARz

SRR FEI 16 ©

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMRERRNAEEFARELSER

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are approximately
RMB63,102,000. The fair values of financial assets that
are not quoted in active markets are determined by using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
income approaches, market approaches and option
pricing models. The Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Management judgement and
estimates are required for the selection of appropriate
valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling
techniques.
M2023%12A310 © EEERAFEFABRSNEHE
EZ SO R/AR63,102,0007T  5E B 5 I &R
BzemBEEZ A HEEBEMBGERMERE - A2
Tﬁﬁ%ﬁf”@%ﬂ&)\% - SENEEERS - BEXEE
BERAMSABREE - BREENGERE
&*%*”&m*Eﬁﬁ@f’ﬁﬂi#ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ?

We have identified the valuation of financial assets at fair

R

value through profit or loss as a key audit matter because
of the significance management judgement, assumptions
and estimations adopted in the selection of valuation
techniques and use of significant unobservable inputs and
may be subject to management bias.
HASZRAHEFABENEREENAERTE SRERE
%EE  AREEEGRERNAERAERTAEBRE AR
BREATEANEEEHE  BREGETATEEXE
EEERENTE -

We assessed the selection of the valuation technique and
assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions, which
contained within the fair value calculations including
marketability discount, minority discount and discount
rates, used in the calculations. When assessing the key
assumptions, we discussed with management’s expert
to understand and evaluate management’s basis for
determining the assumptions.
HIFRHA B ERMAER - XFEAERAR
SHARBRENEEN - BREMSRBIETE
BB R - NAEBERERE - RAREEEE
AT @EHEEREEEERR AR

We also engaged our valuation expert to assist us in

FEHENE
D BIHET

E1TIER -

assessing the reasonableness of the assumptions and
discount rates used by management by comparing with
comparable companies with similar risk profiles and market
information.

BATEZREHESE  BBLRARRURARBAETISE
KRB LB AT - BBV RIFIRHEE R B A A RR MAER
KGRI -

We also assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s fair
value disclosure of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

BT eRE EEERATFESABENS
BENEE -

CREENTE
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Impairment assessment on cash generating units of energy

storage business segment

Refer to notes 3, 14, 21 and 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Key audit matter
HREZSBE

HiFEB o BREELEMHRETE

BRI E Y BHRRMTES 14~ 21K%32°

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMRERRNIREFARERER

The Group's cash generating units ["CGU") of energy
storage business segment consisted of certain, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and goodwill with carrying
values of RMB9,071,000, RMB647,000 and RMB1,638,000
respectively as at 31 December 2023. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, no impairment loss was
recognised against plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and goodwill of energy storage business CGU in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").
R2023F12A310 © EERERERBOHMRASELSN
((REELEEN ) BRETHELKRE  EREEENE
2 REED R RARK?,071,0007T - AR 647,0007T %
AE#1,638,0007T - B E20235F 12331 HIEFE - PP E
ARKEMBE([HEDOREEEBRSELEMNEBE LR
- EREEENBBYEEZRERSS

We have identified the impairment assessment of the CGU
of energy storage business segment as a key audit matter
because of the significance management judgement,
assumptions and estimations when performing the
impairment test and may be subject to management bias.
PSR R D B e EE B RER AT AR
BERER  AREETRENRFSRERNEEEH
i RERRGE YEXINERERENTE -

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
reasonableness of the selection of valuation model,
adoption of key assumptions and input data by reference
to the historical information together with other external
available information. In particular, we have tested the
future cash flow forecast prepared by management
on whether it is agreed to the budget approved by the
directors of the Company and compared the budget with
actual results available up to the report date. We have
also evaluated the appropriateness of the assumptions,
including the future revenue, the future expenses and profit
margin, against latest market expectations.
BPNEZEFEERB2ERELEEREMINGAISE
FRFHEHERAEE - BRERNVFARBARENS
Bt AlgE - RAEREREBELNARARERETRA
RS BAREFENTAEETAR  TEREEE
EHRE AR RSN ERFEFLER - RAITEERFHM SR
AR RR(BERKNRE - RERFAXRMNER)RESIEET
BRI
We have also assessed the discount rate employed in
the calculation of value-in-use by reviewing its basis of
calculation and comparing its input data to market sources.
BB A EERBEREANERE - FAREHE
STEEER S H i ABIBRETISIORIELE -
As any changes in these assumptions and input to valuation
model may result in significant financial impact, we have
tested management’s sensitivity analysis in relation to the
key inputs to the impairment assessment which included
changes in future revenue and expenses.
ZERBRAERE 2@ A BUIRNEMEB A e ERE A
FE RIS RENENERE ABE (BRI RS
KA EE) ARERENGREDN -
We also assessed the appropriateness of the Group's
disclosure of assessment of CGU of energy storage
business segment.
BAIEHE BERESREEEEDHRSEEEMFENE
HEEE -
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 March
2023.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. SR E A E R IRHBERA

HttE5|

EREBE2022F12A31B IEFE 2R &M B
RITAR —KRBENEZ - 22 HBE0R 202363 A
ORHZEFHRRERAKLENER -

Hitp&E¥

BERRESAHHEMERNEE - RHERBFEHRN
FHRANZEER - LT EERE M BHRE RA
RS

BPESREMBRERNBERL TIREEMER - ],
T EZFEMEREREFATANER SR

PEZEA P HRAMS - HANEEAHERMD
B YHEMBETFERRMENIDEGANE
Wz ARFIEFLRIETH TRANBAFEEXR
EERUFFEERHERRML - ERERMAZHANITH
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

BAREERAEEMGSMHHRREAK
ENEE

BERRESARERETEGTMAGRANETE
MBHRELNRBBR RPN EER ERERE
M EaiRaBHRE  THERRRERSTH
WRABE T FEBHRGF R M BN E AR
RERILFT BRR R EESI B E

ERBEAVBRERE - EAREFAAR
ity BRENFELERN  YHEEEBERTRE
HEEKEAENER  URERFELLE RS
Hit i ERAREREER BEEEBRAMEL
R EE M E A TTHO R RTTRAERID

AEENAREEE ERENMBHEBE -

BB B GREBRRAENEE

BB RAREEMBHRRBEBEE MFEAR
WEF AR M B RN B RRAMS S RRE
WHEHERMEROZBENRS - WIRREAIH
BERBGRRER BTUERBE)RE - BRI
SMRIEEMAE - RPIBTIRAREHAS - BHE
MEMATREIEERT - AEFREERKFR
& ETRERERBEEEFLEAETEZ - £X
—ERHRRATFER AR - SRR AT K
FFEEEAREIEE - WA IR TRHISE R BRI B B o [ e
K F EERERBATRE M BRRAEL AR
FORTE » AIB R RBRRRIEERX -
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise fERBEBEZELEITEZAAREYT @ BRADE
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism — FREEE T - WA REIZEREE - BT :
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safes wards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e BmkEMEE R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

2023 2022
20234 20224
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
it =E AR®T T ARBT T
(Restated)
(F2E51)
Revenue Wz 5 60,364 29,501
Cost of sales SHER A (41,981) (16,909)
Gross profit ER 18,383 12,592
Other income and gains HAaWA RIES 7 10,938 12,136
Operating expenses AR (9,363) (5,812)
Administrative expenses 1THFX (24,880) (21,234)
Reversal of impairment loss EhE M E WA
(impairment loss) on finance lease FEUARFR &
receivables, accounts receivables and FEY FARS A B FRIE
amounts due from related companies, net ﬂ@@ﬁgﬁé@
ORER1R)F8R 9 10,209 (38,251)
Finance cost BhE A AR 8 (190) =
Share of (loss) profit of an associate AEEEE N T (B8 %= ) (1,010) 1,816
Profit (Loss) before tax BR%t AT 7 (518 9 4,087 (38,753)
Income tax (expenses) credit FiiEHi (B ) e 10 (3,458) 6,058
Profit (loss) for the year Frmfl(E8) 629 (32,695)
Other comprehensive expenses that HES T 5O R
will not be reclassified subsequently to ITE 5 ) HoAth 2
profit or loss: E :
Changes in fair value of financial assets BATHES AR MEE
at fair value through other comprehensive WA Z & @& E )
income (“FVTOCI’) N EZE([RAFE
STAHMEERA | - (555)
Restoration to original cost for o DW= /NI
the investment at FVTOCI subsequently N EFAEMEH
becoming an associate WAZREBEEYG
(DN - (1,914)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FRHEMEEEX - (2,469)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) FAZEBA (BXR)
for the year fazE 629 (35,164)
Profit (Loss) for the year attributable to: J«X;Ifgﬁﬁ:%@fﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ
Owners of the Company PN/ T%ﬁ/\ 4,746 (29,504)
Non-controlling interests FEPEA (4,117) (3,191)
629 (32,695)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) UTATEEEFAZEH
for the year attributable to: WA (B ) 4% -
Owners of the Company ARFIEEA 4,746 (31,973)
Non-controlling interests FEVEARHE RS (4,117) (3,191)
629 (35,164)
Earnings (loss) per share SREF (EE) -
Basic and Diluted (RMB cents) EXNEE(ARED) 11 1.32 (8.21)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BB BINAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2023 2022
20234 20224
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt = AR¥T T AR¥T T
(Restated)
(BE7)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Plant and equipment TR B 5% 14 16,060 21,476
Intangible asset B EE 15 1,630 1,883
Finance lease receivables BhE T E R WGRIA 19 - 300
Accounts receivables FEUBR IR 20 944 21,036
Right-of-use assets EREEE 32 6,890 9,572
Financial assets at fair value through BATERT ABER
profit or loss ("FVTPL") TREE(#RAVE
FTABR]) 16 63,102 48,706
Interest in an associate N A WNEI P 18 50,806 51,816
Goodwill kS 21 1,747 1,747
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE B 22 15,639 17,607
156,818 174,143
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 23 4,619 634
Finance lease receivables B AT E R GRIA 19 8,230 14,940
Accounts receivables e AR R 20 213,355 98,417
Contract asset BHEE 17 - 4,572
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FANZIE - 54 &
H h e Y 5RIE 24 9,248 12,049
Amounts due from related companies FEU BRHE R B FIE 25 30,116 22,026
Amount due from a non-controlling interest  FEURIEHEASHE S HFRIE 25 1,900 1,900
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFESEHFED 26 62,263 182,949
329,731 337,487
Current liabilities nEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 NE MR FIE 27 19,169 22,268
Receipts in advance TAWRIE 28 212 1,090
Contract liabilities /BHEE 29 - 293
Amount due to a related company FEAST BAESE R B FRIE 25 = 7,200
Amount due to a non-controlling interest P FE1E AR M 2 B IR 25 = 13,900
Lease liabilities HERE 32 2,470 2,681
Bank borrowing RITEE 31 5,000 -
Tax payables JER IR 4,947 5,003
31,798 52,435
Net current assets REBEEFE 297,933 285,052
Total assets less current liabilities EELBERRBERE 454,751 459,195
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REPBINAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

2023 2022
20234 20224
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt = AR¥T T AR¥T T
(Restated)
(&)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Receipts in advance TalRIA 28 - 551
Deposits from finance lease customers REMEHERP R
and suppliers HEmRES 30 - 1,863
Deferred tax liabilities BLERIERE 22 161 199
Lease liabilities HERE 32 3,784 6,095
3,945 8,708
Net assets EEFE 450,806 450,487
Capital and reserves EARRf#EE
Share capital AR 32 359,340 359,340
Reserves i 38 84,505 79,616
Equity attributable to owners RATEE AEEER
of the Company 443,845 438,956
Non-controlling interests FEIERR RS 6,961 11,531
Total equity FERAEEE 450,806 450,487

The consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 268 were £ 120B £ $ 28BN EAMBBREEEEZTSRN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 202443327 B #L/& RIRRETIEE - WH FIIALE

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: =2
LI Peng Z=ff8 WANG Jianxing & H#
Director 2% Director 2%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGN

Financial
asset at Non-

Share Merger Capital  Statutory FvTiocl Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BATEFA
A2 ENA
fer
R ARE  EARE  iRRE  HERE  REE & FEREs  BEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
(note [al) [note (b)) (note [c])
(Makal)  (WsEbD) (G

At1 January 2022 (as originally stated) 20221818 (R25) 359,340 1582 31,097 17795 2469 63,304 475,987 - 475,587
Effects on adoption of Amendments REesEl

10 HKAS 12 (Note 2 bz i) - - - - - 1 i - 11
At1 January 2022 (as restated) 202251518 (BE5) 359,340 1582 31,097 17795 2489 63315 475,598 - 475,598
Loss for the year (as restated) EREEEES]) - - - - - (29,504) (29,504) (3191) (32,695
Other comprehensive expenses A2 ERR
- Changes in fair value of financial assets ~ —ZATEFTAZBZENAN

atFvToC SRARIATEED - - - - (555) - (555) - (553]
- Restoration to original cost for -BERARERAZRATE

the investment in FVTOC SARMEERAZ

subsequently becoming an associates REREEARA - - - - (1.914) - (1914) = (1914)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year ~ FMZARZ LR - = - - (2469 (29,504) (31.973) (3191 (35,164
Appropriation to statutory reserve BAEERE = = - 485 - (485) - - -
Dividends paid (Note 12) BfifRE(Hi2) - - - - - (6,669) (4,669) - (6,669)
Business acquisition (Note 42) e UR) - - - - - - - 5,432 5,43
Capital contribution by non-controlling SRR A (W)

interests [note (d]] - - - - - - - 9,290 9,290
At 31 December 2022 R2023E128318 359,340 1982 31,097 18,280 = 28,657 438,956 11,531 450487
At 1 January 2023 (as originally stated) R2023F1 518 (R31) 359,340 1,582 31,097 18,260 - 28,767 439,066 11,619 450,688
Effects on adoption of Amendments BB SRR 125

10 HKAS 12 (Note 2 ya(Mi) - - - - - (110l (10 (8] (198)
At1 January 2023 (as restated) 202351518 (BE5) 359,340 1,582 31,097 18,280 - 28,657 438,956 11,531 450,487
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income A (B51E)

[expenses] for the year REENE(F)EE - - - - - 4,746 4,746 (6,117) 629
Appropriation to statutory reserve BAEERE = - - 196 - (196) = = =
Deemed capital contribution arising Wﬁﬂﬁmﬁé?ﬁ%ﬁﬁiz

from the waiver of amount due to non- RiEARTE

controlling interest - - 3,900 - - - 3,900 - 3,900
Acquisition of additional equity interest WiEk2 B AR RE

ina non-wholly owned subsidiary (Note (b))~ (Ff&E(b]) - - (3,757) - - - (3,757) (453) (4,210)

At 31 December 2023 R2023E12A31A 359,340 1,582 31,260 18,476 - 33,207 443,865 6,961 450,806
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREBE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

Note:

The nature and purposes of reserves within equity are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c]

(d]

Merger reserve

The merger reserve amounted to approximately RMB1,582,000 as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022 represents the different between
the consideration and the nominal value of share capital of Beijing
Shan Shan Medical Technology Development Co., Ltd ("Beijing
Medical’), a subsidiary of the Group pursuant to the business
combination under common control.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Company represents (i) the difference of
the shares issued at premium over par value, net of share issue
expenses, [ii] waive of amount due to non-controlling interest
of Ningbo Shanshan Contract Energy Management Co., Ltd, the
subsidiaries of the Company, agreed to waive the outstanding
balances during the year ended 31 December 2023 as set out in
Note 25(d] to consolidated financial statements, and (iii] acquisition
of the Company acquired additional equity interest in the
subsidiaries Ningbo Shanshan Contract Energy Management Co.,
Ltd, amounting to approximately RMB4,210,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") and Articles of Association
of the company incorporated in the PRC now comprising the Group,
i.e. the PRC Operational Entity, it is required to appropriate 10% of
the annual net profits of the PRC Operational Entity, after offsetting
any prior years’ losses as determined under the PRC accounting
standards, to the statutory reserve fund before distributing any net
profit. When the balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the PRC Operational Entity, any further
appropriation is at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory
reserve fund can be used to offset prior years” losses, if any, and
may be capitalised as capital, provided that the remaining balance
of the statutory reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of
registered capital.

It is represented by the capital contribution by non-controlling
interests of Jiangsu Anshi Commercial Energy Storage System
Co., Ltd and Guangdong YuanYu Jishi Xinxi Technology Limited,
the subsidiaries of the Company, after the acquisition as set out
in note 42 during the year ended 31 December 2022, amounting
to approximately RMB8,800,000 and approximately RMB490,000
respectively with no change in the ownership interests.

Kt -

BmARFEAMEERE R

(a)

)

(c]

(d]
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=N

20234 R 20224F 12 31 AW & GFE B A A
E#1,562,0007T - EIRIEHFIFEHE T Y F75
EHAEENE NI REE BRI ERE
R 2 5] ([ A BB | ) (1B R AN ETEZE 7R -

KR BB E A GH 5 (1) 12 B (1B S 7T A9 R (7
BIZE (B RGE7THS) - i) B E20234F
12A31HILFE - FIEMEAXREINE L A
BREEA RIERERER ] EN IR
BIB R KB ERE (BR A B HREN
25(d)) « Rlii)& E20234 12531 A 1L F/&F » &K
RAREEHIB A A1 R EEAFIEREEER
REIRTEEIINRAE - 2 EBHIABARE4,210,0007T -

SETE R

WRIZHEARHFIE ([ B ) 16REEER K
A EE A IE T Bl A 2 2 7 (BN ]
BERR)ABMERAER  REHRES E
BT EREE R B FRERE  HAR
TR AE AT F 5 o BIAE & B R 4 2 )F FIAIA.
10% B EEEMBER ° WEEREEAAFET
RS & TR M E AR a950% » (Ff i — 5%
KRR ERTE < EZEFHEE AR AH
BEFEER(WE)  LAERERRA 1
REBETEEZEREE R TRBTRELR
A MERRI25% °

FEBCZ 202249 12 31 H 1F F BT # L0 & H
BHERABERAGRER TFEAIE BRI
BR 2 a] (KRBT 42 BT 8L B 14 19 B 2K 1 el
BARA])ZHERERHE  FFIBAREL
8,800,0007T K #IA E#490,000T - AT A #E#EZ
A fEEE) -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2023 2022
2023F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities RETEZRERE
Profit (loss) before tax BRPrAS A AR A (E518) 4,087 (38,753)
Adjustment for: SAELATRIA
Bank interest income RITHEHA (2,666) (2,372)
Depreciation of plant and equipment B R ETE 3,497 3,895
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 2,698 2,217
Amortisation of intangible asset & 253 253
loss on written off of plant and equipment [R5 B 5% s SE s 18 2,065 =
Change of fair value of financial assets BRATHEFTABEN SR
at FVTPL, net BEZATEES
R 800 1,294
(Reversal of impairment losses) JEWER R R ETHE
impairment loss on accounts and JFEWRIE OR B B 1B 1
finance lease receivables, net 1) R (EEE - JFEE (10,614) 38,689
Impairment loss (reversal of FE UK AR X B SR IEDR(E S
impairment loss) on amounts BOREBERE)
due from related companies 405 (438)
(Reversal of impairment loss) BHEECRERBE
impairment loss on contract asset B )R EEE (49) 49
Impairment loss on other receivables HAb R IR (B 18 693 1,351
Interest expenses on bank borrowings RITIERAEFX 82 -
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBBNEMX 479 347
Imputed interest income on E Z EWRIER)
trade receivables HEE R SUWA (623) (457)
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HERE KR EE KR (128) (1)
Loss on termination of leases KIEHEEE 36 =
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEZRAFERTA
at FVTPL B r S RE AR (1,609) -
Share of loss (profit) of an associate AEEE S R R (E518) & A 1,010 (1,816)
Operating profits before working capital EEESEHAIN
changes Spinvl 416 4,258
Increase in inventories FEEMN (3,985) (591)
(Increase) decrease in finance leases and A& HE R UGRIE
accounts receivables R U BR R (3800 ) R A (76,599) 151,358
Decrease (increase) in contract asset aREERD (M) 4,621 (4,621)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, A - ZS REAM
deposits and other receivables FEWGRIER A (38 0) 2,108 (6,439)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 MEMERFIER A (4,962) (36,348)
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities SRBECRD )L (293) 293
(Decrease) increase in receipts in advance  FEUWFKIE (4> )10 (1,429) 21
Increase in amounts due from related FE U B~ 7
companies FRIBIE AN (15,695) =
Cash (used in) from operating activities e EE(FTA)MERSE (95,818) 107,931
Interest received B WS 2,666 2.372
Income tax paid BT (1,584) (2,021)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities ~ #&&&EEN(FTR ) FT15E
REEER (94,736) 108,282
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

2023 2022
20235 20225
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
By & AR¥ET T AR¥T T
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBZRERE
Proceeds from disposal of plant and HEME &REZ ST
equipment 15 1,999 3,254
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~ HE&ERATFET ABZFH
at FVTPL TREE L FISHIR 4,613 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BBE¥%¥ - K5 N&E (2,017) (4,862)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEZRATHERT ABRN
TREE (18,000) (35,000)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTOC| BERATESAHEME
HBRANEREE - (34,465)
Acquisition of subsidiaries YeBE P 2 A 42 - (3,634)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTARSFHR (13,605) (74,707)
Cash flows from financing activities REIECRERE
New bank borrowing raised FBIRITRER 5,000 -
Acquisition of additional equity interest in WE—FKIE2EHRE
a non-wholly owned subsidiary il PNSIE RN 2 (4,210) =
Interest elements of lease rentals paid BEfHERSF S (479) (347)
Capital elements of lease rentals paid ENEERSERES (2,574) (3,249)
Capital contribution by non-controlling FEIER R HE
interest - 9,290
Repayment to a non-controlling shareholder fEE—XKMBARZ—%
of a subsidiary IR AR R 5RIE (10,000) =
Interest paid EASHLE (82) =
Dividends paid EAERE - (4,669)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities R&EEE (FrH)FBEE
HEE 38 (12,345) 1,025
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RERALEEWORED)
cash equivalents by iipezdoc] (120,686) 34,600
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNRERFASEEY
beginning of year 182,949 148,349
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRAESRECEEY 62,263 182,949
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ("the Company”] was
established in the People Republic of China (the "PRC")
on 7 December 2012 as a sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise and was converted to a joint stock company with
limited liability under the Company Law of the People Republic
of China (the "PRC") on 10 September 2015. The address of
its registered office is Room 201, Block A, No.1, Qianwan
First Road, Qianhai Shenzhen- Hong Kong Cooperation Zone,
Shenzhen, Guangdong, the PRC and the principal place of
business is Room 1603, Cheung Kei Building, No.128 Xinzhou
11th Street, Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, the PRC.
The Company listed shares ("H Shares”) have been listed on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 23 May 2017.

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of finance

leasing, sale-leaseback, factoring and advisory services.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of finance
leasing, sale leaseback, factoring, advisory services, trading of
electronic products, investments holding, provision of 5G base
stations site space and energy storage business in the PRC.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The functional currency and presentation currency of the

Company and the subsidiaries are Renminbi ("/RMB").

—RER

ERBERECRID RO BRABN20124F
12A7TREREAREMBE([HREA]) KA
RINEBREADEIR2015F9 108 1RIE
(REAREMBEARNE)SHIARMDBRA
7] o HifEmmit AP BERS FIIm
AERBAERATE — B I15ARR201E » £
DA AT B ERERYITE B EFM
T 128 EEKRE1603F - ARR) L™
BD (THER ) 82017455 A 23 AR B R & B
BRBHBR AR ([BRFT)GEM £ -

ARRIERUEREREME  ERAE
PRI 2 iE R ARTS ©
AEEETERNTERFRERERE - €18
e - RE - BARY ETERES K
B - RHSCEISH = KL ET o
HT BB AR RBHNMIFESS -

ARRRMBERRNINGEEE R 2GRS
ARE(TAR®E]D -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. FERSEMERELEN([HEBHK

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HER )
(“HKFRSs”)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily NE R A AV HTE] RIS ] BB B
effective for the current year R 52
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time, the RAFEE  XEBDBXERTEBEE:
following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong MAg((BERETMAE]) BHNHIR
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA"), RIEFT BB B HREER([BEBHBREE
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period Al]) - ZELERREFTABREEWE2023F
beginning on 1 January 2023: 1 A1 B FRFE B S £
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BB REERE175 REBAEL
(including the October (82020510 A k20225
2020 and February 2022 AR BRI B REER
Amendments to HKFRS 17) FNTRIETH)
Amendments to Hong Kong  Definition of Accounting ERePER([EBETE e E(BIN)
Accounting Standard Estimates Bl ) E8RIERT AR
("HKAS") 8
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets BRGTENERBIA HE-QRFELEZEE
and Liabilities arising from LB EEE RS
a Single Transaction 18
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar BB ENF12RETAR  BEBEBHIRE-—SH
Two model Rules TEHRA
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting ERSHHENSE1ER BEREIBER
and HKFRS Practice Policies BRMBREENEL
Statement 2 WEFWRBIA
Except as described below, the application of the new and B TPt E SN - IRANFEE fE B FA] R A S
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no BB BEREELHARAEEBNRAFE B
material impact on the Group's financial positions and FFEENNTERRARKRBR,UZELE
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the PSRRI EER T EEATE -

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting

Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 Making Materiality Judgements provide guidance and
examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help
entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more
useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose
their ‘significant” accounting policies with a requirement
to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding
guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in

making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions, but has
affected the disclosures of accounting policies as set out in

note 3.

ERERBMBEREEN(EFEME
HER @)

R A AV R AMERT BB R

B ELER ()

ERAEBEENEIRNREBYHRE
HABEBREB2RBIT R - RESFTR
R E

ARG EAE IR LB BN BREERER
HHRIFMEFTAMEHEAH IR IEE MNP
& NEDERE S BRBRBEAER
HHE - B AR ERDERIEHREEAN
SRR RE  SERREE [EAISHRK
ROBREROWEE [T 2 |S5TBERNE
Ko WRMEBIRR A N EREZ MK
FHSMIEESEN ST BRNBAIRE

FERZEEFIAHARENTBRIR LM
WEEATE  BEESTBRRNEE @ 5F
RHIEES ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

The amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on
initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
liabilities. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at that
date. For all other transactions, the amendments are applied to
those transactions that occur after the beginning of the earliest

period presented.

The Group previously applied HKAS 12 requirements to
the relevant assets and liabilities as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to relevant assets and liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Upon application of the amendments,
the Group has recognised a separate deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with the right-of-use assets and the

lease liabilities.

The Group recognises the cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings at the beginning of the earliest period
presented.This change in accounting policy did not have any
impact on the cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022
and 2023.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7

EREREMBEREEN(EFEME
HER @)

REEIRGIE M RAEETT BB
s 2R ()

RSB ERSE 12585 ABEE — 37
SEECEERGEHBZELERIENE
488

=

BRI ERF12REFT AL T HRER
HERERAEABEREEHAEENSE
B E A BE R R )2 MR b E £ A F R
RATURERZENR S WHEREREE
£ At BEREARZERFELENERZE
RERIEEHIRE E(EAS R ERN G
M) FRERIAE RS - ZFERTANEERAN R
R 27 B E MRREEHEEN
R5  TRRFAEEERAREREBZF D
PREREV B SN 7% B R s E A AR AR AR 2 (i
) - BRAAREMRS ST AERNE
FE2RMFPRRELENKS -

EBEHEREERAGBERBERARR
HERIFI2RNRE - EAEEERAE
M E R IROFEEEETIE - RE
ERIANE - AEBEEREERESENE
%*EE%E’\JFEEEI?DE%&BEE%%%’*H%%E
PIEREERAEE R EEHARE -

N

v E e

\

ﬂzwﬁﬁfm@*}

AEBKERERAZET AN RTHE
%Fﬁiwmiﬂﬁ%mﬁm%ﬂ%m%%
BT - ZIEG SR F I R EZF 2022
FR2023F12A3HIEFENRSREES
FAIRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FEAHEBHEREEDN(EHEBEE

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) wmEER ) ®)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily INFE E R E| £ EHE] B &M1EE] & BBt

TSR ()

R BT ERAE 1258 REE — %
SEEZEERAGHEBZIELEN AN

effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction (Continued) 2(%)
The effect of change in accounting policies as a result of AEREBLHERF 12T AEHNE

S HE TS B R B 2 U s 2 A
R EBREF (82T ¢

application of amendments to HKAS 12 on the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and earnings (loss) per share are as follow:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2023 December 2022
BZ2023F BZE2022F
12A31H 12A31H
ILFE LFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T
Impact on profit (loss) and total HEREF(BR)R2H
comprehensive income (expenses) WA (B BENSE
for the year
Decrease in income tax expense (credit) PSR (e )R 41 (209)
Increase in profit (loss) and total AT ALTREEBRET ()
comprehensive income (expenses) REEWA (F ) @FEE M -
for the period attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Company - NAFIERFFEA 26 (121)
- Non-controlling interests - FEIE AR RS 15 (88)
41 (209)
Impact on basic earnings (loss) per share ¥&ERERZER(FE)NE
(RMB Cents) (AR¥5)
Basic earnings (loss) per share TR
before adjustments %$73§7’TU(J§§T§) 1.32 (8.21)
Net adjustments arising from change SHBREDHESE
in accounting policy E’]uﬂ%ﬁ*%ﬁi - -
Reported diluted earnings (loss) 2HRFREERN (EBE)
per share as restated (#&5&31)) 1.32 (8.21)
Impact on diluted earnings per share HERBBERANTE
(RMB Cents) (AR¥Z)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share before R EREERR (ER)
adjustments 1.32 (8.21)
Net adjustments arising from change BRTBUREEELEN TR FE
in accounting policy = =
Reported diluted earnings (loss) KEY|FTIRe BREER T
per share as restated (E18) 1.32 (8.21)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FEAHEBHEREEDN (BB

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) HEA D #®)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily INEE R VTR RIS BB
effective for the current year (Continued) R EZER (&)

FEREBETHERF125R BRI A EE -
SEECZEEREENEREZIELER BN

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from

132

a Single Transaction (Continued) Z(%E)
The effects of change in accounting policies as a result of
application of amendments to HKAS 12 on the consolidated of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and earnings
(loss) per share, are as follows:

At 31 December

SR A B2 R A2 A DA B SRR (5
1B EREERERIE RIS AL B
REBTEWT

At 31 December

2022 Adjustments 2022
20225 A20225F
12A31H R 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR%T T AR¥T T

(as originally
stated) (Restated)
(R23%) (&=7)
Deferred tax assets EETR IR E 2= 17,606 1 17,607
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEBE - (199) (199)
Reserves EE 79,726 (110) 79,616
Non-controlling interests JEFERR A A 11,619 (88) 11,531
Total effect on equity HERNR R 91,345 (88) 91,257
Total effect on net assets HEEFENTERRE 450,685 (198) 450,487
At 1 January At 1 January
2022 Adjustments 2022
20225 A2022F
1A1H8 FE 1A1H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T

(as originally
stated) (Restated)
(RE%) (RE7)
Deferred tax assets FIEFRTBE B 14,442 11 14,453
Total effect on equity Fap EaipZ ki 116,247 11 116,258
Total effect on net assets HEEFENTEES 475,587 11 475,598
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TN

AR ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but are not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
the related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Convenants'

Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements'
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

) Effective for annual periods beginning on or a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

ARe ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, at the end of

each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement

are explained in the accounting policies set out below.
The material accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii] exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s

returns.

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of these elements of control stated above.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TN

AR ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses

control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and non-controlling
interests according to the Group's and non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations
Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to

continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets or HK[IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, in which
the Group applies HKIS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of
the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination. Contingent assets are not

recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TN

AR ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that the lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the lease
term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable

terms of the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree [if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree [if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit

or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

[Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to

each of the Group’s cash-generating units that is expected to

benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or groups of cash generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment

loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an

associate is described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is

not control or joint control of those policies.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the associate is recognised as goodwill and is included in the

carrying amount of the investment.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill] is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal] with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequently increases.

No dividend income from the investment in an associate is
recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment has

been established.
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FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Impairment losses on plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than
impairment of goodwill set out in accounting policy of
goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets with finite useful life to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss [if any).
The recoverable amount of plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating unit, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Impairment losses on plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than
impairment of goodwill set out in accounting policy of
goodwill) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash generating unit]
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable]
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurablel, its value in use (if determinable] and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit] is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued]

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months.
The lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group measures
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that
are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed lease payments [including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date; and

J payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

[Continued)

Leases (Continued)]

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,

less lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the

commencement date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
operating leases. The Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset, therefore, those lease are classified as operating leasing

as lessor.
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments

and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EEeHBEEE )

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers REEZEFEHNNNE

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised AEEBRREARBRARFER &HE R
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects R  ZeBERMEREBHARARERR
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in ZEEMBEEBSHRE -

exchange for those goods.

Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue HEMS @ AEEHEBRESEERKE

recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer o F—F: BRERPIIMNEH

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the o FH:HAEGHNNBENERML
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price e F=H:EEXRHER

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance o  ENH : BRSEROMEAYBHE
obligations in the contract £

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity s FRF: BEER)EBTHBELEER
satisfies a performance obligation RS o

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance REETHRBLE R (St ) #ER

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or ﬂ?é?ﬁi@%@ﬁff*ﬁ@ﬁﬂ'\]‘ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%mH i

services underlying the particular performance obligation is | EE PR o

transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service that BABTHEARE—NERIRBH—F
is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are substantially DI EARNMRNRAEE R °
same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

o The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or

enhanced; or

o The Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the

Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal] or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent). The Group is a principal if
it controls the specified good or service before that good or
service is transferred to a customer. The Group is an agent if
its performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of
the specified good or service by another party. In this case, the
Group does not control the specified good or service provided
by another party before that good or service is transferred to
the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which
it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the

specified goods to be provided by the other party.
Contract assets and contract liability

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’'s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required

before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has

received consideration from the customer.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract

asset or a net contract liability is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contract assets and contract liability (Continued)]

The Group recognised revenue from the following major

sources:

o Advisory service fee income

o Sales of goods - energy storage system

o Sales of goods - electronic products

o Energy storage solutions and general construction
Revenue for the provision of advisory services

Revenue for the provision of advisory services is recognised at

point in time when the services have been rendered.
Revenue from sales of goods - energy storage system

For revenue from sales of goods - energy storage system
provided by the Group, the Group entered the contract with the
customers. The Group determined that revenue from sales
of goods is recognised at point in time when the goods are

delivered to and have been accepted.

ERETTHEER )

REESE

BREERGNEREH#E)

WS (&)

AEBRAKE N T EBFOREKES -

HHEARERENE R —FHERRELN
Wams » AERERFTFIINLAH - A%ME
EE  HEEMMKRENERTUAZNRE

TERE MBS HERR

2023 ANNUAL REPORT EE 4

147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

148

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contract assets and contract liability (Continued]
Revenue from sales goods - electronic products

For revenue from sales of goods - electronic products
provided by the Group, the Group entered the contract with the
customers. The Group determined that revenue from sales
of goods is recognised at point in time when the goods are

delivered to and have been accepted by customers.
Revenue from energy storage solution and general contraction

The Group has determined that for contracts with customers
for the provision of energy storage solution and general
construction, which refer to the construction of energy
storage system. Such contracts are entered into before the
services begin. Under the terms of the contracts, the Group
is contractually required to perform the construction works
and services at the customers’ specified sites that the Group's
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs. Revenue from provision of
such construction works and services (including materials and
equipment, construction services and design and consultancy
services components) is therefore recognised over time using
input method, i.e. based on the actual costs incurred by the
Group to date compared with the total budgeted cost for the
project to estimate the revenue recognised during the year. The
management of the Group considers that input method would
faithfully depict the Group's performance obligation under
HKFRS 15.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7

ERETTHEER )

REFFENNWEE)
BREERENEE(E)
HEER - EFEMNKE

Eﬁ%%$ ERENER—ETERELED
Wezs CAREEERFEIVAEY c AEE
BT iﬁ%‘ﬁ%ﬁ’]”ﬁlﬁﬁ’:‘%ﬁﬁiﬁ%g}é&
EERPERMARTER o

v

KB RBERRT R K —RIEER) ek

AEBEET @ BEEPFFIZMIZMHHEELR
AFTRR—BBENEGNMNS  BFE B
BHOEMF @ BIRERERS - ZZA R
BIRERBRIE - BEBESABKK - A5E
BIEENHETERPECHEARREETRE
RRH - ABAEBEKBHELSRERAR
SEBRARBEPIEFNEE - Bt - =214#
ZERETRERRE(REYR REE - &8
AR %% I 2% 5t M5 A AR TS EB 9 ) T E A By Mz £
BIRAEBERRER  REASEELES
AR ERRAC A AR TE B M TEE A AN ML
8 AR FEABERNORE - AEEERE
RAE - BANEBREERMAEERE BTG

EREAFIFETHROET - HEBGIR
BAEKIERRA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EE@:EHEFEER (&)
[Continued)]

HA R A W
BRARR D NREDE

B S —REEMAMKED k—EZHE
MESCFHEERBINANME - A%E

Revenue from other sources
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group

allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease RIBHSEXI D NBEBLERLIFEE
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the BB EFT B BRELEEGHRE

DEERHEBEEEARED °

lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

As a practical expedient, HKFRS 16 permits a lessee not to ERERER LA  BBMBHmELERFE16
separate non-lease components, and instead account for SKAABATNEIERERKILD P - M
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single ERAEMEERBAFEETS S IERE—%
arrangement. HEARR o

Finance leases income BEHEEUA

1R 5w & T & PR BURFE A SRIB IR AN S E A
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net EMFRESHERRARBKIE - IEHRE
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to WADEEZEeHE  UWrREBAEBEHEE
ANEEREFENEE A EHRE -

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are

accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Income from sale-leaseback transactions

The Group act as a buyer-lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the requirements
of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of asset, the Group
as a buyer-lessor does not recognise the transferred asset and
recognises account receivables equal to the transfer proceeds

within the scope of HKFRS 9.

Factoring income

EREETZ WA
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EREN—HBAATHRCEREE @ Wi
RO o B 7% S 5 2 R 56 9 51 8 [ P B o Wi
MR HY YR -

RIBUIA

&R B H (R IZ AR B IR AL BB 22 B

The Group's factoring income arise from the provision of

factoring services to companies located in the PRC. RARIZARTS o

Energy storage service income fRBERRFE WA

The Group, as a lessor, accounts for the provision of energy AEB(MEAEAAN) BIREMEERBEAKRAS
storage service as operating lease, such revenue is recognised LETE AW TR E R AR 25
over the lease period with variable lease payment. Variable ERNERRER o WIERIEE — sk th Ry a]
lease payment not based on index or rate are recognised as FHHENRTNELRFEZSRA -

revenue as incurred.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Revenue from other sources (Continued)
Provision of 5G base stations site space

The Group, as a lessor, accounts for the provision of 5G
base stations site space as operating lease, such revenue is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease period. Lease

payments are fixed.
Intangible asset
Intangible asset acquired separately

Intangible asset with finite useful lives that is acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible asset with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,

if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated

statement of financial position include:
(a) cash and bank balance; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other

purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents

as defined above.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first in, first out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Cost necessary to make
the sale include incremental cost directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to

make the sale.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and

deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination] of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Taxation (Continued)]

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

ERETTHEER )

BIR(E)
EEHBARBRDZEARMBARNKRE - 1

BENR LG BRI 5 B BRI
ER R MER - FRIFANEE AR T
EZROBR O R TR ZRERAT BN A B AR
RO o MZEREARN AT R E
BAEEREERAEE  ERRATER R
SRFE SR T ) AT LA BT S R RO A s AL TR
HRR BT R A6 SR AT LA SRS (o] 5 R,

BEERIERE 2 RHESNESREPRET
WAf - WA BRI BEA & MR TE M AR
Wm Ak #l D B ERRIELIRD

EERIRE E N B EARSE HRATE R
B FEEMORE(RBUR) RER - 28
HBEZRERERZEENRERMNDER

CEE

EEHBRRREENERRAKEER
SHMRBEHUCOHBEEEER B EREE
BT AT RR o

2023 ANNUAL REPORT EE 4

153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

154

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. EfR @& E CFI) RO BER A 7

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Taxation (Continued)]

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to

settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the lease liabilities and the related assets
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all

taxable temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and

when employees rendered the services.
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to stage-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

services entitling them to the contributions.
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated

impairment loss.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowings costs are recognised as expenses in the

period in which they are incurred.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e., the currency of the
primary environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.
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FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets
are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured
at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVTOCI"), and fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing

them.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to

impairment.

ERETTHEER )

SRITH#)
TREE

PIENLR G EEENSREETRRSH
HEWRRKILER - ERSEECEEREX
RIS ER BRI R ENREARNEEN
TREEERE -

BYCREENDE  FACHERATHMEE
BEEHMABERAKATENE - 2BE
ERTIRHERR D BERRERBHRAN - &2
RNFEFARMEERA(TEAPEFAR
o2 EBA |) Mg A FEFABE([RAF
Bt ABE DAE -

TREENVIGEREN D ERTERMEE
MENREREFRMASEEERFTEE
MR MIE

EREENDBRRETE

58 TOGRM & BlE ER B R HK A

=

=

o REASHRSREREMNILEERX
THEBNSREE &

o ANBFNEEAMELNREREM
BRXNAERREEREZHE

REHEKAIRN e R EERRRBERT
FRAERATARE °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest

income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts] excluding expected credit losses, through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt

instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss

allowance.

For financial assets, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit impaired [see below].
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on
the credit impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross

carrying amount of the financial asset.

ERETTHEER )

SRITH#E)
SRS R A B A

BERMEFRADAEEHE T E 2 BHEKARR
BRI BN SWAZTTE

HREMEEME - ERMREEITRE
BT A Z A A] 2 A F g sE BE (E
) AfEARRB S WA (BREEXERHN X
PRI ERER D 2 B E Wz — 8 A KA
REE  XHUAREMEESTE - T
REHREEER) 2N ERERE TANKRE
ARERFIR -

TREENBHERANIE S BEER Y6 HER
REfEMSRRATER  MLVaeEE
IR EREREAERMNEAEN
Rt EHEGLEREBERBEELRAE) - &8
BEEMNRAAERSREENTMNERRE
1 B B AV SRR o

HREMEEMS @ MERABRHERE
ENRAAEERAERMEGE - HERERH
BEERENEBREERINETX) - siE
BREBREERENEREENS © MBKA
BB & B A B RO SH K R B R B R ) R R
R MEHERRESHE  EERESRTIA
MEERRBUNRE  FEREETHEE
BE - MEWAZBESREENREAE
FE R BRI R R -

2023 ANNUAL REPORT EE 4

159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EEeHBEEE )

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) TRIAE)

Amortised cost and interest income (Continued) BIER A RREWA ()

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to CRIEERIBBEEBYBEmELERFE R AE
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 TRERHE 2 IR B 2 RE

The Group performs impairment assessment under AREBEIBEE AU SRS ERFES/AEE
expected credit loss ["ECL") model on financial assets TREMGZSREE(BRANEE @&
(including contract asset, finance lease receivables, accounts THERWGRTE « BUERR - B —REEB A
receivables, amounts due from related companies and a non- A N — B IR AR RS TR N H fh pE U FIE %
controlling interest and other receivables and deposits) which Ze)ETEHREESE((EREERE]E
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The NIBTRRER S - BHEEBENSER
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect SWMEBHEH URBAVEEREREE
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. R\ YL -

160 FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. SR @& ECFI) RO BRA 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued)]

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date

as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group has adopted judgement, assumptions and
estimation techniques in order to measure ECL according to
the requirements of accounting standards such as criteria for
judging significant increases in credit risk, definition of credit-
impaired financial asset, parameters for measuring ECL and

forward-looking information.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for contract
asset, finance lease receivables and trade receivables that
result from transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
15 using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. To measure the ECL, contract
asset, finance lease receivables and trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The
Group estimated the expected loss rate based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking

factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued)]

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

For factoring receivables, the Group assessed the loss
allowance for receivables that are not credit-impaired
collectively based on 12 month expected credit loss and
lifetime ECL and assessed receivables that are credit-impaired
based on lifetime expected credit loss. For receivables
from sale-leaseback transaction, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12 month expected credit loss. For
receivables from operating lease, the Group measures the loss

allowance equal to 12 month expected credit loss.

However, when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the Group assess the ECL individually

based on the lifetime ECL.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIN

AR ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued)]

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. Specifically, investments in equity instruments are
classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a business combination as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the ‘other income and gains’
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in
note 16.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, (i) the debtor has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and
(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued)]

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL [Continued]

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in

credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when of the information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the

Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial assets is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;
. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties; or

J the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep

discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

ERETTHEER )

SRITH#E)
TREEE)

TRMEERRER M GRS ERFIIRAE
TTRERHE 2 EiIBE ZRE(E)

RAESERENTHEE

ERL-AXZEERESREENGTR
KREREATNZER  AeREEDH
HEEERE - eREEFERENEERERE
BREATEHORIBRIUER

BITARERA L IRERM SR EE -

o ERAHN  WEXNIEHEM:

o  BERANERAZRERERAMBE
HHEEXSOEHAERARDER
ARATEEBHNRR

o ERAFBEWESGETTEMMFER
=7

o HBRUBRHEHEBMEERZIERED

35 o

o NAEHHBEXRELSREE © &I
IRBREBRENERERE -

2023 ANNUAL REPORT EE 4

165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. Subsequent recoveries
of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as
a reversal of impairment loss in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking

information.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for

determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used.

Lifetime ECL for contract asset, finance lease receivables
and trade receivables are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking macroeconomic

information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EE€HBESEE )

[Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) TRIAE)

Financial assets (Continued) TRHEEE)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to CRIEERIBBEEBYEmEERFE SR A#E
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued) TTRERHE 2 IR B ZRE (&)
Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses FEHEEER B RER(E)

(Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure ERET SRS DETE - REARIME
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit R ES o B A AU E E R BRI o

risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying FMBIWAZRBESRMEENRmMARTTE - K
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is FeMEERERFERE TEBERT -
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated FBIWAZIRS B EREHKAGTE -
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit AREEFMESRIAEEEZNEZRER
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding % WiRBERRERYEmEFELEESR
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance o

account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

[Continued)]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of
an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit

or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not 1] contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination, 2] held-for-trading,
or 3) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the

amortised cost of a financial liability.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's leasing
transactions, net realisable value of inventories, impairment
assessment of non-current assets, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account

when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics

of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value

measurement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgment, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.
Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below], that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued]

Classification between finance leasing and operating
leasing as a lessor

Leases are required to be classified as either finance leases
(which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, and give rise to asset and liability recognition by
the lessee and a receivable by the lessor] and operating leases
(which result in expenses recognition by the lessee, with the

asset remaining recognised by the lessor).

Situations that would normally lead to a lease being classified

as finance lease including the following:

(a)  The lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to

the lessee by the end of the lease term;

(b]  The lessee has the option to purchase the underlying
asset at a price which is expected to be sufficiently
lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes
exercisable and, at the inception of the lease, it is

reasonably certain that the option will be exercised;

(c)  The lease term is for the major part of the economic life

of the asset, even if title is not transferred;

(d) At the inception of the lease, the present value of the
lease payments amounts to at least substantially all of

the fair value of the underlying asset; and

(e}  The underlying assets are of a specialised nature
such that only the lessee can use them without major

modification being made.

The Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset,
therefore, those lease are classified as operating leasing as

lessor.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued]

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group engages in trading of energy storage system
and electronic products. The Group assessed whether the
Group should recognise revenue on gross basis based on the
requirements in HKFRS 15. The Group concluded that the
Group acts as the principal for such transactions as it controls
the specified good before it is transferred to the customer
after taking into consideration indicators such as that the
Group is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to
provide the goods. The Group has inventory risk and discretion
in establishing selling prices of the goods. When the group
satisfies the performance obligation, the Group recognises
trading revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which

the Group expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recognised revenue in respect of such business is
approximately RMB29,917,000 (2022: RMB705,000).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued]

Impairment of finance lease receivables and accounts
receivables

The impairment provisions for finance lease receivables
and accounts receivables are based on assumptions about
expected credit loss. The assessment of impairment of finance
lease and accounts receivables under the expected loss model
is considered to be a matter of most significance as it requires
the application of judgement and use of subjective assumptions
by management. The Group assesses the expected credit loss
("ECL") according to forward-looking information and used
appropriate models and a large number of assumptions in its
expected measurement of credit losses. These models and
assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic conditions
and borrower's creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of default
by customers and the corresponding losses]. The Group has
adopted judgement, assumptions and estimation techniques
in order to measure ECL according to the requirements of
accounting standards such as criteria for judging significant
increases in credit risk, definition of credit-impaired financial
asset, parameters for measuring ECL and forward-looking

information.

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of finance lease
receivables and accounts receivables are approximately
RMB8,230,000 and RMB214,299,000 (2022: RMB15,240,000
and RMB119,453,000), net of accumulated impairment losses
of approximately RMB10,627,000 and RMB35,962,000 (2022:
RMB13,810,000 and RMB60,636,000) respectively. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, reversal impairment
loss of finance lease receivables and accounts receivables
is approximately RMB10,209,000 (2022: impairment loss
RMB38,251,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued]

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's financial assets
at FVTPL amounting to approximately RMB63,102,000
(2022: RMB48,706,000) are measured at fair value. The
fair values of financial assets that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques used include income approaches,
market approaches and option pricing models. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could result in material

adjustments to the fair value of these instruments.
Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2023, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses for certain subsidiaries due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. In cases where the
actual future taxable profits generated are less or more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which result in
revision of future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal
or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

Impairment of interest in an associate

As at 31 December 2023, the Group performed impairment
assessment on an associate. Determining whether impairment
loss should be recognised requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the relevant associate which is the
higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the management of the
Group to estimate the present value of the estimated cash
flows expected to arise from dividends to be received from
the associate and the proceeds from the ultimate disposal
of the investment taking into account. In cases where the
actual cash flows are less or more than expected, or change
in facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
cash flows estimation or discount rate, a material reversal
or further recognition of impairment may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a

reversal or further recognition takes place.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued]

Impairment of interest in an associate (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of interest in an
associate amounted to approximately RMB50,806,000 (2022:
RMB51,816,000). No impairment loss is recognised during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Impairment assessment on cash generating units of
energy storage business segments (“CGUs”)

The Group's cash generating units ("CGU") of energy storage
business segment consisted of certain property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and goodwill. In determining
whether there is any impairment loss of the CGU, management
estimated the recoverable amounts of the CGU based on
the value in use calculation. The value in use calculation is
prepared by independent professional valuers based on the
management’s assumptions and estimates taking into account
the existing business plan and other strategic business
development. These calculations require the use of estimates

such as the future revenue, expenses and discount rates.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and goodwill of the CGU of
energy storage business segment subject to impairment
assessment were approximately RMB9,071,000, RMB647,000
and RMB1,638,000 (2022: RMB15,087,000, RMB1,104,000 and
RMB1,638,000) respectively. No impairment loss is recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued]

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account their
estimated residual values. The determination of the useful
lives and residual values involve management’s estimation.
The Group assesses annually the useful lives and residual
values of the plant and equipment and if the expectation differs
from the original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation in the year and the estimate will be changed in the

future period.

As at 31 December 2023, there were no changes on the
estimated useful lives and residual values after performing
annual assessment and the related depreciation of the
plant and equipment with carrying values of approximately
RMB16,060,000 (2022: RMB21,476,000).

Recognition and fair value of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in business
combination

The Groups apply the acquisition method of accounting to
account for acquisitions of businesses during the year ended
31 December 2022. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of the
assets given, liabilities incurred, equity instruments issued,
and costs directly attributable to the acquisition. |dentifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired or
assumed are measured separately at their fair values as of the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued]

Recognition and fair value of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in business
combination (Continued)

The determination and allocation of fair values to the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed is
based on various assumptions and valuation methodologies
requiring considerable management judgement. The most
significant variables in these valuations are discount rates,
terminal values, the number of years on which the cash
flow projections are based, as well as the assumptions and
estimates used to determine the cash inflows and outflows.
Management determines discount rates to be used based
on the risk inherent in the related activity’s current business
model and industry comparisons. Terminal values are based
on the expected life of products and forecasted life cycle
and forecasted cash flows over that period. Although the
assumptions applied in the determination are reasonable
based on information available at the date of acquisition,
actual results may differ from the forecasted amounts and the
difference could be material.

Upon an acquisition of a business it is necessary to attribute
fair values to any intangible assets acquired (provided they
meet the criteria to be recognised). The fair values of these
intangible assets are dependent on estimates of attributable
future revenue, margin, cash flow, useful lives and discount

rate used.
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REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods,

construction contracts, services income, factoring income and

leases income for the year.

An analysis of the revenue from the Group’'s revenue for the

years is as follows:

WHERERAFENHERR  BEAH
RAIGUA ~ REBUA R EWAFTE LR K

S o

AEBFERR R RS DITAT -

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Revenue from contracts with customers  HEMEREERE1557HER
within the scope of HKFRS 15 REFEFEHHIKE
Disaggregated by major products or REIZEMIBBEI I
services lines:
Energy storage solutions and EREfRR T R R —fR52E
general construction 7,232 10,675
Sales of goods - energy storage system HE R m—EAE R A 26,360 705
Sales of goods - electronic products HEMm—EFEmM 3,557 -
Advisory service fee income ARG EWA 116 453
37,265 11,833
Revenue from other sources H ity SRR W &=
Finance lease income EVEMEEWA 245 2,318
Income from sale-leaseback transactions 2K B &G 5 WA 1,910 7,950
Factoring income {RIBUT A 16,175 5,215
Energy storage service income RBEARTS A 1,474 371
Provision of 5G base stations site space RS GE AT MG 3,295 1,814
23,099 17,668
60,364 29,501

2023 ANNUAL REPORT EE 4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. Wz#)
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group HZ=2023F 12 A3 HILFE - AEBMBKRE
commenced to engage in trading of electronic products. TETERRD °
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by REBEFA NS R ERBE DI o

timing of recognition.

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥TR

Timing of revenue recognition W g2 e B B P

- Ata pointin time —RAE 2 30,033 1,158

- Overtime —PEREE 7,232 10,675

Total revenue from contracts with REEFENNWREEE

customers 37,265 11,833
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DHER

The Group's chief operating decision maker ["CODM") has RAARMITESDERBRTEENEELR
been identified as the executive directors of the Company. ERRE(EELERKRE]) - RERSE
Information reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource EoHRIBTGHRAESLEERRERENE
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses KRR AR AN SR R R R EE - AR A
on types of goods delivered or provided. The directors of EXEEESER KRN EREZANEHE -

the Company have chosen to organise the Group around

differences in products and services.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

Financial and - comprises direct finance leasing,

advisory business sale-leaseback transactions,
factoring, advisory services and
investment holding.

Trading operation - comprises trading of electronic
business products
Energy storage - comprises trading of energy storage
business system, energy storage solutions and
general construction and provision of
energy storage services

5G base station - comprises provision of 5G base

business stations site space

The Company has two new reportable segments upon
acquisition of business during the year ended 31 December
2022. No new reportable segments identified during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

BRI 2R EOT

AREmE - A%

JiE]

M RHAER —ERERREHEE
BHELRS -~ RIE
IR MR BT o

By I

BoKEERE —BRETERES

HR TS — BIERRE R A - RREfR
RERE SN —MREE
AR IR R RE %75

SCEVLE — IR IE MG R IS ZE

i
HZE2022F12A31HIEFE - AR RKEE

27514 SR AT 2905 5 - BE2023F12
A3V B - A BBIEE A 25 -
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KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEER B
Financial and Trading operation Energy storage 56 base station
advisory business business business business Total
BESEEES ECHL S fRRER SGE R a5t
For the year ended 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
BEZABLEE 12A318 12A318 12A31A 12A318 12A31A

2023 2022 2023 2022
3% N0F  NVF  A0F
RMB'000

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

0BF  0NE  NBF  WNF  NBF  N0F
RMB'000

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000

ARBTR ARBTRL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARRTZ ARETR

Reportable segment revenue EEE ol 18466 1593 3,557

35,066 11751 3,295 1814 60,364 29,501

Reportable segment profit(loss] ~ FI2RAMEN(EE) 10879 (32.826) (362 (1973 (5,951) (4365 (278) (1) 4288 (39275
Share of [loss| profit of HEBERA
an associate (B8)&R (1,010 1816
Gain on disposal of HERATEIA
financial asset at FVTPL ERteREEL
Y 1,609 -
Change in fair value of BATEABRR
financial assets at FVTPL, net EREEY
NTERE 5 (800 (1,294)
Group's profit loss) before tax KB ANAR
(B8) 4,087 (38753)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of share of (loss] profit of an
associate, gain on disposal of financial assets at FVPTL and
change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL, net. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEER B
(a) Other segment information (a) HiopaEw
Financial and Trading operation Energy storage 56 base station
advisory business business business business Total
BpYEEE O ES AR SCEERH EH)
For the year ended 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
BEUAHLER 12B31A 12B31A 12B31A 128318 12A318
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
2023% 2020% 2023% 2020% 2023% 2020% 2023% 2020% 2023% 028
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARBTR ARMTR AR¥TR ARETR
Bank interest income HATFIERA 2,589 2317 2 16 55 37 1 2 2,666 2372
Imputed interest income on EHRUTENES
trade receivables FEHA - - 623 457 - - - - 623 47
Interest expense on lease liabilites  FE & ERFISHR (54) (28 (15) [ (39) (31) (371) (285) (479) (37)
Interest expenses on bank RTERNHERX
borrowing - - - - (82) - - - (82) -
Depreciation of plant and equipment R Rk i E (367) (218) [2) 2 (255  (33) (572) (Bao)  B4M 3879
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  EREEENRE (796) (8%0) (134) (75) (457) (266)  (1,311) 0gs) (2698  [2217)
Amortisation of intangible asset ~ ER/EEHH (252) (252) 1) (1) - - - - (253) (259)
Lossonwritten offof plantand ~ WEBERRENEE
equipment - - - - (2068 - - - (2068 -
Gain on disposal of WERRE kA RHLE
plant and equipment = = = = 128 1 - - 128 1
Gain (loss) on termination of lease X E AV (B51E) 17 = = - = (53) = (36) =
Reversal of impairment loss HEHE - BUER
(impairment loss] on finance LAEREAR
lease, accounts receivables, net  (FiEESE) & 8,892 (36,8%3) 1,682 (2239) 15 42 25 13 10616 (38,489)
Impairment loss (reversal of EYERARARES
impairment loss] on amounts B(ABSERR)
due from related companies (405) 438 - - - - - = (405) 438
Reversal of impairment loss SHEERERR
(impairment loss) on contract ~ BEI(REEE)
asset 49 (49) - - - - - - 49 (49)
Income tax [expense) credit FERFERES (33:8) 628 (20) (148) (84) (22 (6) - [3458) 4058
Additions to non-currentassets  JFFREIEEEM
(Note] i3 1,362 99 - - 937 3m6 3% 532 3% 10007
Note: Ktz -

Non-current assets excluded financial asset, interest in an

associate, goodwill and deferred tax assets.

HRBEETEREHEE NP ERA]
At BEREENREE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER#)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PHEEREE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR¥T T
(Restated)
(f&E7)

Segment assets PEEE
Financial and advisory business W5 KA 243,824 341,609
Trading operation business B HREER 40,120 30,564
Energy storage business GEEES 64,927 17,877
5G base station business SCEILER 23,379 18,064
Total reportable segment assets A2HHHEERE 372,250 408,114
Interest in an associate i AN 2 50,806 51,816
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRNEREE 63,102 48,706
Certain cash and cash equivalents ETHEKREEEY 391 2,994
Consolidated assets SREBE 486,549 511,630
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AR ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

6.

(b]

(c)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DEER &)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) HHFEEREE#E)
2023 2022
2023F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T
(Restated)
(=)
Segment liabilities DEEE
Financial and advisory business W5 KA 5,954 39,650
Trading operation business B HRERTS 7,858 2,157
Energy storage business HREZETS 15,637 1,969
5G base station business SCEILER 6,294 17,373
Consolidated liabilities meRrE 35,743 61,143
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance FLESER D ERIR M E o SBE 5 B E R T
and allocating resources between segments, all assets T BB AR 2R - RATER
are allocated to operating segments other than interest AERHEREEUARETRERRE
in an associate, financial assets at FVTPL and certain EEBY  EBEHIREZEEDE -
cash and cash equivalents.
Geographic information (c) HbiER
No geographic information is presented as the Company R ARR AR BT - AEEH
incorporated in the PRC and the principal place of the FELEMBRPE - IR 23
Group's operations is the PRC. All the Group’s revenue B o AEBMME R RIERBIEE
and non-current assets are principally attributable to the B FERFERRE o
PRC.
Information about major customers (d BBEFEEZFHNEFR

(d)

One customer with revenue of approximately
RMB7,232,000 from energy storage business segment
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue of the
corresponding year (2022: RMB10,675,000 from energy

storage business segment).

BHEEREE TS D B4 AR 7,232,000
THREH—BREFEARNEERIEE
FEMEEBEDIDPRZFE10%HIA L
(2022FF : ERfREREEB D HAARKE
10,675,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

186

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. HKWARKERE
2023 2022
2023 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T
Bank interest income IRITHFBMA 2,666 2,372
Maintenance service income HEEARTS U 4,507 3,712
Imputed interest income on B ZRYGRIBRHEE TR S WA
trade receivables 623 457
Penalty charged to customers WERE = Sk 303 2,070
Value added tax ["VAT") refund HEB([GEH)ERM 961 2,987
Gain on disposal of financial asset HERATFEFT ABRT
at FVTPL TEEE W 1,609 -
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment & RS R 58 2 e 128 1
Others Hih 141 537
10,938 12,136
8. FINANCE COST 8. mEMAE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ET T
Interest on: UT&EEBEZFE
- bank borrowing —IRITIER 82 =
- Lease liabilities —HEAaE 108 -
190 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

9. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 9. BRATEHADEF (EE)
Profit (loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREFSEADE M (E1E) Tk (BT A AT
BIEBEN
2023 2022
2023F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMT T
Staff costs (including directors’ and BTN (BREESME) (i
supervisor's emoluments] (note 13(a) 13(a)) B45 :
comprise:
Fees fkn 324 309
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥re o R R HMAET] 12,033 8,966
Discretionary bonuses BYIETEAL 206 58
Contributions to defined contribution A 575 R FGR IR EI 3R
retirement plan 1,526 1,087
14,089 10,420
Costs of sales: SHERA :
~ Interest expenses on lease liabilities —HEBENN SR 371 347
- Bank charges and other expenses —SRITFEEREMAX 57 67
- Sub-contracting costs — DB 692 699
- Depreciation of plant and equipment — BB REETE 3,128 3,675
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets —(FREBENE 1,311 986
- Loss on written of plant and equipment  — LR KR EHERH
VERI=Y, SEi 2,065 -
- Cost of inventories sold —BEFEEKRAK 34,357 11,135
41,981 16,909
Auditors’ remuneration 2% BN M 921 1,635
Depreciation of plant and equipment (note) [R5 R #EITE (M) 369 220
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note] ~ {EAEEETE () 1,387 1,231
Amortisation of intangible asset [note) A B (M RE) 253 253
Expenses relating to short-term leases HR A E TR 169 225
Exchange gain bEE W am (1) (4)
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment S R S I AR Y W (128) (1)
Loss on termination of lease RIS EE 36 =
Change in fair value of financial asset of BAVEGTABRNSHEER
FVTPL, net N EEEFE 800 1,294
(Reversal of impairment loss) impairment  REEFRE [ B 5 el BR K
loss on finance lease and accounts ORE BB ) BUE K B /F5E
receivables, net (10,614) 38,689
Impairment loss (reversal of impairment  FEUWEEE A Bl B REE 1B
loss) on amounts from related companies  CR{EEEEE]) 405 (438)
Impairment loss on other receivables E b EUGRIRR B EE 693 1,351
(Reversal of impairment loss) impairment & )& E CREEERE)
loss on contract asset VERIEY e (49) 49
Note: BiaE -
These expenses are included in ‘administrative expenses” line FER S AABG [FTHES | -
item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 10. FREHIRX(E %)
Profit (loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB BE R (B8 TH &M (sF A AT & 18
BER
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR%T T
(Restated)
(=5)
PRC Enterprise Income tax PEEMER
- Current year —RFE 1,528 1,595
- Overprovision in prior years — BT FEEERE - (4,698)
Deferred tax (note 22) IEFERLE (FisE22)
- Credited for the year —FREE 1,930 (2,955)
Income tax expense (credit) FrigHiF < (%) 3,458 (6,058)

The Group and its subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of 25% based on the
estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was
gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime of Hong Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million
of profits of qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. Other
than the qualifying corporation, Hong Kong Profits Tax was
calculated at a flat rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profits for both years.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, the Group
is not subject to any Hong Kong Profits Tax since there were no

assessable profits generated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (Continued) 10. PRSI (IKE) (%)
The income tax expense (credit] for the year can be reconciled FAMEHRAX (E2)BiReBa REHEK
to the profit (loss) before tax in the consolidated statement of SRARHADEN (BB ERRMT

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥®TR

Profit (loss) before income tax BRETIS T AT @ A (E518) 4,087 (38,753)
Tax at the rates applicable to ZRARGEERAERT R

tax jurisdictions concerned HeBiIE 1,022 (9.688)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ TAIHNFL B HFR IS P &8

tax purposes 2,043 5,593
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax IR A BT 75 5 22

purpose (4,007) =
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRI AR ERNTIEEE

recognised (85) (72)
Tax effect of tax losses and other deductible AREWERFIIAEE & HAb B A=

temporary difference not recognised BENRBTE 4,233 3,261
Tax effect of share of loss/profit FEML B & A RIEE, 5 F R

of associate 7 252 (454)
Over provision in prior years BT FE R - (4,698)
Income tax expenses (credit) FrSfim s (%) 3,458 (6,058)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

11. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 11.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

BRABA ()

AREHERABIEBRERREERN (&
B)THE N IIBURRTE -

2023 2022
2023%F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR¥T T
(Restated)
(&=5)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to RRFTEERERNREERT
owners of the Company for the purpose of  (JE518) WA RIHEAR AFE(L
basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share 4= A F (E518) 4,746 (29,504)
2023 2022
2023F 20225
Number of ordinary shares for RARFESRERKR
the purpose of basic and diluted earnings ~ BEEZRF|(E518) TR B
(loss) per share 359,340,000 359,340,000
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share &RXEA K #E & F| (EE)
(RMB cents per share) (BRAR%S) 1.32 (8.21)

The diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are the same as basic earnings (loss)
per share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years or at the end of the reporting
periods.

12. DIVIDENDS 12.

On March 2022, the board of directors recommended to
distribute the final dividend of RMB0.013 per share for the year
ended 31 December 2021 for the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of H Shares on 6 June 2022.
Total dividend of RMB4,669,000 was paid to the shareholders
on July 2022.

No dividend was paid or proposed in respect of the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EX - EEREEME

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) EZ=REEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of 13 (2022: 12) REFEEET M35 (2022F : 128)
directors and supervisors of the Company during the year AATEENEEZENMENT :
as follow:
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE2023F12A31HILFE
Salaries Contribution
allowances to defined
and other  Discretionary contribution
Fees benefits bonuses retirement plan Total
1R 13 HEREMR
e REMER META  RAGHEMR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T ARETR ARBT T ARETR
Executive directors HITEF
Mr. Li Peng ekt - 448 - 19 467
Mr. Weng Janxing SEELE - 509 - 32 541
Ms. Gong Xiaoting El e - 503 - - 503
Non-executive directors FiTEE
Mr. Peng Qilei (7. - - - - -
Mr. Liu Jing Hmat - - - - -
Mr. Tong Fangyan LR E = . S - n

Independent non-executive directors ~ BVHHTEE

Mr. Fung Che Wei, Anthony (note i] IBEETAE () VAl - - - VAl
Mr. Liu Shengwen Eip 108 - - - 108
Mr. Hon Leung LS e 108 - - - 108
Mr. Tong Qiang [note i R oA (Riz) 37 - - - 37
Supervisors £Z

Mr. Liu Bing it - 362 - 3 393
Mr. Sun Luran REREE - 206 - 38 24
Mr. Zhu Xiaodong REREE - - - - -
Total Bt 324 2,028 - 120 2,672
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND EMPLOYEES® 13. EX - EEREEM S (»©)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEBREEME(E)
Year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE2022F12A31HILFEE
Salaries Contribution
allowances to defined

and other  Discretionary  contribution

Fees benefits bonuses retirement plan Total
ETk -4 mEREMHT
we  REMET BERL  BIGHEER st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARERTR  ARETR

Executive directors HITEE

Mr. Li Peng L - 436 - 3 470
Mr. Weng Janxing SRESLE - 488 - 33 521
Ms. Gong Xiaoting Bl e - 483 - 27 510
Non-executive directors FHTEE

Mr. Peng Qilei 2k = = - - -
Mr. Liu Jing At = = - . -
Mr. Tong Fangyan 2RI - - - - =

Independent non-executive directors  BUFFHTEE

Mr. Fung Che Wei, Anthony BERERE 103 - - - 103
Mr. Liu Shengwen g @ik 103 - - - 103
Mr. Hon Leung BEiE 103 - - - 103
Supervisors Ex

Mr. Liu Bing LIS - 4 - 32 503
Mr. Sun Luran BRALE - 187 - 3 219
Mr. Zhu Xiadong RERTE - - - - -
Total & 309 2,065 = 158 2,532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b]

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued]

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. Fung Chi Wei, Anthony was resigned on 25 August
2023 and Mr Tong Qiang was appointed on 25 August
2023.

No directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during the years 31 December 2023
and 2022.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or supervisors as an incentive payment to
Join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2023.

Discretionary bonuses were determined with reference
to the Group's operating results and individual
performance.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in

the Group, 3 (2022: 3] were directors and supervisors of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023. The

emoluments of the remaining 2 (2022: 2] highest paid

individuals for the years ended 31 December 2023 were

13. E5 - ESkESHE @)

a) EZREEME @)
izt -

il EEEFELER2023F8H25H EE(E
Jo R34 55 A R 20234 8 H 25 A EZE
{:‘E °

i) BEXZFEFRE Z2023F K
2022 1231 HIFFEMELFAE
MEF B Z -

(i) BE2022% F 20234 12 31 H IFF
B AEBERERFAEESESE
S HEIB 2 (EA R ZEMA S IIA
K EE B 14 B B2 B B (E BRI

g

liv]  BYETEAL IR E R EEEERBE R
1A R EE °

(b) FEEZRSHMAL

HE202F12A3NBILEEE @ A&
EifemxmmABEAR - 35 (2022
FI3B)ABARAEERES - B
E2023F12A31HILEE 225
(20225 : 28 B H A TS

as follows: T

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AR¥ET T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ~ #& - 2L &k H @A) 876 996
Discretionary bonuses (note) PIBETEAL (PEE) 30 20

Contribution to defined contribution M B A E SRR IRGT 85X
retirement plan 75 12
Total #Et 981 1,028
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. X - EEREEME (&)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) AEBRSHEFMMAL(E)
The number of the highest paid employees who are BN T LA T EBEMIER AR EFHE
not the directors or supervisors of the Company whose ERSFMESEM AT ¢

remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

2023 2022
2023F 20225
Number of Number of
individual individual
A AB
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 21,000,000 2 2
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest B R 20234 R 202212 A31 B 1L F
paid individuals including directors and supervisors as an B AEERAERREESHMAL
incentive payment to join or upon joining the Group, or as (BREERRESF) NEAMEERRK
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31 FINASKANAA R B 12 1) SR TR I KA
December 2023 and 2022. REERE -
Note: Discretionary bonuses were determined with reference Miat - BYETEAL 52 Z A SK BT & X8
to the Group's operating results and individual RMGAXRME
performance
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
8=

B H5 R B ot

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. BMERRE

Energy 56 base
Office Motor storage station Leasehold
equipment vehicles system  equipment improvements Total
WARE - RERS SCEURE HENERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR AR%TrT ARBTR ARETR
Cost %
At 1 January 2022 ®202261R1H 1,756 - - - 962 2,718
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 42) YEEMIB A& (Fiz42) - - 21,461 1,665 - 23,126
Additions AE 595 364 207 3716 - 4,862
Disposals e (23) - (3,252) - - (3,275)
At 31 December 2022 and RN2F12R31B R
1 January 2023 0851718 2,328 344 18,416 5,381 962 27,431
Additions hE 679 - 476 862 - 2,017
Disposal HE - - (2,639) - - (2,639)
Written off 38 - - (5,719) - - (5,719
At 31 December 2023 20235124318 3,007 344 10,534 6,243 962 21,090
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
At 1 January 2022 R202251 718 1120 - - - 962 2,082
Charge for the year ERR 150 70 3329 346 - 3,895
Disposal e (22) - - - - (22)
At 31 December 2022 and R02E12A31B R
1 January 23 0851718 1,248 70 3,329 346 962 5,955
Charge for the year FRZ 286 83 2,556 572 - 3,497
Eliminated on disposal HERS 5 - - (768) - - (768)
Eliminated on written off AR - - (3,654) - - (3,654)
At 31 December 2023 20235124318 1,534 153 1,463 918 962 5,030
Carrying value REE
At 31 December 2023 R2023%E12A318 1,473 191 9,07 5,325 - 16,060
At 31 December 2022 20226124318 1,080 274 15,087 5,03 - 21,476
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office equipment 3-5years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Energy storage system 10 years
5G base station equipment 10 years

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Note:

The energy storage business operation were making loss during
the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group carried out an
impairment assessment for the recoverable amount of the
CGU of energy storage business operation. The estimate of the
recoverable amount was based on value-in-use calculation using
the discounted cash projection approved by management covering
a 5-year period at pre-tax discount rate of 20.2% per annum.
Key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation include future
revenue, budgeted gross margin and operating costs, which were
determined based on the past performance, the Group's business
plan and management expectations for the market development.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, management of
the Group determines that there is no impairment of this CGU
containing goodwill, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

14. BMENREE)

PR RERBEBABREEATEER
ERFHRANE :

AR 3-5%
T 84
S 104
SeESIE 104F
HEXE GER I
Hiat -

B ZE2023F 1231 HIEFE © BEERELRIZE
18 o REEHFERFS HH & ELE A
WelBl & SEHETIRIEFE o AT E S BB E TS
BEREFEEGTERL @ Zh A EAEEEE
HEBESFRIE A 2 el - FFH
BIAY B B20.2% - (EFHIEEEm* ZFRRE
ARz FAEEFEFEELE  ZER
RIRBEATHRY A EBMEGEFEREE
BTG ERNTEHET -

Bt E2023F12H31 HILF/E  AEFEEEE
TEEEE BMERREREAELEENHE
BT HERE -
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

15. INTANGIBLE ASSET

15. BREEE

Computer
software
B e
RMB’000
AR®T T
Cost R
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, R2022%F1 818 ~ 20224128318
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 20231 B1H &2023F12A31H 2,534
Accumulated amortization e
At 1 January 2022 M2022F1 A1H 398
Charge for the year FAZH 253
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 2022912 A31H K% 20231818 651
Charge for the year FREH 253
At 31 December 2023 720235124318 904
Carrying value BREE
At 31 December 2023 HR2023F12831H 1,630
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 1,883

AEFEKREE S ARKE1,630,0007T (2022
F 0 AR#1,883,0007T) 2 BASEE 10
E(20224F 1 104 ) Y o

The Group's computer software with carrying amount of
RMB1,630,000 (2022: RMB1,883,000) is amortised over 10 years
(2022: 10 years).
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16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. A FEFABZHNERMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2023 2022
20235 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR®TR

Financial assets designated at FVTPL RN THE AR
BEEE
- Unlisted equity securities —JEFTERES 63,102 48,706
2023 2022
2023%F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMT T
- Preference shares of an unlisted —JE LR E LN
investment Pachira (Zhuhai Henggin) CRHEEE)EERMAR
Information Technology Co., Ltd AR EEER )BT
(“Pachira”) (note a) (BtsEa) 5,435 4,797
- Ordinary shares in Zhuhai Huihe —RIKBESBERAIEREES
Guangjing Chuangye investment (BRER)([FRBES )
Fund, L.P. (“Zhuhai Huihe") (note b) VE A (FfaEDb) 12,382 13,944
- Ordinary shares in Beijing Shuncheng — Rt RIERERIEE R (BR
Health investment Fund, L.P. B8 ([FIERE])H T @A
(“Beijing Shuncheng”) (note c] (FF5EC) 24,505 29,965
- Ordinary shares in Shenzhen Divbio —IRYREIEMEEEBR A A
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (CRIBERA D By mk
(“Shenzhen Divbio”) (note d) (BffaEd) 11,300 -
- Ordinary shares in Yixing Xiangyi Venture —REEEFAIZERELEDE
Capital Partnership ("Yixing”) (note e) (BREX)([EE]H
B (fifsEe) 9,480 -

63,102 48,706
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16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation for financial asset at FVTPL based on significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3] are as follows:

16. BAFEFTAEZNEREE &)

REEATAEREABER(E=E)RAF
Bt ABENEREEZHRNT

2023 2022

20234 20225

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTF T ARBFT

At the beginning of year F4) 48,706 15,000

Addition NE 18,000 35,000

Partial redemption of fund (note b) HomeEe (Fizb) (2,804) =
Net loss on change in fair value RS ERN A T EES

recognised in profit or loss EiE R (800) (1,294)

At the end of year FR 63,102 48,706

Notes:

(a)

(b]

The financial asset represent 0.5973% (2022: 0.5973%)
interest of preferences shares in a private company
incorporated in the PRC with investment cost of
RMBS5,000,000. Upon initial recognition, the financial assets
are measured at FVTPL. There is gain on fair value of the
financial asset of RMB638,000 (2022: loss on fair value of
RMB203,000] for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The financial asset represent 28.2699% (2022: 28.2699%)
interest in a fund incorporated in the PRC. Pursuant to the
limited partnership agreement, the total investment was
amounted to RMB30,000,000. As at 31 December 2023 and
2022, RMB15,000,000 was only paid. There is gain on fair
value of the financial asset of RMB1,242,000 (2022: loss on
fair value of RMB1,056,000) for the year ended 31 December
2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain
investments with a fair value of approximately RMBZ2,804,000
was redeemed at RMB4,413,000, resulting in gain on
disposal of approximately RMB1,609,000.

st -

(a)

(b]

& B A E R R — B 7E A B A3 A T B
A REH0.5973% (20224 : 0.5973% ) 18
R R - A A BARS000000
T ° RAYIZHERE @ 2 HEERATFE
FTABasE o BLE2023F 12831 A 1f
FE R EEMNNFEKZBARE
638,0007T (2022%F : R FEEEARE
203,0007T) -

TREEER—FEPEZHA RS
H728.2699% (20224F : 28.2699% ) 175 -
RIFEREE g - IR ECEABARE
30,000,000 ° 20234 20224 12 H31
H - LA K #15,000,0007T# Z2023
FI2AAILEE - £ EENTFER
AARKE,2420007T (20224 © 2N-F(E
BEA B 1,056,0005T) °

B Z2023F 12831 HILFZ - ~FEA
A R #52.804,000 T B9 5 TR EZNA R
4,413,000 CfE L] » EEHERZHIAR
#1,609,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. BAFETAEZHNESREE &)
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

[c]  The financial asset represent 9.9% (2022: 9.9%) interest lc] =BEEER—FEFETMEIHES
in a fund incorporated in the PRC with investment cost #9.9% (20224 : 9.9% ) #wm - ALK
of RMB30,000,000. There is loss on fair value of the AABR30,000,0007T - BE2023F 124
financial asset of RMBS5,460,000 (2022: loss on fair value of MNHILFE HEENA-FEEREE
RMB35,000] for the year ended 31 December 2023. AR #5,460,0007T (20229 « 1\-FlEETR

A BEH#35,0007T)

[d]  The financial asset represent 4.504% (2022: nil] interest in ld] 2@ EEFER—EIFEF KT ARA
a private company incorporated in the PRC with investment RNEAI4.504% (2022F : fE)#Em  BE
cost of RMB8,000,000. There is gain on fair value of the HXK B A FE#8,000,0007T » & F 20234
financial asset of RMB3,300,000 for the year ended 31 12H31HIFFE - £ B EE N FlE D
December 2023. ABA RS 300,0005T -

(e)  The financial asset represent 13.7268% (2022: nil) interest le]  BEIEEER —FEF B HER
in a fund incorporated in the PRC with investment cost of #713.7268% (20224 : ) ##m + BEK
RMB10,000,000. There is loss on fair value of the financial KAEARB10,000,0007T ° B 220234 12
asset of RMB520,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023. A3MBILFE 2 EENFEEES

AR #520,0007T °

(fl  The fair value measurement of the financial asset at FVTPL ] R FEFABZALHEEN A FER

is disclosed in note 41. BERWITE4 1 -
17. CONTRACT ASSET 17. EHEE

As at 1 January 2022, contract asset amounted to nil. R2022F 1 B1H  AHEESREAT o

The Group's contract assets represent the Group’s right REERENEEREASBE RN RS BAE

to consideration for work completed but not yet billed to RTIERAZFAEN IR WK ENE

customers at the reporting date. The contract assets are o BEBRENKAEGEG (BIREBEEN

transferred to trade receivables when the rights become E R AEFRATIREE RS )R

unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings BREEERETE S RINERTR -

to customers based on agreed payment terms.

The construction work is completed and billed during the year FZEETENEZE2023F12A31BIEFER
ended 31 December 2023. TIWEHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. REEE N RIAVRER
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF R AR®TT

Costs of investments in associates PN IE R =Y 7N 50,000 50,000
Share of post-acquisition losses and DEWEEREE R E R EF X
other comprehensive expenses 806 1,816
50,806 51,816
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had interests in TA2023F 2 2022F 12 A31H » KEENR T
the following associates Bpe N\ R RER

Proportion of ownership
interest or participating shares

and voting power indirectly

held by the Group
rEBEEREERZRROR
Class of Country of BESEREEEI L Place of operation

Name Formof entity ~ sharesheld  incorporation 2023 2022 and principal activity
£8 1317 FEROER EREIER 20235 2022%F EXRBURIERHK
Shanghai KYMS Incorporated Registered The PRC 20.81% 20.81%  Leasing of serviced

Cloud Technology capital office in the PRC

Co., Ltd. and

its subsidiaries

("Shanghai

KYMS Group’)
RS EAERR ZE AR A H 20.81% 2081% FEBREABLEEE

BID AR K

HWB AR

([ LBtz EH

£8))
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18.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The associate is holding 100% of certain subsidiaries in the
PRC. It is listed in National Equities Exchange And Quotations
("NEEQ"), and the associate has privatised in NEEQ starting
from 26 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
significant influence to participate in the Company’s operating
and financial policies with the power to appoint of one director
out of nine directors of Shanghai KYMS Group, the financial
assets at FVTOCI become an associate since 16 August 2022.
Goodwill of approximately RMB22,864,000 was recognised

accordingly.

The following table illustrates the summarised audited
financial information in respect of the associate and reconciled
to the carrying amount in the consolidated statement of

financial position:

Summarised audited financial information

18.

REHE DTS (#)

ZHERRRTPRZEREETHEBAR -
HR2EH/NEERNMERRS([2ERE
A& LW BE2023F 124268 BF1ER
2ERE R L -

HE202F12A318IEFE - AREH LS
REEEBEBABEATEN  AIREZA
AIMAEE RIS EOR - WHEEm SRS
FREENEESHH—LESE KATE
ATAEMEERANS S E B 202248 A
16A B Al E AT - EAREEREENOA
FR#:22 864,0007T °

TRHUPBELR 2P HERBE - R
BRI ER AN Z BREEZ $8K

KECUBRENHME

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR®F T
Current assets MBEE 137,377 168,121
Non-current assets IEmENEE 443,341 460,930
Current liabilities nEBE (148,551) (177,294)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (297,895) (312,633)
Net assets BEFE 134,272 139,124
Revenue W% 118,919 49,814
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive FAER) BN REZE(FX)
(expense) income for the year WA KRR (4,852) 8,727
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in EAREERBEREZ
an associate: P 2 $HER ¢
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEEZ EEREL 20.81% 20.81%
Group's share of net asset of the associate NEEEE(REE A R B EFE 27,942 28,952
Goodwill on acquisition Wz m8 22,864 22,864
50,806 51,816
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 19. BtEHERKFIE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
€ <3==27))

Finance lease receivables comprises: EVE T EEUGRIA R ¢
Within one year —F AR 20,180 31,239
After one year but within two years —F LA EERMERA - 2,017
20,180 33,256
Less: unearned finance income B REREVE WS (1,323) (4,206)
Present value of minimum lease payment  &EBENKZEE : 18,857 29,050
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (10,627) (13,810)
8,230 15,240

Analysed as: ST -

2023 2022
2023F 2022F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥TR

Current assets MENEE 8,230 14,940
Non-current assets IEmENEE = 300
8,230 15,240
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BEHERBREE)

UTARERERKFENEEERON -
el B & 70 B 1R W SRIR O 0 BRE SR B AR 3E30
B ZREHERUKHIEN 2B AREEER
DEREY - WO HEFARTHEE0R
REZD BREBRIERELE -

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19.

The following is a credit quality analysis of finance lease
receivables. In the event that an instalment repayment of a
finance lease receivables is overdue for more than 30 days, the
entire outstanding balance of the finance lease receivables is
classified as overdue. If the instalment repayment is overdue
within 30 days, only the balance of this instalment is classified

as overdue.

2023 2022

2023%F 20225

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Neither overdue nor credit-impaired AT EEERE - 3,573
Overdue but not credit-impaired mEE RS ERE

Overdue within 30 days 1 BTN ER @30 A - 2,328

Overdue and credit-impaired mE B EERE
Overdue over 180 days BHEARRE180H 8,230 9,339
8,230 15,240

The overdue interest rate is charged at fixed rate 0.1% per date
(2022: 0.1% per day).

B AN R 12 5 2R 0.1% Y B 7E A == I ER (2022
FBR0.1%) e

The effective interest rates of the above finance lease ranged HZE2023% 128318 © Fit@EEERER
FHMEEBNT7.12%Z11.23% (20225 -

6.54%%15.06%) °

mainly from 7.12% to 11.23% per annum as at 31 December
2023 (2022: 6.54% to 15.06% per annum).
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19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on finance

lease receivables are as follows:

19.

BEHERBRE®)

RERESRKFERESBRENESOT
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR

At beginning of year F1) 13,810 14,060
(Reversal of impairment loss) Impairment  FRE#RA R EEERED)
loss recognised for the year WEEE (2,678) 1218
Write off HsH (505) (1,468)
At end of year FR 10,627 13,810
Note: Hiat -

The loss allowance was measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses under the simplified approach. The changes
in the loss allowance was mainly due to the reversal of loss
allowance for those balances had been settled during the year.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 41.

R DR E L2 FIRATR S B 1R
HER 2R E - BREEEE LT EHRZ
ZhEr 2 IR B R L E RF RS -

IRIEE Z F BB aT41
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 20. FEEUBRRX
2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
o = ARMWF T ARBTFT
(Restated)
(&%)
Receivables from sales-leaseback EREER S RN FIE (a) 4,932 27,472
Factoring receivables with recourse FIBREZRIZEUGKIE  (b) 186,151 85,955
Trade receivables B 5 RUER®R (c) 21,737 4,869
Receivables from operating leases RS R WEIR (d) 1,479 1,157
Total accounts receivables, less allowance #EWERFURIZEE
for credit loss ETIE RS 214,299 119,453
As at 31 December 2023, the gross amount of trade 2023512 A31H - BERPEHEENZ
receivable arising from contracts with customs amounted to LB HRKETETE/AR22893,0007T
RMB22,893,000 (2022: RMB7,722,000). (20224 : ARR¥7,722,0007T) °
Analysis for reporting purpose as: B EFMEZADTT -
2023 2022
2023%F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥®TR

Current assets mENEE 213,355 98,417
Non-current assets IEmENEE 944 21,036
214,299 119,453
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AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. PEURBRFR(#)
Notes: B :
[a]  Receivables from sales-leaseback (a) E7EME[EEYFIE
The following is an ageing analysis of receivables from RIFEHIRIAR - ERIAEEM IS #E
sales-leaseback net of allowance for credit losses based on R4 F BB JE Y 51 TE 8 5 i B 7 ) E 78 7 2]
the schedule to repay of the receivables since the effective JEYSIE (HIE (5 BE 15 #4E ) BRi 5440
date of the relevant sale-leaseback contracts, as at the end o

of the reporting period.

2023 2022
2023%F 2022F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
(Restated)
(R&E71)
Within 1 year 1R 4,871 9,143
After 1 year but within 2 years 1E A EB2FR 61 7,593
After 2 years but within 3 years 26 A EE3FER - 10,736
4,932 27,472
Current BNEA 4,871 9,143
Non-current JERNEA 61 18,329
4,932 27,472
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 60 days REEFREXZFIZ T FEH30260H (2022
(2022: 30 to 60 days) to its customers. F : 30260H )5 EH] -
The following is a credit quality analysis of receivables from U N BERELIRE S EWNS IR s EEE
sale-leaseback transaction. In the event that an instalment DT o (M E7EFH 0] X5 5 U K IB H 55 BiiE
repayment of a receivable form sale-leaseback transaction S El - RilzZ EE IR S EK SR 2
is overdue, the entire outstanding balance of the receivables EE RN B AR HE e Y o

form sale-leaseback transaction is classified as overdue.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT E£E#R% 207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

208

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. FEWERR (&)
Notes: [Continued) MieE - ()

(a]  Receivables from sales-leaseback [Continued)]

(a)

E& O ERHE ()

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT

Overdue but not credit-impaired B EEEERIE
Overdue within 30 days B AR EBIA30A - 5,824
Overdue 30 to 90 days #HA30H =90H - 16,676
Overdue 90 days to 180 days #HI90H £ 180H - 1,204

Overdue and credit impaired BB EERE

Overdue 180 days BEIEB180 30,336 30,606
30,336 54,310
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (25,404) (26,838)
4,932 27,472

The Group, acts as a buyer-lessor does not recognise the
transferred asset as the sale-leaseback transaction does
not satisfy the requirements of HKFRS 15 as a sale but
accounted for as financing arrangement under HKFRS 9.

The overdue interest rate is charged at fixed rate 0.1% per
date (2022: 0.1 per date).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. FEWRRFR (@)
Notes: (Continued) Hiat - (#&)
la)  Receivables from sales-leaseback (Continued) (a) EEHEIEWKFIEE)
The effective interest rates of the receivables from sale- R2023F 128318 - EEHEIXZEWK
leaseback transactions ranged mainly from 7.89% to 11.25% AERERFIEEZ ) FEHFTEI%ZE
per annum as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 6.68% to 14.79% 11.25% (20224 : £F9F6.68% 2 14.79%) °
per annum.
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on E# 0] 5 BN TE 2 B (B h 2
receivables form sale-leaseback transaction are as follows: W
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

At beginning of year E4) 26,838 12,270
Impairment loss recognised for the year  FRAEERARERIE 264 15,397
Write off b6z (1,698) (829)
At end of year FR 25,404 26,838
The loss allowance was measured at an amount equal to 12 E1EFHEIXX 5 JE WK TR TR 1 18 T IR 15
month and lifetime expected credit losses under the general —MOEZ 1218 A R FRATEE = BEE
approach for receivables from sale-leaseback transaction. 1HERZ RETE o IR EEE) I EH
The changes in the loss allowance was mainly due to written PR & H B 85 & 18 18 0] X 5 JEY 7R o

off of receivables from sale-leaseback transactions at the
reporting date.
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. FEWIRR(#)
Notes: [Continued) Miat - (&)
[b)  Factoring receivables (b)  (RIEFEH KB
The following is an ageing analysis of factoring receivables IR AR - B IRE A A&
net of allowance for credit losses based on the schedule to BRIEJEWCSIE (HIG 15 BB 1R 7 1) AR e
repay of the receivables as at the end of the reporting period. DT -
2023 2022
2023 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Within 1 year 1R 186,151 85,235
After 1 year but within 2 years 1EE181E2F R = 720
186,151 85,955
Analysis for reporting purpose as: MEEFEZ DTN
Current e 186,151 85,235
Non-current FEMRE = 720
186,151 85,955
The Group allows an average credit period of 0 to 30 days REEBAE SRR B R0ZE
(2022: 0 to 30 days] to its customers. 30H (20224 : 0230H) °
The following is a credit quality analysis of factoring KT BRI JEY B AN B E ESHT  fif
receivables. In the event that an instalment repayment of IRIEFEY S TE ) 77 B8 58 B - S (R
a factoring receivable is overdue, the entire outstanding WA B 2 BE AR B R A R 5 AR 75080 o

balance of the factoring receivables is classified as overdue.

2023 2022
20234 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Neither overdue nor credit-impaired ARG ECERE 195,549 82,787

Overdue and credit-impaired BHEREERE

- Overdue over 180 days —mHAER B 1808 - 34,084
195,549 116,871

Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEEIEREHE (9,398) (30,916)
186,151 85,955
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

[b]

20. FEWERR (&)
Kzt : (48)

Factoring receivables [Continued) b]  REBEHIE(E)
The overdue interest rate is charged at fixed rate 0.1% per BRI FE R B ELF0.1% (20224 : £ H
date (2022: 0.1% per date). 0.1%)YEX -
The effective interest rates of the above factoring receivables F2023F 12318 » L (REEJEW HIE
ranged mainly from 12.5% to 14.5% per annum as at 31 HEBRFFEREEEZRI25%F
December 2023 (2022: 12% to 13.5% per annum). 14.5% (2022%F : FFIFEI2%Z13.5%) °
As at 31 December 2023, the Group hold collateral of F2023F 1231 H » N5 BB IREE JE
the factoring receivables with a carrying amount of A B RREERBA K292 360,0007T
RMB292,360,000 (2022: RMB181,946,000] over the factoring (20224 : ARR¥5181,946,0007T ) B 1R FE
receivables. JEHGRIEHE i -
Movements of impairment loss on factoring receivables are 1RIEFENG S TE B (B TR BN L0 T -
as follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®TT
At beginning of year F4) 30,916 11,144
(Reversal of impairment loss) impairment  FAE R CREREREER)
loss recognised for the year EER (6,478) 19,772
Write off WisH (15,040) =
At end of year FER 9,398 30,916

The loss allowance was measured at an amount equal to 12
month and lifetime expected credit losses under the general
approach for factoring receivables. The changes in the loss
allowance was mainly due to the reversal of (il impairment
loss for those balances had been settled during the year; and
(ii] the written off those balances that cannot be recovered
after taking all possible measures and exhausting all legal

remedies.

REE EW IR 2 S IRIR AR IE — AR %
I8 A K FIRAFRRZBEBIES R
EHEETE o BRI HEE T B ED
(JRF A B AB A% S A eR A Bl EAS1R
R lii) 0 S5 AE ERER T B AT BETR B R A TT AT
BRRER BRI X EIAIZF /56
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20.

Notes: (Continued)
[c]  Trade receivables

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables from
sales of goods income, net of allowance for credit losses
based on the schedule to repay by customers as at the end of
the reporting period.

PEWBRR (42)
Hiit : (4)
lc) EZmKEN

RIBEBEIR - BRELENEFRREHK
B E B am A8 B 5 BN IR (Hk =
EEBRRE)RESTWT -

2023 2022
2023%F 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥T T
Within 1 year 1FR 20,854 2,882
After 1 year but within 2 years 15181826 R 883 1,987
21,737 4,869

Analysis for reporting purpose as: MEEFEZ DATIT
Current E 20,854 2,882
Non-current JETR B 883 1,987
21,737 4,869

The Group allows an average credit period of 0 to 30 days
(2022: 0 to 30 days] to its customers.

The following is a credit quality analysis of trade receivables.
In the event that an instalment repayment of trade receivable
is overdue, the entire outstanding balance of the trade

receivables is classified as overdue.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. EfR @& E CFI) RO BER A 7

FEEBEEFIEHAFHEEAZ0E
30H (20224F : 0F30H) »

U TRE ZER RO EEESIT © 14
B S EWRA 7 RIR 0 E - R E 5
YRR 2 BEAR (B R A5 £ 7 KB #3780 o
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (Continued)

[c]  Trade receivables (Continued]

20. FEWERR (&)

HfeE - (%)

lc)  EBSEREZ(E)

2023 2022

2023F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETF T AR¥TT

Neither overdue nor credit-impaired BEARB R ERE 17,149 3,237
Overdue but not credit-impaired B EEEERE

Overdue 30 days to 90 days #EA30H £90H 5,484 -

Overdue 90 days to 180 days #HI90H £ 180H 260 1,169

Overdue and credit impaired BHBEERE

Overdue 180 days B AAERIB 1808 - 3,316

22,893 7,722

Less: Allowance for credit losses B BB (1,156) (2,853)

21,737 4,869

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on trade

receivables area as follows:

B S ERRFRER R G Z BT

2023 2022

2023F 20225

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBTT

At beginning of year F9 2,853 580
(Reversal of impairment loss) impairment A B #ERH CRERERE)

loss recognised for the year S EETE (1,697) 2,273

At end of year FR 1,156 2,853

E SN IR BRI ETIRBE %%
FRABHEEERIESZH TR E B
RREGEEE T EH R EORFANEZE
H% FAEERAT B E TR ©

The loss allowance was measured at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses under the simplified
approach for trade receivables. The changes in the loss
allowance was mainly due to the reversal of impairment loss
for those balances had been settled during the year.
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d]

Receivables from operating leases

The following is an ageing analysis of receivables from
operating leases net of allowance for credit losses based on
the schedule to repay of the receivables as at the end of the

20.

FEUWR R (42)
HfeE - (%)

(d]

EEHEEWHE

RIREREIR + B EN S IEE R
AR & T B FEM A (H15 15 B E 18 51 )
BRSO T ©

reporting period.
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Within 1 year 1R 1,479 1,157
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥T T
Current e 1,479 1,157

The Group allows an average credit period of 0 to 30 days
(2022: 0 to 30 days] to its customers.

The following is a credit quality analysis of receivables from
operating lease. In the event that an instalment repayment
of receivables from operating lease is overdue, the entire
outstanding balance of the receivables from operating lease
is classified as overdue.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. EfR @& E CFI) RO BER A 7

FEEBEEFSIEHAFHEEAZ0E
30H (20224 : 0£30H) °

UTREEHERYIBAEEEES
M o (AR Z T B /& WA 69 77 B AR 5L 8
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ARE SRR MR
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. PEURBRFR(#)
Notes: [Continued) Miat - ()
[d]  Receivables from operating leases [Continued) [d] AEEHEEYWIE(E)
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Neither overdue nor credit-impaired AR B H RS BRI 1,483 1,163
Overdue and credit-impaired BB EERE
Overdue over 180 days A8 180 H - 28
1,483 1,186
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (4) (29)
1,479 1,157
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on AT B WA 2 R B ET R A &
receivables form operating lease are as follows: 2
2023 2022
2023 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT

At beginning of year F4 29 -
(Reversal of impairment loss) FANBE RN R EEEREE)
impairment loss recognised for the year  SR{EEIE (25) 29

At end of year FR 4 29
The loss allowance was measured at an amount equal to 12 A ST B JEW IR 2 ET IR 1R IR — AR
month and lifetime expected credit loss under the general TEZ 1218 A K F IR A7 A5 B 5 1E
approach for receivables from operating lease. The changes SRR E o EEREEE ] FEHR
in the loss allowance was mainly due to the reversal of BEEIRE R B 4505 HY 3% 55 45 B0 B )7, 18 /S
impairment loss for those balances had been settled during o
the year.
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21. GOODWILL 21. &
RMB’000
ARBF T
Cost B AR
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 42) and Wk — M B A R FTEE A (i EE42) &
at 31 December 2022, 1 January and 2022128318  2023F1A1B &
31 December 2023 12H31H 1,747

Goodwill is allocated to the following Group’s CGUs:

BENEE NIAEERSEL BN

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETR AR®TT

Provision of 5G base station site space FRAE5GEL Uk 15 b 2= 109 109
Provision of energy storage services R FEBE RS 1,638 1,638
1,747 1,747
Note: et -
For impairment testing of goodwill, the recoverable amount TEERERG N E - B ELE A AT O]
of CGUs are determined based on the higher of the fair value S EEIRIE N -FE 5 B EE 3 E L ANl B a1 FH
less cost of sales of the assets or its value-in-use estimate. No BlEREFAESZEMET  2022F Rk 20234F
impairment losses are recognised for the years of 2022 and 2023. PR B (E TS o
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22, EEBIE

AT R B HE B eyiHR — R AR
ETRERAERBRNETCHAEE(RE)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets
(Liabilities), after set off certain deferred tax liabilities of the

same taxable entity for financial reporting purposes. DT °
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR%T T
(Restated)
(&%)
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE = 15,639 17,607
Deferred tax liabilities REFIRRE (161) (199)
15,478 17,408

ATR/AFENBEFEERNEZRAE

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)

recognised and movements thereon during the current and E(BBE)REZEBER
prior years:
Allowance
for
impairment Right of Lease
losses use assets liabilities Total
BEBERE EAREE HEAE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AR®BTRT AR®BTR
At 1 January 2022 7202291 518
(as originally stated) (R5) 14,442 - - 14,442
Effects on adoption of RNEE G ER]
Amendments to HKAS 12 F125REET AR
o2 - (244) 255 11
At 1 January 2022 202291 818
(as restated) (RE71) 14,442 (244) 255 14,453
Credited (charged) to AR E) B
profit or loss 3,164 (2,149) 1,940 2,955
At 31 December 2022 and 72022612 A31H K&
1 January 2023 (as restated) 20231 H1H
(&E75) 17,606 (2,393) 2,195 17,408
(Charged) Credited to (IR B)ET AR
profit or loss (1,971) 671 (630) (1,930)
At 31 December 2023 720235 12H31H 15,635 (1,722) 1,565 15,478
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 22. BEEMIEE)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had unused tax losses R2023F12A31H » AEERFPBEELEZ
arising in the PRC of RMB23,903,000 (2022: RMB7,311,000) and RENF R IEE B A R #23,903,0007T (2022
other deductible temporary difference of RMB6,916,000 (2022: F: AR¥7311,0007T) & E 7] 050 &
RMB6,916,000) that will expire within 5 years for offsetting ZBARB69160007T (2022F : AR
against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not 6,916,0007T) MR 5F A fEw - A AR EER
been recognised in respect of these losses and deductible RIERT A - ARR B E LB A BE
temporary difference as it is not considered probable that ISR TE 18 K I FO B E A = 5 v R AR BN
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses A - BRI R 2 B B 1R N P OB B A RE
and deductible temporary differences can be utilised. RIRIEFRIBEE ©
23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
2023 2022
2023%F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR

Finished goods SIRK T 3,907 578
Raw materials ERE 712 56
4,619 634

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FB{ZIE - 24 R HAbpE SIS

RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥T T
Prepayments SRR 6,566 4,905
Value-added tax recoverable A Ug [E] BB 1,031 2,617
Other deposits Hivize 238 142
Other receivables E b U s IR 3,457 5,736
11,292 13,400
Less: Allowance for credit loss W EEEERE (2,044) (1,351)
9,248 12,049
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FANRUIE - RE N HMWEWIIE &)
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements of the impairment loss on other receivables are as Hib W IR EEEEEmT -
follows:
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥®TR

At beginning of year REFEA] 1,351 -
Impairment loss recognised for the year FARRBEEE 693 1,351
At end of year RER 2,044 1,351

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED COMPANIES/ 25. FEUR({Y)EBEE D B, FEIERA R

NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS EQ|
(a) Amounts due from related companies (a) FEUREEEE A RIMFRIE
2023 2022
20235 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMT T
Beijing Municipality Dayuan Tiandi bR AT RS Kb 5 th 2 e B
Property Development Co., Ltd. BRAR(TRIERHM])
HERm ARt EHERZEERAR)
("“Dayuan Tiandi") 7,952 -
Beijing City Longding Huayuan IR REREREHE
Property Development Co. Ltd. BREERHA
UERmEREREMERRETAR) (TSR]
("Longding Huayuan”) 22,967 22,424
30,919 22,424
Less: allowance for credit loss W EEEERE (803) (398)
30,116 22,026
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED COMPANIES/ 25 FEW({4)BBEEA T FEZRIRE

NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Continued) MIE (&)
(a) Amounts due from related companies (Continued) (a) FEWEFEE D BIRIFRIE(#)
Movements of impairment loss on amounts due from e AR A B R R EEEEES T

related companies are as follows:

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥TR

At beginning of year REF 398 836
Impairment loss (reversal of impairment & R EREIE
loss) recognised for the year CREEERE) 405 (438)

At end of year RER 803 398
Longding Huayuan is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ERIER AR 2EWBAT -
Dayuan Tiandi, which is also a shareholders, which RERMWAFERR 2 —  HEARF
22.26% interest in the Company. The loss allowance 22.26% s - BRASIBEENIRES
was measured at an amount equal to 12 months R E 1% Bl F AR I FE R IE 89 121 A
expected credit losses for sale leaseback and factoring RHEEEENSHEAE -
receivables.
The amounts due from related companies are trade ZERBIEWEBATMNNIE - BR
nature with credit period of 0 to 30 days (2022: 0 to 30 SHEE I HEF0ZE30K (20224 : 0230
days), unsecured and interest-free. KIEER - BEIEEETEE -
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED COMPANIES/
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Amount due to a related company

The amount due to a related company ¥/8B 8 /F8H
EABMR AT, anon-controlling interest of a subsidiary,
which represents deposits from a related company. As
at 31 December 2022, the entire balance included under
current liabilities are non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the balance was fully settled.

Amount due from a non-controlling interest

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the balance
represents are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. During the year ended 31

December 2023, the balance was fully settled.
Amount due to a non-controlling interest

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the entire balance
are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayment on or before 31 March 2023. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, balance of RMB 10,000,000 was
settled and the remaining balance of RMB3,900,000 was

agreed and waived by the non-controlling interest.

25 MEW(H)EBARFERRR

I (#)

(b)

(c)

(d)

FEASBARE X R RV FKIR

RN —EREBARRERE AEHER
BRAR(R— B QRN IEERER)
BVRIRIE R B —HREB A RNEE - ©
2022%12A318 - RBBEET 22
MERDRIFEHIEE - BER - 28
RBRERER - BLE2023F12A31
HILEFE  RERTERES

RS SE 22 IR 2R YRR IR

20234 K% 20224 12 A31 8 » k564
RIFBHME « EER - TEERER
BREE - HIE20235F12A31HIEF
& ZIEHETBEES -

FEAY SR IR R YRR IR

R2023F K% 202212318 * FiE#
SR RIEBEHME - BER - TFE
NMBR B 202343 A31 Bk 2 AifE
B o BE2023F12A31HIEFE - £
# AR #10,000,000c B 45 @ Eip4E
£ AR #53,900,000 7T B FEIE R A 25
FEER
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. BERBEEEY
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR AR®T T

Cash and bank balances B NIRRT 62,263 182,949
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has cash and bank M2023FE 128318 » KEEUAREAERD
balances denominated in RMB amounted to approximately B RIRITHEG B ARE62,102,0007T (2022
RMB62,102,000 (2022: RMB182,781,000], which are deposited F: ARK182,781.0007T) © iTEAH EE
with banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into NIRRT - AR BRI AINE o BiE
foreign currencies. Under the PRC Foreign Exchange Control B N B IR D A R A5 TE © S TE M EE
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales and BT NEBECREERERREINEE
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is R R BB NIRRT A BB 3 AANEE o

permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

Bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on daily RITEBTIIRENRNTHIRTERN R ZE
bank deposit rates and are deposited with creditworthy banks. FR BN B TZM= 2 B AR 1T -
27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. EFRHEHMENRIE
2023 2022
20234 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR

Trade payables [note a) B S RIE (M) 12,851 2,675
Accruals FEETE A 817 2,119

Deposits from finance lease customers REMEHERFPNZS
(note 30) (F7£30) 1,986 10,604
Deposits from suppliers (note 30) * B HrEEa RS (FE30) 120 2,024
VAT payables FETIEER 3,316 4,219
Others HAh 79 627
19,169 22,268
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Notes:

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 27. EZRAMBEMNRKE S
Hiat -
(a]  The ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group, based on la) AEEZEZREN BRI E B AR E R
invoice dates, at the end of the reporting period: ZHA BRI -
2023 2022
20235 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTT
Within 1 year 1R 12,851 2,675
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days BLZ 2023 IFFE - FEE Ban B F 15
(2022: 30 days] for the years ended 2023. The Group has ERIA30K(20224F : 30K ) - AEEF®
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all MR EERR « U ERATEET5E
payables are settled within the credit timeframe PMEERIRAN#E)E °
28. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 28. FEWFKIE
2023 2022
2023 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®T R

Current portion BERER 212 1,090
Non-current portion FERNEREL = 551
212 1,641

The amounts represent the advanced receipts on rental

income.

The Group receives certain amount of the contract value
as advance payment from customers when they enter into

contract.

ZELRIETARWEHERA -

AEERFPEIANRKR—ELENG
HWEBIERTANK
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224

29.

30.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. EHEE
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBTT
Contract liabilities arising from: aHaERe -
Sales of goods - every storage system HEMm—HE RS - 293

As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to nil.

The Group receives certain amount of the contract value as
deposits from customers when they place their purchase
order. This gives rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract until the Group transferred the control of goods to the

customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue amounting
to RMB293,000 (2022: nil) was recognised in the current year

which relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE LEASE CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Deposits from finance lease customers and suppliers
represent security pledged to the Group for the corresponding
finance lease customers. The amount of customer’s and
supplier’'s deposits of which the finance leases will be
expired after twelve months from the end of reporting period
is included under non-current liabilities. The balance on
customer’s and supplier’'s deposits of which the finance leases
will be expired within twelve months from the end of reporting
period is included in “trade and other payables” under current

liabilities.

30.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7

R2022%1A1H - BHEEBEAS -

AEERFFPELRER] ER KA NER
METESEESNE - AHNAEHIEL -
HENFMEEEAREEmERER—#E
BREPRL

REE2023F 128318 IEFEE - WEAEAR
#293,0007C(20224F : £) » JIARNFE R
WERLHEA L BEER -

REBMEHEEFRHEHNES

KEREHERTF MMtERANKSIERER
BEHEEFERTAKENRES - BEM
EaREMERET T EARERNES
REEEZRENSBITAFRBDAR - BE
HE B REHBRRET @A REROE
FREEEEZESEHRTARBDRBENES R
H At EFRIA] ©
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ARE SRR MR
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30. DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE LEASE CUSTOMERS 30. REmEHERFRHERNIRE

AND SUPPLIERS (Continued) (%)
2023 2022
2023%F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥T T
Current liabilities REBARE
Deposits from finance lease customers RERMEHERFPNES
lincluded in trade and other payables) (FtAB 5 K E M FERFRIE)
(note 27) (PiEE27) 1,986 10,604
Deposits from suppliers REMHEENZS
(included in trade and other payables) (BT AE 5 K E A& 5RIE)
(note 27) (PfE27) 120 2,024
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deposits from finance lease customers KEREBERFNRSE - 1,743
Deposits from suppliers REHERRIES = 120
- 1,863
31. BANK BORROWING 31. RITRE
2023 2022
2023F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMT T
Unsecured bank borrowing classified SRR EE G EER
as current liabilities RITEE 5,000 a
Carrying amount of bank borrowing —FREENRITEEREDE
repayable within one year 5,000 -
As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings was MN20234FE 12 831 H » RITEEUA RS
denominated in RMB, bore interest at fixed rate of 3.2% (2022: - IRETEEFRI2% (20224 : B)A R
nill per annum and repay within one year for the purpose of —EREE  (EZERR -

operating use.
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32. LEASES 32. HE
The Group as lessees REEEREEA
Right-of-use assets EREEE
31 December
12H31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR¥T T
Properties leased for own use HEBRYE 1,481 2,850
Properties leased for 5G base stations THEESGELMN Y 5,409 6,722
6,890 9,572
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there are additions BHZE2028F12A31BILLEE - BRHHE
of approximately RMB1,144,000 and RMB494,000 to right- EE R NGCEINYE  ANETRHAEEE
of-use assets (2022: RMB1,371,000 and RMB3,774,000) due 5 514 N 1,144,007 T2 A R # 494,000
to new lease of properties for own use and 5G base stations T (2022 : AR 1,371,000t R AR
respectively. 3,774,0007T) ©
Buildings
BF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Balance as at 1 January 2022 1202241 A1 B &SRR 975
Acquisition of business (note 42) FE U (E42) 3,934
Additions NE 5,145
Modification of lease - extending the lease term HEEFT-ERAL 1,735
Depreciation e (2,217)

Balance as at 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 72022412318 Kk2023%1 718

HAE R 9,572
Additions NE 1,638
Termination of lease WILFEE (1,622
Depreciation e (2,698
Balance as at 31 December 2023 7R2023F12 A31 B &4 4,890
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32. LEASES (Continued) 32. #HE#®)

The Group as lessees (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)]

For both years, the Group leases various properties in the PRC.
Lease contracts are entered into a fixed term from 2 years to 10

years with fixed payments.

Extension options are included in the lease of buildings. Certain
periods covered by extension options were included in these

lease terms as the Group was reasonably certain to exercise

REEERFEA(E)
EREEE(E)

RBEFE AEEETFEHEZEYE -
HEAOWBEEHNRA2F210F - AEE
5 o

EHEEEESNEEMHEET - ARAE
EAERTETEXEERE  AURFHEE
P EE TR EEREN LM -

the option.

Lease liabilities HESE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥ET T
Non-current JERED 3,784 6,095
Current mED 2,470 2,681
6,254 8,776

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there are additions
of approximately RMB1,144,000 and RMB494,000 to lease
liabilities (2022: RMB1,371,000 and RMB3,774,000) due to
new lease of properties for own use and 5G base stations

respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
terminated a lease of property amounted to approximately
RMB1,586,000 to lease liabilities. There is loss on termination
of leases of RMB36,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023.

B E2023F 12A31HIEFE - ARHAEE
B R RSCEIENYE - HEEED BIEINA
ARH1,144,0007T & A R#494,0007T (2022
F . AR¥1371,0007C & A R#3 774,000
TT) e

HE2028F12A3BLEEE A5EER
IEMERE  BHHAEEEHMHARE
1,586,0007T ° & Z= 2023512831 H L FE -
% I E 1B AR EES36,0007T ©
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32. LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessees (Continued)

32. HE#®)
REEERFEA(E)

Lease liabilities (Continued) HERE#E)
2023 2022
2023%F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR¥T T
Amounts payable under lease liabilities HE & FENRIE
Within one year —F AR 2,470 2,681
After one year but within two years —F LA EMFAA 1,539 2,635
After two years but within five years RFELA ERFEUAA 1,802 2,742
More than five years HBEAF 443 718
6,254 8,776
Less: Amounts due for settlement within -~ &l : B+ 1@ A R/EERNFIE
12 months (shown under current BIRmEBEIET)
liabilities) (2,470) (2,681)
Amounts due for settlement after FER (& 125 ERFIE
12 months 3,784 6,095
Amounts recognised in profit or loss RERERNRIE
2023 2022
2023%F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR¥T T
Depreciation of right-of-use assets by RIS EER RS DR EAE
class of underlying asset: BEFE
Properties leased for own use HEBRME 1,387 1,231
Properties leased for 5G base stations THEESCEER T E 1,311 9864
Loss on termination of leases RIEMHE 2 EE 36 =
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HE R BN SR 479 347
Expenses relating to short-term leases BREREENRX 169 225

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total cash
outflow for leases amounted to approximately RMB3,222,000

(2022: RMB3,821,000).

#%3,821,0007T) °
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

32.

LEASES (Continued)

Restrictions or covenants on leases

As at 31 December 2023, lease liabilities of RMB6,254,000 are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of RMB6,890,000
(2022: lease liabilities of RMB8,776,000 and related right-of-
use assets of RMB9,572,000). The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

The Group as lessors - Operating lease

The Group leased out the 5G base stations site space as
operating lease to independent third parties of varying terms.
The leases typically run for period of 5 to 10 years. The
rental income during the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB3,295,000 (2022: RMB1,814,000).

The minimum fixed rent receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:

32. HE#®)

HERHI L

MR2023F12A31H > BRAEEBEBAR
B 6,254,000 R ABREE AR EE AR
6,890,000 (20224 : HEBBEARK
8776000 T R HBEAEEEARK
9,572,000z ) ° T8 & 1 3% W £ 55 0 4F {7 22
o MEEETSREGRMNER -

AEBEEASHEA -EEHEE

R & B LA T [BHEFK #8 5G FE v 5 Hh 22 fif] [R) 8 32
B RHHEEAKLETHE - HBEBEASE
104 - &2 2023F 12 A3 H I FEMHAES K
A#) 5 N R H3,295,0007T (20224F = AR#E
1,814,0007T) °

NA]EUGH A8 2 10 B 1) SR (K B E HE 2 R UG
BIR

2023 2022
2023%F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Within one year —F LR 3,361 1,653
After one year but within two years —F A EMEAA 3,345 1,646
After two years but within three years RFIA E=F A 3,166 1,646
After three years but within four years =FUEEFENURN 1,815 1,629
After four years but within five years WEA ERFUAR 464 623
More than five years HiEAF 1,257 186
13,408 7,383
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BA&
Number
of shares RMB’000
RGEE ARBT T
Registered domestic share capital and ST & AR AR AN Ko HAR -
H Shares:
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, 20221818 « 2022128
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 31H ~ 202341 A 1H k20234

12H31H 359,340,000 359,340
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. &ATBBARRER
COMPANY
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MisE AR¥ET T AR®F T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Plant and equipment e ] 607 786
Intangible asset B EE 1,629 1,883
Interests in subsidiaries RHTB R RIS 447,655 447,655
Finance lease receivables mEHEREWFIE = 300
Accounts receivables JEYBR TN 61 9,333
Right-of-use assets EREEE 473 1,691
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABEAN
TREE 5,435 4,797
Deferred tax assets FERIBE = 9,877 9.877
465,737 476,322
Current assets REEE
Finance lease receivables mEHEREWFIE 8,291 14,940
Accounts receivables JE U BR TR 187,370 18,139
Prepayments, deposits and BRFEIE - Rek
other receivables E b U IR 1,265 2,829
Amount due from a subsidiary (note a)  FEUR—RHIBA RIZKIE
(Mf7Ea) 37,023 48,603
Amount due from a related company  FEURREAEE A &) 58
(note b) (Mf7Eb) 30,054 22,026
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 25,350 161,650
289,353 268,187
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H A 5RTE M BT B R 2,966 22,393
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note a)  FEfTHIE A RFIE
(MfzEa) 306,986 278,319
Lease liabilities HEAE 477 825
Tax payables e IR 134 69
310,563 301,606
Net current liabilities REEEFE (21,210) (33,419)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBEE 444,527 442,903
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. ARABMBERRFTE)

COMPANY (continued)
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARET AR®T T
Non-current liabilities FkRBAE
Deposits from finance lease RERMEHERERP &
customers and suppliers HEmNIZ S - 1,864
Lease liabilities HEaE = 866
- 2,730
Net assets BEEFE 444,527 440,173
EQUITY R
Share capital RN 359,340 359,340
Reserves EE 36 85,187 80,833
Total equity FERAARE 444,527 440,173
Note: HteE -
8. The amounts are non-trade in nature, unsecured, non- a. BZEABBHEZME - FEEHF - TEE
interest bearing and repayable on demand. AEZEKIER -
b.  The amounts are trade in nature, unsecured, non-interest b. BZEAEEBEZIME  EHH 2EHE
bearing and repayable on demand. BESK(EE o
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. TEMBEATR
Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: ERETENBRARFBNOT !
Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting power
held by the Company
ERRREN
Place of FERRERR
incorporation/ REEBDL
Form of operation and 2023 2022
business principal activities Issued and 2023F 2022F
Name structure SRR EELRR paid up capital % %
£ BREBIA TEED ERTRARRE % %
Directly Held
HERE
PR ERBEREERAR Alimited liability ~ Provision of factoring RMBS50,000,000 100 100
Shan Shan Fullin Factoring Co., Ltd. company services in the PRC
("Fullin Factoring’)
PR ERRFREARLR ([ ERERE]) ARAE] e B ARIR AR 7 AR 50,000,007 100 100
IRV BERREREBRAR Alimited liability ~ Supply of medical RMB33,710,000 100 100
Beijing Shan Shan Medical Technology company equipment in the PRC
Development Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Medical’|
IRV BERRERERAR((LREBR]) EARAA EhERHERRE AR#33,710,0007 100 100
RAEERRARERRAR Alimited liability ~ Provision of finance leasing ~ RMB170,000,000 100 100
Tianjin Fullin Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. company inthe PRC
ARERRERERRAR BRAT EhERMHBERS ARH170,000,0007C 100 100
KEEREHREERERAR Alimited liability ~ Investment activities and RMB200,000,000 100 100
Zhuhai Fuylin Yunlian Investment Management ~ company asset management
Co., Ltd. [FY Yunlian] in the PRC
KERRERRAERERAR(ERER]) ARAA EREZREED L AR#200,000,0007T 100 100
BEER
ERTFEAREREERAR Alimited liability ~ Investment activities and RMB510,000 51 51
Guangdong Yuanyu Cornerstone Information Company asset management
Technology Co., Ltd. ["Yuanyu'] in the PRC
ERTFEAGEEMEBRAA(TE]) BRAT ETPEREEHREEEE  ARES510,0007 51 51
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued]

35. EMBEAT )

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting power

held by the Company
LN
Place of FERRRER
incorporation/ RERBDL
Form of operation and 2023 2022
business principal activities Issued and 2023F 2022
Name structure EMRY BEHRR paid up capital % %
£ BREBIA Et:371 ) BRTRARZRE % %
Indirectly Held
BEER
RIEETERRERAR Alimited liability ~ Tele-communication tower - 51 51
Shenzhen Huixinzhida Technology Co., Ltd. Company infrastructure business
(note b) in the PRC
RYEEEUER AR A (M) BRAA EPEBEEEERRIE - 51 51
£
ERSETRERERAR Alimited liability ~ Tele-communication tower - 51 51
Guangdong Yideng Engineering company infrastructure business
Construction Co., Ltd. (note ] in the PRC
BEREE IRERARAR M) BRRA ErEBEEAERRIE - 51 51
ES)
IHZRERRERGERAR Alimited liability ~ Tele-communication tower RMB13,200,000 60 60
Jiangsu Anshi Commercial Energy Storage company infrastructure business
System Co., Ltd. ("Jiangsu Anshi”) (note a) in the PRC
IHZRERREZLARAR(CIRRR])  ARAA ErE BEEEERRE  AKR13,200,0007T 60 60
(Mfita) ES)S
BRIV ARERERERAR Alimited liability ~ Research and development - 60 306
Ningbo Shanshan Contract Energy company commercial energy
Management Co., Ltd. ["Ningbo Shan Shan’| storage system
(note dJ in the PRC
ERUPARRRERARAR(ERMY]) ARAHA ErEMEEREE RS - 60 30.6
(Mfzxd)
R ERAA] Alimited liability ~ Sales product of energy RMB500,000 48 48
Beijing Yuanneng Technology Co., Ltd company storage systems
IR AR AT] BRAF HEREARER AR #500,0007 48 48
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. FEMBAR (&)
Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting power

opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the

Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during

None of the subsidiaries have non-controlling interests that

are material to the Group.

the both years and at the end of both years.

held by the Company
KRAREN
Place of FiERRER
incorporation/ REEEAL
Form of operation and 2023 2022
business principal activities Issued and 20235 20225
Name structure HRAL BEHBER paid up capital % %
8 BREBIA IEED ERTRBRRE % %
AL E R AR A Alimited liability ~ Information transmission, RMB300,000 60 -
Shenzhen Anshi Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* company software and information
technology services in the
PRC
AL LR R AR A AR PEENES  TRREN  AK®3000007T 40 -
BB
ANRREFEREBRAT Alimited liability ~ Wholesales and retail RMB300,000 36 -
Shenzhen Anshi Industrial company business in the PRC
Development Co., Ltd*
ALEEXERARAT] AR PEBERTERH AR300,0007 36 -
KBEZERRA] Alimited liability ~ Retail business in HK HKD 100,000 60 -
Siuyuen Industrial Co., Ltd* company
KEEXBRAH] ARAH] BRATERH 100,000/ 7 60 -
# The subsidiaries are newly incorporated during the year # KEFF 0T B 2N F]

FRIEARRBEERAIEZEARER
BREERABENASEMERR - ARF
BEERR REEMGHBARNFBERER
RIRBRITR

RMEFERARRMEFER  SHEHEL
AR BTERERKES

A B 2 R A SR B B A M SRR
s -
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued]

Note:

(a)

Pursuant to agreement, subject to the fulfillment of the

performance targets of Jiangsu Anshi for each of the years
ending 2022, 2023 and 2024 (the "Performance Targets",
each a "Performance Target’] and the conditions precedent

set out below each of FY Yunlian, third parties A and B, being

the other shareholders of Jiangsu Anshi agreed to transfer

certain portion of their respective equity interest in Jiangsu

Anshi to third party C in the following manner:

(1)

(2]

Upon fulfillment of the Performance Target of the net
profit after tax of not less than 0 for the year ended
31 December 2022, FY Yunlian, third parties A and B
shall, in proportion to their respective percentage of
equity interest in Jiangsu Anshi, collectively transfer
in aggregate 10% of the equity interest in the Jiangsu
Anshi to third party C at a transfer price of 1.2 times
the corresponding amount of registered capital (the
‘First Transfer");

Upon fulfillment of the Performance Target of the
growth in net assets value of not less than 20% for
the year ended 31 December 2023 comparing the net
assets value of Jiangsu Anshi as at 31 December 2023
with that of 31 December 2022 [excluding the change
in the net asset value resulting from further capital
contribution to Jiangsu Anshi [(if anyl), FY Yunlian,
third parties A and B shall, in proportion to their
respective percentage of equity interest in Jiangsu
Anshi, collectively transfer in aggregate 10% of the
equity interest in Jiangsu Anshi to third party C at a
transfer price of 1.3 times the corresponding amount
of registered capital (the "Second Transfer”); and

35. FEMBAR (&)

HaE -
(a)

RIZ G735 + 141 8 s R B B 20224 -
2023 R 2024 4F |F F [F 5 FRIKH B 1=
([ZBEE 55— ZEEEIRT
X BRI RMFEEER # - FREH -
E=FARB(AIT# <695 —fRE) Al
BBBUTH SR E G RI#RFHIES
DRI FGE=TC :

(1)

(2]

RERL B Z 202291231 B IFF
BRI B E AT TEROR X5 B 1Z
% BIREHE BE=HARBELIEE
REEERT#f I RIELEG] -
I E R T EE 258528
& ME=TFCEEASFI0%H9)T
BRI ([ —KEE])

FR)T B 22 5 32 I B 2 2023 F 12 A
31 A I FERFEEEERT LR
20% ) &K B B 1ZE (#Z R 2023F 12 A
31 H m) % & B HEHR2022F 12 A
B FEEMELBRL)E T
BT — AT B b T B S E
EFEFELNEE(NE) o FiRE
B BE=FARBAKEKREZES AR
JTERZ BT IR IELL ) - A fE R
BRG] SRR B - E=
TrCEE g A £ 10% 89T #% L0 R

([E=kEE:%]) : &
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued]

Note: [Continued]

(a)

(Continued]

(3] Upon fulfillment of the Performance Target of the
growth in net asset value of not less than 20% for the
year ending 31 December 2024 comparing the net
assets value of Jiangsu Anshi as at 31 December 2024
with that of 31 December 2023 (Excluding the change
in the net assets value resulting from further capital
contribution to Jiangsu Anshi [if any]), FY Yunlian,
third parties A and B shall, in proportion to their
respective percentage of equity interest in Jiangsu
Anshi, collectively transfer in aggregate 9% of the
equity interest in the Jiangsu Anshi to third party C at
a transfer price of 1.4 times the corresponding amount
of registered capital (the “Third Transfer”).

Each of the First Transfer, the Second Transfer and the
Third Transfer is conditional upon the following conditions
precedent: [i] the Group having complied with the relevant
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and all
applicable laws and regulations regarding the disposal of
Jiangsu Anshi by the Group in respect of each of the First
Transfer, the Second Transfer and the Third Transfer; and (i)
the capital contribution during the initial stage to be made by

third party C having been fully paid.

The Performance Targets shall be determined in accordance
with the financial reporting standards and interpretations
for business enterprises issued by the China Accounting
Standards Committee of the China Ministry of Finance.

The Group has contributed RMB13,200,000 among the total
registered capital of RMBZ22,000,000 of Jiangsu Anshi. The
remaining RMB8,800,000 capital is contributed by three
third parties who classified as non-controlling interest to
the Group, which third party C have not fully paid yet. FY
Yunlian, third parties A and B did not transfer in aggregate
10% of equity interest in Jiangsu Anshi to third party C as at
31 December 2023.

35. FEMBAR (&)
fiat - (%)

(a)

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7

(%&)

(3] ROIEFZIFEMKE R 2024F 1231
HiFFEFEEEERTLR20%
HIRE B IE(HR2024F 12831 H
BE A EE B E R 20234F 12 A 31 H &Y
FEEELERRL)#E  TEIT#
— AT B B L E R E
BEMEE)(IE) EREH - £
ZHARBEZRRES ART#HEL
BEERIRIELE P - IRIEIEF A A &
BE 1 4I5S BBEETE - ME =5 CE
EAERINET AL hF R ([ =R
=ZE) -

FRBE - FRBERE=RNEEY
FME LA TIERIGE - ()X EEEBLE —
REBE B RBRERE = NBETE T
B B AR B ] € )T % 205 B GEM _E 71 42
RIRPr BB AR ROZRBIERNE + K
li|FE=F CEREIFERAHE -

XU B IZERET B BT B & a1 ER
ZRERM LRI BIREER Rz FEE

=

E e

KEBETHLIFiF MM E LR BREA R
22,000,000 ¢ # 1 & A K # 13,200,000
JT ° B N AKK8800000;TAI =FF=
FHE  Z=EE=H P EARRNEEIE
fRiERE - HPE = HCHARBE - 1R2023
FI12H31H » EREH - E=HAKBI
A E = CER T R I AT 10% AR HE ©
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued]

Note: [Continued]

(a)

(b

(c]

(d]

(Continued]

Jiangsu Anshi has contribution to the Group's revenue and
profit of RMB705,000 and RMB107,000 to the consolidated
profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 upon the
completion establishment and Jiangsu Anshi has not fulfill
the growth in net assets value of not less than 20% for the
year ended 31 December 2023 comparing with 31 December
2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Jiangsu Anshi has
not fulfill the growth in net assets value of not less than 20%
for the year ended 31 December 2023 comparing with 31
December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Jiangsu Anshi has not
fulfill the net profit after tax of not less than 0 for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values
of the instrument obligating the Group to transfer shares of
Jiangsu Anshi at the transfer prices as at 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022 were considered as immaterial.

The registered capital is RMB10,000,000 and it is still not yet
paid up as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The registered capital is RMB10,000,000 and it is still not yet
paid up as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The registered capital is RMB10,000,000 and it is still not
yet paid up as at 31 December 2023. For the year ended
31 December 2022, 51% of the interest in Ningbo Shan
shan was directly held by the Group’s non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Jiangsu Anshi so that the Group had resulting
effective interest of 30.6%. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group acquired additional 49% interest
in Ningbo Shan Shan at consideration of RMB 4,210,000 and
the Group's effective interest has increased from 30.6% to
60%.

35. FEMBAR (&)
HfeE - (%)

(a)

(b]

(c]

(d]

(&)

ITHZIHRTEHE T EH A EEER S
20224F 12 531 H 1F FE 89 A K i F
BBt 7 Bl A A BB 705,000 K A B #
107,0007T -+ [y T #fk &5 R BB AL 22023
FI12A31HIFFEEEFEBK2022F12
H31HIERTER20% 49 B1Z °

BB 2023 12531 HIFF/E - JTE LR

BB F2023F12831 H1FEELE
SEEBRE Z2022F12H31 HIFFEEK
TMER20% 89 B 12 °

BHE2022F 1231 HIFFE @ JTE#FLE
REBEZ202212 31 HIFFEEFH#
SEi FITME R0 B 4Z -

ARNFEFRR  NEEEFZEBE2023
F12H31H 2022412831 A #8238
TEB88T ar LT R 172 T AR A-FEHE
BTEKX -

FMEREA KB 10,0000007T @ BEE
20234 52022412831 B K E/E °

FMERAA KK 10,000,000 @ B E
20234 J520224F 12 531 B K44 /E °

M ER A AL 10,000,0007T @ B E
20234 12431 H i K #/E - BLE2022F
12A31HIEFE » EREIE51%ARIER A
EF B IR B W E N BT B L B
B N AREEHEE30.6%ERER o &
B2023F 12831 HIFFF » KEBL A
BN B #4,210,0007T 4 78 2235 2 2 88 9)
49% W 2 NI E A BB 2 130.6%

1Z60% o
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KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12431 H1EF/Z

36. RESERVES 36. #E
The Company /N
Capital Statutory Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
EXRHE EE R REEF Loy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE AR®¥TR AR%TR AR®TxR

As at 1 January 2022 7202291 R18 31,097 14,748 64,247 110,092
Loss and total comprehensive &R K& 2 X

expenses for the year Gk - - (24,590) (24,590)
Dividends paid BERRE = - (4,669) (4,669)

As at 31 December 2022 and 420225128318 &

1 January 2023 2023F1A1H 31,097 14,748 34,988 80,833
Profit and total comprehensive 4 3EF K 2 EUA
income for the year kL] = = 4,354 4,354
At 31 December 2023 720235128318 31,097 14,748 39,342 85,187
Note: Hiat -
The capital reserve of the Company represents the difference of KRB E K IR 1L E (B (B % 7T AR (7 89
the shares issued at premium over par value, net of share issue ZEE(HIBRRD BT ) °
expenses.
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BHARS
(a]  Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated (a) BZESAVBREEMIBPOTIHEES
financial statements, the Group had the following I RNEEFE - NEBHF 5| HEGH
transactions with related party during the years: FHIR S :
2023 2022
2023 20225
Name of related parties Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
B B REME ARBTRT AR®BFR
Dayuan Tiandi (note i) Income from factoring transaction 502 =
RIbARM (P RERXHKA
Longding Huayuan [note ii) Income from sales-leaseback
e D) transaction 1,029 3,432
EREEZZ A
Income from factoring transaction 672 -
RIZZ HUWA
Lease payment (note) 117 -
HE R PR
Interest on lease liabilities 15 =
HEABEME
Note: Hiat -
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered Bl 2023F 12A31 HIFFE - &
into a three-year lease in respect of property leased for & E— R A Rl E(EE AT
own use from a related company of the Group. The amount FEIV=FHHEE - RIEZHE A&
of rent payable by the Group under the lease is RMB14,000 B A EA S BARE14,0005T - RE
per month. At the commencement date of the lease, the EFiR AR - A& EEREAEESER
Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability of HEB B AR461,0005T ° BR2023412
RMB461,000. As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount H31H » ZHEBEHREELBAR
of such lease liabilities is approximately RMB315,000. During #5315,0007T ° BLZE20234F 12531 H 1EF
the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has made B - REEE [RZ 2 FlS (T E T
lease payment of RMB117,000 to the related company. AR 117,0005T °
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 37. BEARS (&)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Other than the remuneration paid to directors,
supervisors and employees of the Group as set out in
note 13, who are considered as the key management
personnel of the Group, the Group did not have any
other significant compensations to key management

personnel.

The remuneration of the directors of the Company and
key management personnel of the Group is determined
by the board of directors of the Company having
regard to the Group's operating results and individual

performance.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. EfR @& E CFI) RO BER A 7

(b)

FEEEASFHM

BRISFE 1B N TASEES - &
FrEE(BAR/AEEEREEAR)
FBSN  AEETEFNEEZEEAR
SAHEATE L E AR

ARBEERAKETEEEAESNH
MAEAATEETELEBARELEE
BREARBRETE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 38, B EZEIE4MNEEHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Non-cash changes
FREEH
Waive of
amount due Interest ~ New lease
toanon- expenseson arrangement/

1January  Financing  controlling lease lease 31 December
2023  cash flows interest liabilities  termination 2023

HEEM HHE
023F BME FEREE NEEEE 2/ 02
1818 HeRE WHE WASREX  BERLE 12B31A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Lease liabilities [note 32) BEaBE(HEs2) 8,776 (3,053) - 479 52 6,254

Amount due to a non-controlling [T JHERR B AR
interest (note 25) (HfzE25) 13,900 (10,000) (3,900) - - -
Bank borrowing (note 31) SATIRF(ME3T) - 5,000 - - - 5,000
22,676 8,053 (3,900) 479 52 11,254
Non-cash changes
HHEEY

Interest New lease

Acquisition expenses  arrangement/
1 January Financing ~ of business on lease lease 31 December
2022 cashflows (note 42) liabilities  modification 2022

Mg
HE WExE  HERE i/ 0225
202051718 Aehe& (Fitzt42) MEFX T 12R31H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Lease liabilities note 32) HEAE(HEE) 1,020 (359%) 4125 347 6,880 8,776
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 39. EXREE
2023 2022
20235 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTFT
Capital expenditure in respect of MARE MBS mER A D TAME
the acquisition of property, plant and RRHEWEEYE - BB M
equipment contracted for but not provide R EARXZ
in the consolidated financial statements - 633
Contracted for but not yet incurred: EETAMBEMARELE ¢
Commitments for investment in a fund EES 7 & 15,000 15,000
15,000 15,633
40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4L0. EEEBEE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities NEEEEBEERUABRAERNE LB
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BEKE RS BE(IERFREIRANTE &
while maximising the return to shareholders through the AEE IR E A O3 o ANEE A ERESRASE -
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall —EE MRS
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which NEBNEN EEPIEER ER(BEWNE
includes bank borrowing amount due to a non-controlling 31 - 252 ERRITEE - EAIEIER
interest and lease liabilities disclosed in notes 31, 25 and BEFELBEERRE  HEBERELRESEE
32, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable W) RANAEIES AEEES(BED BT
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, N AR R E A ERE) o
retained profits and other reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure NARIEETHRFTERNERE o RNis B2
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company B ARREEEREEARRANNBEEE
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each AEENER - BEAATEENES - &~
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors EFBBEBRTNIRE - BITHIR LI O 6
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital DA BT EFS S BB B IR A &5 3K T H X

structure through the payment of dividends, new shares issues BRRNDERE o
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debt.
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AR ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 41, €T H
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €mTEHER
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ET T
Financial assets SEEE
At FVTPL: BAERT ABR : 63,102 48,706
At amortised cost b 5= DN 367,657 350,525
430,759 399,231
Financial liabilities SRIEE
At amortised cost FR A Pk AN 20,853 41,012
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEREEBRERBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include finance
lease receivables, accounts receivables, amounts due
from (to) related companies and a non-controlling
interest, deposits and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables, bank
borrowing, and deposits from finance lease customers
and suppliers. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk], credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

AEENTESRMTADERELER
WIR - FEURARTR - FEMRRERE A B KR 3F
RS OR « e MAMEKEOR
RelReFEY  BARKLEAME
N#3E - RITEERKEREHERF
R ERERE - ZF2RTANFER
HEMERE - ZEFeR TAMNEH
R B AT SRR (SRR &M X E
) EERRERBESAR - ZF
REREERBEREIINT - EREER
RESARZERRR - R KB RUBSRE
EETEE °
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account any collateral held or other credit enhancements,
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from finance
lease receivables, account receivables, amounts due from
related companies and non-controlling interest, cash and
cash equivalents, contract assets and other receivables and
deposits. The carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

41.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7

@I EE)
EEREK

FEERAREAEENRZIHFTIETANE
BMaEAREERT IR ER © 12023
FR2022512A310 - AEBRSF 5 REE
BITREMA RS NEBRZ M B EEM
Er&SEERRKBESMBHRRA
FHECHERSBEERIE(T RAEER
B EMER R EMEEILZR) o

AEENEERRI2RAMEREREK
A - MR - IR N R K IR s
R A RREEEY  GHNEEREM
YRR RIZE - ZEBHRREE/NSE
B REERRNSAEERR -

REEREEERR  AEEEEECEE
—EANEREEEEERSE EEEHLRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TN

AR ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)]

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout the
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. Especially the following indicators are

incorporated:
. internal credit rating;

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s

ability to meet its obligations;

. significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the debtors, including changes in the
payment status of debtors in the Group and changes in

the operating results of the debtors.

41.

@I EE)
EERME)

REE L BEERRHERRFHROAEMER
EREHRANEERRESARERER
e EFEEERRRDRBZEME - A
B EERN RS HRELENNARETR
R BN ENRBETLER - REEER
BRHNAERIFFIERELER - R4
BLATER :

s RNEEEA:

. TEEHEEBERABITRBOEN T
ERBBNET  PHIEERROE
o TR AT

e BHRANBEHRARTRABLEZAE
B BERAKEEHANNTNELE
AR BB ARG S RERERE -
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)]

Finance lease receivable, receivable from sale and
leaseback transaction, trade receivables, contract asset
and amounts due from related companies

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s concentration of credit
risk on the finance lease receivables, receivables from sale
and leaseback transaction, trade receivables and trade-related
amounts due from related companies included five major
counterparties accounting for 59% (2022: 92%) and the largest
customers accounted for 23% (2022: 36%) of the Group’s total

revenue.
Receivables from operating leases

Given the nature of the Group's business, it has concentration
risk for the receivables due from two customers which are
subsidiaries of large telecommunication operators accounting
for 100% (2022: 100%) of the Group's total receivables from

operating leases at 31 December 2023.
Cash and cash equivalents

Most of the Group’'s cash and cash equivalents are held
in major reputable financial institutions in the PRC, which

management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group is exposed to the concentration of geographic
risk on revenue which is generated mostly from customers
located in the PRC. The Group has closely monitor the
business performance of these customers in the PRC and will

considered diversifying its customer base as appropriate.

41.
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TRIR®E)
EERRE)

BMEHERYE ERERR S 2EIW
IR - EZRUWRRRENEEREWE

/NETE L

2023F 128318 - AEBERE TR EEUGK
B ERARNR S 2 BKFIE - B 5 EKE
FREWEBARNE S RARENERE
ERBRBERREIERF  A5EB K=
59%(20224F 192%) * REARFPHAEEE
U #523%(20224F : 36%) ©

HEHERWRIR

ENAEEMERMDG - R2023F12A31
H  ARERREREE(BAREEEEEN
M AR MRIBLAEELCEHER KA
HAZEH)100% (20224F : 100%) @ HUIF/EEP
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)]

Other receivables and amount due from a non-controlling
interest

For other receivables and amount due from a non-controlling
interest, the directors of the Company make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. The Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on outstanding
balances individually. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

In accordance with the Guideline for Loan Credit Risk
Classification issued by the CBRC, the Group has established
a loan credit risk classification system and performs credit
risk management based on loan classification in one of five
categories. The Group classifies loans into the following five
categories: normal, special-mention, substandard, doubtful
and loss, of which substandard, doubtful and loss loans are
regarded as non-performing loans. The five categories of
loan classification into which the Group classifies its accounts

receivable are set out below:

41.

@I EE)
EERME)

HL Ao PRI R IR N B YR IR 4% IR R 28 Y 7R TR

A L b LS R TR B R UK 2R R 25 K IR T
5 ARAEESREESEMFIEATE
HERNEEMEEES  EHHEMREK
IR R @ M TTE B G - AARES
AR ZEFRBVRERAREERRE
FRZIE N - WiR12(8 A B EEEER A
RRE  AEEREBEBHEEBRENE K
EREHRE —EITRERN G - Bt - AQF
EERRAKENEERREAKRE -

RigPERESEMNCERRR DRI
5 AREEHEEREERR—ERHM
DEEGLETEERRER - ARERE
REIDBATHE : EF - Bx - R& A
RNRER - HURR - AR MBREERE
BRTRER - REBEEL DR 2 BEARK
ZHBERSEWT
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) M. eRMIA®)
Credit risk (Continued) EERR (&)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk AEEHBRNEERR
The Group's current credit risk grading framework comprises AEBERNEEERRS RIERBIEAT
the following categories: 155

Finance lease receivables,
contract asset/
trade receivables/

and amounts due Other financial
Description from related companies  assets
MEHERKRRIE - 808
E/ESRNFEREKR
i 2] NGBS HtteMEE
Normal Borrowers can honour the terms of their Lifetime ECL - 12 month ECL
loans. There is no reason to doubt their not credit impaired
ability to repay principal and interest in
full on a timely basis. (refer to as Stage 1)
ES ERANBAETREERGR - BEHIERE FRABHEEBHE-BE 12EABRBEEEE
REREBBEELR S RS HBES - ERE
(TR ASREELT)
Special Borrowers are able to service their loans Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
mention currently, although repayment may be not credit impaired not credit impaired
adversely affected by specific factors.
(refer to as Stage 1)
x BEERABRIARNEEERN - BFHE FRABEHEESE - BE FRABHEES
— LA HEREE TN ENEE - ERiE B-BEERE

(T8 PR
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)]

4. TRMT R

EERRE)

Finance lease receivables,
contract asset/

trade receivables/

and amounts due

Other financial

Description from related companies  assets
MEHERKRRIR - 808
E/ESRNFEREK

it ) NS Hitb EBEE

Substandard  Borrowers ability to service their loans is in Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
question and they cannot rely entirely on credit impaired credit impaired
normal operating revenues to repay principal
and interest. Losses may ensue even when
collaterals or guarantees are invoked.

(refer to as Stage 2)

IX#R ERARERENHERE - T2REELE FRABHEEEFE -8 FRABREES
EERBANEEIRBEREERAL - BIEHRT  RE B—EERE
R - ARG EK —EEK - (HRER2)

Doubtful Borrowers cannot repay principal and Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
interest in full and significant losses will credit impaired credit impaired
need to be recognised even when
collaterals or guarantees are invoked.

(refer to as Stage 3)

AJ &R ERABERBEEENASL - BMEHEA FRAEHEEFE —FE FRABHEES
ERRETER - DEEEERERA W E B-EERE
1Bk - (FHRFEER3)

Loss Only a small portion or none of Amounts is written off Amount is written off
the principal and interest can be recovered
after taking all possible measures and
exhausting all legal remedies.

PN FEERERFA A Al BERV R ik — t) S R HO)A R R & R

BFr & - AENAREAKRE - R EE
Yl FE s o
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ARE SRR MR
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. EMIEE)
Credit risk (Continued) FERMKE)

TREHEAREBMN20235F £ 2022612 A31H
ERAREHERKEFE SRHEHERFZEK
IR~ REBYERIR - BHRKER - 64
BEMEEHERKFRZ EERAR MTAH

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for finance lease receivables,
receivables from sale-leaseback transactions, factoring

receivables, trade receivables, contract asset and receivables

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN] CO.,

from operating leases as at 31 December 2023 and 2022: EEEBRR
Loss Net carry
12m or Gross allowance amount
31 December Internal lifetime ECL #E EERE REFE
2023 Notes credit rating 128 AR FRA RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2023%12831H Mz ABEETR HHEEER AR¥TT AR¥ETRT AR%TR
Finance lease 19 Doubtful Lifetime ECL
receivables (credit impaired) 18,857 (10,627) 8,230
BE &R UG 19 A&k FRABHREEER
(EERME)
Receivables from 20(a)  Doubtful Lifetime ECL
sale and leaseback (credit impaired) 30,336 (25,404) 4,932
EREORHEKFIE  20(a) AR 1218 AEEfEEEE
(EERME)
Factoring receivables 20(b) Normal 12m ECL 195,549 (9,398) 186,151
RIBFENRIR 20(b) IE® 2{EAREHEEEE
Trade receivables 20(c) Normal Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) 17,149 (896) 16,253
H 5 YR 20(c) IE® FRABHEREER
GHEERE)
Special Mention  Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) 5,484 (125) 5,359
x FRABHREEER
GHEERME)
Substandard Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired] 260 (135) 125
KRR FRAEEEEE
(ZERME)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) L. ST EE)
Credit risk (Continued) EERk(E)
Loss Net carry
12m or Gross allowance amount
31 December Internal lifetime ECL #E EERE REFE
2023 Notes credit rating 128 ARFRA RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2023%12831H M ABEEFR BHEEEER AR¥TT AR¥ETET AR%TR
Receivables from 20(d) Normal 12m ECL
operating leases 1,483 (4) 1,479
et E R IA 20(d) IE® 12EREHEEER
Amounts due from 25 Normal Lifetime ECL
related companies (not credit impaired) 30,919 (803) 30,116
FEUS Bk Rl FRIB 25 % FRABHREEESE
GEEER(E)
Amount due from a 25 Normal 12m ECL
non-controlling
interest 1,900 - 1,900
AR EROTIE 25 R 2EREHEEER
Other receivables 24 Normal 12m ECL
and deposits 3,457 (2,044) 1,613
Hth e I8 Rige 2% IE® 1218 AEEEEEE
Cash and cash 26 Normal 12m ECL
equivalents 62,263 - 62,263
RekReEED 26 IEE 2R EREEER
367,657 (49,436) 318,221
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) L. ST EE)
Credit risk (Continued) N AC )
Loss Net carry
12m or Gross allowance amount
31 December Internal lifetime ECL BE EERE BREFE
2022 Notes credit rating 128 A FRA RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20221278318 M AEEER RHEEER ARBTRT AR®TR AR%TxR
Contract asset 17 Normal Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) 4,621 (49) 4,572
BHEE 17 IE® FRAEPEEER
GEEER(E)
Finance lease 19 Normal Lifetime ECL
receivables (not credit impaired) 3,873 (300) 3,573
REHEREYIA 19 IE® FRAEDHEEER
(EEERE)
Special Mention  Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) 2,681 (353) 2,328
2)a FRABEDHEEER
GEEER(E)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired) 22,496 (13,157) 9,339
AlEE FRAEPEEER
GEEER(E)
Receivables from 20(a) Normal 12m ECL
sale and leaseback 22,500 (400) 22,100
ERMERSENFIE 20 EF 12 RTRBEEER
Special Mention  Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) 1,204 (10) 1,194
x FRAEPEEER
GHEERE)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired) 30,606 (26,428) 4,178
Al&E FRABRBEEER
(EERE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. S@MIA®E)
Credit risk (Continued] FERMKE)
Loss Net carry
12m or Gross allowance amount
31 December Internal lifetime ECL e EERE REFE
2022 Notes credit rating 128 ARFRA RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2022%12831H M ABEEFR BHEEEER AR¥TT AR¥ETET AR%TR
Factoring receivables ~ 20(b] Normal 12m ECL 82,787 (1,820) 80,967
RIBEM IR 200b) EE 1218 AEEEEEE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)] 34,084 (29,096) 4,988
Al&E FRAEDPEEER(EE
RE)
Trade receivables 20(c) Normal Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) 3,237 (403) 2,834
B IR 20(c) E® FRABEHEEER
(GEEERE)
Special Mention  Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) 1,169 (197) 972
Fi)ad FRABEDHEEER
(GEEERE)
Substandard Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired) 1,576 (530) 1,046
KR FRABEHEEER
(EERME)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired) 1,740 (1,723) 17
Al&E FRAEDHEEER
(EERME)
Receivables from 20(d) Normal 12m ECL
operating leases 1,163 (15) 1,148
et E R IA 20(d) E® 12EREHEEER
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) 23 (14) 9
A& FRABBEEER
GHEERE)
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) M. eRMIA®)
Credit risk (Continued) B EEAC D)
Loss Net carry
12m or Gross allowance amount
31 December Internal lifetime ECL BE BERE HREFE
2022 Notes credit rating 12BAFFRA RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2022512H31H8 M ABEETR RHMEEER AR®BTRE ARBTR AR®BTxR
Amount due from 25  Normal Lifetime ECL
a related company (not credit impaired) 22,624 (398) 22,026
Y —FMEBARNE 25 IEF FRAEDEEER
CGEEERE)
Amount due from 25  Normal 12m ECL
a non-controlling
interest 1,900 - 1,900
AR EROFIE 25 IER 128 A REEE R
Other receivables and 24 Normal 12m ECL
deposits 5,736 (1,351) 4,385
Hit WA RIZS 2% E® 1218 A RHMEE R
Cash and 26 Normal 12m ECL
cash equivalents 182,949 - 182,949
BehBReFEY 26 IEE 128 ARHEERE
426,769 (76,244) 350,525
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or R EEE e M5 IT s 8 AR I &
significant assumptions made during the years. e
Liquidity risk FRENE S E e
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able EEHELERAAEEELABTHSRARE
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. HEEENERE  AEBNREEENEZL
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of BARMEAEEUARESRAEE S IEE RS
trade payables and its financing obligations and also in respect BEmEE o

of its cash flow management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. THMITEE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER(E)
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and bank $%E@Eﬁl%%%ﬁ?§ﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
balances and has available funding to meet its working capital o WEEHAREEEEESENREE - K
requirements. The Group’s liquidity is dependent upon the cash %@E’] MEBESEARARKBREFHESE - &N
received from its customers. The directors of the Company are NEEREEMAEE LM A TE R G K
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial TERITEIBMBEE -
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since REENFR—BEBRBESECR - LR
prior years and are considered to have been effective in AZERRERANEEREETRER -
managing liquidity risks.
The following tables details the Group's remaining contractual —Fﬁﬁiﬂ$ﬁliF?fféiﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁé\iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂi
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities at the end NFEIBENEIHER - ZXERERmBERN
of the reporting period. The table has been drawn up based on ﬂiﬁﬁfﬁiﬁﬁémgﬁﬁﬁIT%ZAHW\E’]E—E
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the HERE - ZRRBEEFERAERERE
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
tables below include both interest and principal cash flows.
Total
On Within 1to Over discounted Carrying
demand 1year 2 years 2years  cash flow amount
HRRE
REX (B3 1225 BE2F REAH REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARWTR ARBTR AR®TRT ARETRT ARBT:T
At 31 December 2023 12023124318
Trade and other payables B9 RHMENTIE 13,747 = = = 13,747 13,747
Bank borrowing BITEE = 5,000 = = 5,000 5,000
Deposits from finance lease ~ RERMEHRERF K
customers and suppliers HERMNEZES
(note 30) (M&E30) 1,417 689 - - 2,106 2,106
15,164 5,689 - - 20,853 20,853
Lease liabilities HERRE - 2,815 1,766 2,541 7,122 6,254
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41.

Liquidity risk (Continued)

On Within

demand 1 year

BER 1%/
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT

eRIR®)
REBEZEEE)

Total

Tto Over discounted Carrying

2 years 2years  cash flow amount
HARE

1226 BB RERR ARE{E
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT

At 31 December 2022 #202212 4318
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAE(TFUE 5,421 - - - 5,421 5,421
Amount due to a non- PR —RIEERARR 2

controlling shareholder R 13,900 = = = 13,900 13,900
Amount due to a related JEAS AR A B 508

company 7,200 = = = 7,200 7,200
Deposits from finance lease REBERERF K

customers and suppliers  {XEEMIEZEE - 12,628 1,547 316 14,491 14,491

26,521 12,628 1,547 316 41,012 41,012

Lease liabilities HERR . 3,066 2,942 3,879 9,887 8,776

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair value
on future cash flows of financial instruments which arise from
changes in interest rates. Floating interest rate instruments
will result in the Group facing the risk of changes in market
interest rate, and fixed interest rate instruments will result in

the Group fair value interest rate risk.

Other than cash and cash equivalents, finance lease and
accounts receivables, bank borrowing and lease liabilities,
the Group does not have any other significant interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities. Any change in the interest rate
promulgated by banks from time to time is not considered to

have significant impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIN

AR ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the floating
rate cash and cash equivalent. The Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to cash and cash equivalent.
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation

to fixed-rate bank borrowings and lease liabilities.

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general increase
of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the Group's profit/
loss for the year (through the impact on the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents which are subject to floating interest rate) by
approximately RMB233,000 (2022: RMB915,000). For a general
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the Group’s loss for the year. No impact would be
on other components of consolidated equity in response to the

general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis as above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
each of reporting date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date. The 50 basis point increase or decrease represents the
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in

interest rates over the period until the next reporting date.

The measures to manage interest rate risk have been followed

by the Group for the year and are considered to be effective.
Currency risk

The Group mainly operates and invests in the PRC with most
of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. All the
financial assets and financial liabilities are denominated in
RMB, which is the functional currency of the Company and the
subsidiaries in the PRC to which these transactions relate and
did not have significant exposure to risk resulting from changes

in foreign currency exchange rates.

41.

@I EE)
FZ@E ()

AEBHHEEREZREFBDNERRE R
ReEEY - FHNEXRSMREFEYS
AEEHYERE KRS EEVMERNRS
MENXER  AEREHRRETESRITEE
LEERBREBNATFENERR

2023128318 » fh5HFIREEE EFAS0E
HE o MATBEMERRFREBFRT - X
EENFRRFEE(GERH A EBIRZEH
R BHES KRS EEYERTE) BE
i/ E A4 AR #233,0007T (20224 © AR
#5915,0007T) © fisi | KBS TR0 E E 2 -
MATAEMESRFITEBRT - H2HA
SEFABEEASRERARNZE - FIER
B LT TR TS B ERSHEMA
D EETE -

R BB ST BRI R R BN S R
AMBAEYEEAERADEESRTAR
LEBMER  EF % TRs0EXSAEE
BB E TERS BRI BRI AE T
BB BT -

RAEE - AEE—EEREENEE R
Tt WRAXFRETZAR

Pl

c

S Rk

\

AEEEERFEELERERE  HXZHER
INAREBTHERGEE - MTESREERS
BAGHAAREE  MARBA/ARQH
REZEXZHEBOTENBABNINEE
% BYERINSEZRSEHMELSARR
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) L. ST EE)
Other price risk HtE% R s
Fair value DNFE
The following table provides an analysis of financial TREENRSHREBRURAFETEN SR
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of TENDH ERAFERBREE SN
each reporting period, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the ROFBERERBRE—BEF=E -

degree to which the fair value is observable in accordance to

the Group's accounting policy.

2023

2023%F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E [y E=E At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE AR®TR AR®BTR AR®T=R

Financial asset at FVTPL BAFEABEN

SREE

- Preference shares of —FELEHIREN

an unlisted investment Bk = = 5,435 5,435
- Interests in Zhuhai Huihe — —RAEREGES KIS - - 12,382 12,382
- Interests in — R RIEE A

Beijing Shuncheng = = 24,505 24,505
— Interests in Shenzhen Divbio —Z&IIiFRAIEY) - 11,300 - 11,300
- Interests in Yixing —REE R = 9,480 = 9,480
Total #Et - 20,780 42,322 63,102
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AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. TRIEE)
Other price risk (Continued) HittE& R (E)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued) LA EENESMTAEE)
2022
20224
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—E F_=E F=E 4aET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTET ARETT ARETRT

Financial asset at FVTPL BAFEFTABEN

TRIEE
- Preference shares of —JEETIRER
an unlisted investment B = = 4,797 4,797
- Interests in Zhuhai Huihe — —RIREEA HEZS = = 13,944 13,944
- Interests in — R IERIEE ) #E 2
Beijing Shuncheng - - 29,965 29,965
Total 5t = - 48,706 48,706
There were no transfers between levels during the year. FANJE AR I g o
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value AEFBETEREENSREHRIZATE
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives 2. TREMEEETZSESMEEAT
information about how the fair values of these financial assets Bz HE(LERR Z GERIT & AE
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and B)Z2ER -

inputs used).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12431 H1EF/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) L. eMIA®E)

Other price risk (Continued) HAnER RS (Z)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)]

LA EENESRMIAE)

Fair value as at
AYE
2023 2022 Significant
AVE  ANE unobservable Relationship of
RMB'000  RMB'000 Fairvalue Valuation techniques inputls) unobservahle Sensitivity of fair value
Financial assets Notes hierarchy and key inputs EXFUBE input to fair value tothe input(s)
SHEE W ARMTR ARBTR AVERR FERGREREAHE BARE TIREAAHER MEHRAHBNEEE
Financial asset at FVTPL
BATETAREL
LRRE
- Preference sharesofan 16 5,435 4797 Level3  Using the option pricing model ~ Marketabilty The higher marketability 5% increase/(decrease] in
unlisted investment based on assumptions thatare  discount: 12.7% discount, the lower the marketability would result in
supported by the transaction ~ (2022: 15.8%| fair value (decreaselfincrease in fair value of
of preferred stocks i the Minority discount: ~ The higher minority approximately RMB1,000
investee company 2%.5% discount, the lower the (2022: RMBLS5,000]
(2022 24.5%) fair value 5% ncrease/(decrease) in
Minority discount would result in
(decreaselfincrease in fair value of
approximately RMB88,000
(2022: RMBT4,000]
“FITRANEER 16 0B 4 32 BRERGRRELAEARR TAREMNE:  mARBMNEER AR,/ (555 es
FREBRIBETERY  157% AT{EE RTEES)/EMOARE
(0% 158%)  DEBEARES 5100072 (20226 - ARMLS.0007)
UGS ATEBE HERERREN/ (7)o%HE
245% HOTHEGRS)/BNIARE

(2022 - 24.5%)

88,0007 (20025 : AEH74,0007)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. EWMIA@)
Other price risk (Continued) HittE% R (&)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued) AN ESTENESRIA(E)
Fair value as at
19
2023 2022 Significant
WNE  0NE unobservable Relationship of
RMB'000  RMB'000 Fairvalue Valuation techniques inputls) unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
Financial assets Notes hierarchy  and key inputs EXTTER input to fair value tothe input(s|
SHEE Wi ARMTR ARMTT AVEER (ESARBRBANE BARE TIRERAHER AEHBANENEEE
- Interests in Zhuhai Huhe 16 12,382 13964 Level3  2023: Based on the investee's 2023 The higher marketabilty — 2023:
financial performance using ~ Marketability discount, the lower the fair 5% increase/(decreasel in
discounted cash flowmethod ~ discount: 19.7% value marketability would result in
2022: Based on the investee's  2022: The higher minority (decreaselfincrease in fair value of
financial performance using ~ Marketability discount, the lower the fair  approximately RMB0,000
quideline public company discount: 15.8% value 2022
method Minority discount: ~ The higher discount rate, the - 5% increase/[decrease] in
26.5% lower the fair value marketability would result in
Discount rate: 2022: (decreaselfincrease in fair value of
13% approximately RMB1,100,000.
5% ncrease/(decrease) in Minority
discount would result in
(decreasel/ increase in fair value of
approximately RMB157,000
5% ncrease/[decrease) in discount
rate would resultin decreasel/
Increase in fair value of
approximately RMB8,000.
~RABERNER o 123 B FZE  BF: ERWRELANER WBE: [i2ai:1i2iF T REN K
K RRERRSREE  WARBMAR: B [kt lie- AV Ol
0025  ERBREDANEE  15.7% DURENEES TR ATE(RD)/ENOARE
B RBEAARARE  0F i 90,0007
TARBETE:  RRRER AVEEE a0
158% TmREtE,/ ()i

HSBIEE : 205%
BT 0005 1%

HATE(RD)/EMOARE
1,100 0007 o

DERERZEN/ (5%
BHATE(RD)/EMOARE
157,007

BB/ (50 % ERATE
(Bib) /S AR 8.0007 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12431 H1EF/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. EWMIA%)
Other price risk (Continued) HAnER RS (Z)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued) DA EFTENEmMIE(E)
Fair value as at
19
2023 2022 Significant
WNE  00EF unobservable Relationship of
RMB'000  RMB'000 Fair value Valuation techniques input(s) unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
Financial assets Notes hierarchy and key inputs BXTTRE input to fair value tothe input(s)
SHEE W ARMTR ARBTR AVERR HEHGREREAHE BARE TIREAAHER AEHBARENEEE
- Interests in Beijing 16 24,505 29985 Leveld 2023 Based onthe investee's  2023: The higher marketabilty — 2023:

Shuncheng Financial performance using ~ Marketability discount, the lower B%hincrease/{decreasel in
quideline public company discount: 12.7% the fair value marketability would result in
method 00 The higher minority (decreaselfincrease in fair value of

2022: Based on the investee’s  Marketability discount, the lower approximately RMB20,000
financial performance using ~ discount: 15.8% the fair value 2022
discounted cash flow method ~ Minority discount: ~ The higher discount rate, % increase/{dscrease] in
24.5% the lower the fair value marketability would result in
Discount rate: 13% (decreaselfincrease in fair value of
approximately RMB36,000
5% increase/(decrease) in Minority
discount would result in
(decrease)/ increase in fair value of
approximately RMB63,000
B%increase/{decrease] in discount
rate would resultin (decrease)/
increase in fair value of
approximately RMB130,000 and
RMB169,000]
- RERdER b w505 9% EZE  NF BAMREDEMEE 00 [0 :1i2iF EREN K
A RREGIARATE  mARBMAR: B4 AR,/ (5))5hEs
NIF  ERBREDTNEE 15T SURETENS AR ATE(D)/ANOARY
i FRERREREE  W0F: e 2000072
manEiE:  ARRER OTEEE 0%
158% TRBIHEN/ (3P
DEBENE - 5% DFHE(R)/EMARK
B : 13% 36,0007

%{Hﬁ%mﬁﬂ /(B0 )5
ROFERD) /AR
63,00075
BREEN/ (50 % ERATE
(H9) /S AR 150 0007 R
ABE189,0007
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €E@MIA%)
Other price risk (Continued) HittE% R (&)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)] DUAFEASENERTEE)
Fair value as at
AT
023 2022 Significant
WNE  0NE unobservable Relationship of
RMB'000  RMB'000 Fairvalue Valuation techniques inputls) unobservahle Sensitivity of fair value
Financial assets Notes hierarchy  and key inputs EXTTER input to fair value tothe input(s]
SRR Wi ARETn ARMTR AVEER SERERBREANE BAZE FUBEG\HER MEYGATENGEE
- Interests in Shenzhen 1 11,300 - Lewel2  Recent transaction price N/A N/A N/A
Divbio
“WRAREE R ER 16 11,300 - B2 EERGER AR AER Oyl
- Interests in Yixing 16 9,480 - Level2  Shareofthe netassetvalue of  N/A N/A N/A
the fund
-RERMER 16 9,480 - 2B  RESEERENRE TR R ¥ i
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KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

42. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS L2. EBRWEE
(a) Acquisition of YuanYu (a) WERTF
On 6 January 2022, the Group acquired 51% of equity 20226168 - "EBEH—EEY
interest of YuanYu and its subsidiaries which engaged in F=HWETFREMB AR %K
the provision of 5G base stations site space as operating o REAAREIT  TFERENE
lease to telecommunication operators in 5G industry NRAREMESCITERNBRELERRM
from an independent third party with cash consideration SCEUSHZERIE RS EEE -
of RMB1.
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of the RUEEHE - WBARIRH#AEERA
subsidiary as at the date of acquisition were determined B2AFEETENOT :
as follows:
RMB’000
ARBT T
Plant and equipment = Kt 1,665
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,934
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEED 2
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A EWGRIA 237
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ERFIE (1,926)
Lease liabilities HERE (4,125)
Total net liabilities RAEFER (213)
Less: Non-controlling interest (49%) W IEERR R (49%) (104)
Net liabilities acquired BT aE (109)
The fair value of trade and other receivable is B 5 R EMENRIBERN AL EBARE
RMB237,000 with no impairment loss recognised on 237.0007T @ It Ui BB =S IE R RE
acquisition. E18 o
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AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Continued) 42, EBWEE)
(a) Acquisition of YuanYu (Continued) (a) WIBTF#E)
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEEm A
Consideration paid ERNRERE =
Less: Recognised amount of net liabilities - EERAEFE 109
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note) WBEEE e B (M 5E) 109
Goodwill of RMB635,000 which is not tax deductible, AERBE435 000t E AR HIF - B
comprises the acquired workforce and the value of FE D U B A ) ) % BT UK B 2 74 B AN = [
expected synergies arising from the combination of the IR G 4w B Ak A BE A HY TB HR 1R [B) AR
acquired business with the existing operations of the HEME o
Group.
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition of YuanYu BB TEEERNFHES RS
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cash consideration paid ENRENRE =
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BERER e RREEED 2
2
Impact of acquisition on the result of the Group WEE I REBREE &
Since the acquisition date, YuanYu has contributed BUEE B Ei#E - TR B AAEEE B
RMB1,877,000 to the Group's revenue and loss of Wz AR #51,877,0007T © WA UEES
RMB349,000 to the consolidated loss for the year TR BN EE2023F 12 A31H IEF
ended 31 December 2023 upon the completion of the EMEE EEEEER ARK349,000
acquisition. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January JT ° HUREEEIEE R2023F 1 A1 H %
2023, Group's revenue and loss would have been & BIREBERWN S RERE D RIAE A
RMB1,877,000 and RMB34,000 respectively. R #1,877,0007T K AR #34,0007T °
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42. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Continued)

(b]

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. EfR @& E CFI) RO BER A 7

L2, EBEWEE)

Acquisition of Ningbo Shan Shan (b) WEBEEFEHZ42
On 11 August 2022, the Group’s non-wholly owned 202258 A1 B - AKEZEREM
subsidiary, Jiangsu Anshi, acquired 51% of equity interest BARIIH#ZKE —ZBIUE=W
of Ningbo Shan Shan, which engaged in providing energy BEFEEI%EE  REBAARE
storage services, from an independent third party with 4,080,0007T @ BRI K EIRH e
cash consideration of RMB4,080,000. A% °
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of the RUEBE - EAR R ERIEERS
subsidiary as at the date of acquisition were determined BZ AV EEBEMAT :
as follows:
RMB’000
ARMT T
Plant and equipment i K7kt 21,461
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEED 4b4
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A EWGRIA 884
Inventories =& bt
Trade and other payables B 5 KA ERTRIE (14,854)
Total net assets MEEFTE 7,979
Less: Non-controlling interest (69.4%) W IR R (69.4%) (5,537)
Net assets acquired BT EE 2,442

The fair value of trade and other receivable is
RMB884,000. The gross contractual amount for trade
and other receivables due is RMB1,382,000, with a loss

allowance of RMB498,000 recognised on acquisition.

g8 5 &k HAth FE UK I A FEE
BARYS84,000T - EFHE S K
HMEWRBENBENEBAARE
1,382,000 * WHKESHEERAR
#498,000TC R ES TR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Continued) 42, EBWEE)
(b) Acquisition of Ningbo Shan Shan (Continued) (b) WIBERHZAZ(4E)

RMB’000
ARBF T

Goodwill arising on acquisition W E A &
Consideration paid ERRE 4,080
Less: Recognised amount of net assets - BHEREEFR (2,442)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note) Yok 2= A R B (L) 1,638

Goodwill of RMB1,638,000 which is not tax deductible,
comprises the acquired workforce and the value of
expected synergies arising from the combination of the
acquired business with the existing operations of the

Group.

Net cash flows arising on acquisition of Ningbo Shan

AR #1,638,000T Y E AT HIE
BIEEURIE LB N KT S BAARE
EIRGEEEBESEENTERRBRX
FERIEME ©

BURBERCLELNFRERE -

Shan:
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash consideration paid ENBREERE (4,080)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ElER e KRB EEED 4b4
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents SARBEEDRERENRE R
included in cash flows from investing activities REeFEYRLFHE (3,636

Impact of acquisition on the result of the Group

Since the acquisition date, Ningbo Shanshan has
contributed RMB371,000 to the Group's revenue and loss
of RMB4,545,000 to the consolidated loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022 upon the completion of the
acquisition. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2022, the Group’s revenue and loss would have been
RMB2,637,000 and RMB2,859,000 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

43.

44,

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Reclassification of consolidated financial statement

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform
with the current year’'s presentation and there is no material
impact to the opening of consolidated statement of financial

position as at 1 January 2022

In prior years, certain receivables and amounts due from
related companies and non-controlling interest that vary with
nature were included under accounts and other receivables.
Certain payables and amount due to a related company and a
non-controlling interest that vary with nature were included

under trade and other payables.

During the year, finance lease receivables, account receivables
and amounts due from related companies and a non-
controlling interest are presented under a separate line to
more appropriately reflect the nature of such receivables and

payables.
Restatement of figures

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been restated due to
the impacts on application of amendments to HKAS 12. The
comparative figures have been restated to conform with the

revised presentation.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements
for the use of leased properties for 2 to 10 years. On the lease
commencement, the Group recognised right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of RMB1,638,000 and RMB1,638,000 (2022:
RMB5,145,000 and RMB5,145,000) respectively.

During the year 31 December 2023, the non-controlling
interest of Ningbo Shanshan Contract Energy Management
Co., Ltd, the subsidiaries of the Company, agreed to waive the
outstanding balances amounted of RMB3,900,000.
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